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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 15, 1995

ROBERT A. BITTENBENDER
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the
Citizens of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
represents our continued commitment to sound fiscal management and to responsible financial
reporting based on nationally recognized standards. This CAFR, which includes the Commonwealth’s
independently andited general purpose financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1995, will provide you and the financial community with all the information required to fully
assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations and the management of its
financial resources.

Pennsylvania’s economic direction generally follows that of the nation. Consequently, the
Commonwealth benefited from a strong national economy in the 1994-95 fiscal year. Unemployment
in Pennsylvania fell 4 percent and real personal income increased 3.4 percent from the quarter
ended June 1994 to the quarter ended June 1995. These economic trends contributed to a 4.7 percent
increase in fiscal year 1994-95 General Fund budgetary basis tax revenues over the prior fiscal year.
The General Fund tax revenue growth for fiscal year 1994-95 was below the 6.4 percent growth rate
in the prior fiscal year due, in large part, to a tax rate reduction and an increase in tax refunds in the
1994-95 fiscal year. Total budgetary basis revenues of the General Fund for the 1994-95 fiscal year
rose 5.7 percent, a modest increase from the 5.5 percent growth rate in the prior fiscal year.

On a budgetary basis, the Commonwealth’s General Fund ended the 1994-95 fiscal year with a
$540 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance prior to reserving $111 million for transfer to
the Tax Stabilization Reserve (Rainy Day) Fund.

Education continues to be the comerstone of Pennsylvania’s future. We provided $3.2 billion to
our public schools through the Basic Education Funding program. Total funding for basic education
was $5.4 billion, including funding for special education, pupil transportation, teacher retirement
and social security, and special programs to address the needs of economically and educationally at-
risk students. In addition, we provided over $1.4 billion for higher education institutions and students.

The Commonweaith continued its long-term commitment to economic development by reducing
business taxes and appropriating significant funds for loans and grants to employers. Among these
programs were $13 million to the Industrial Communities Program to restore blighted industrial
sites to productive use; $12.5 million for the Business Infrastructure Development Program which
makes grants and loans to local sponsors for specific infrastructure improvements that complement
private industrial development; $6.8 million for the Industrial Resource Centers Program which
assists traditional and emerging manufacturing firms with implementing modern manufacturing
technologies; $86 million from the Sunny Day Fund to help private industries expand and to attract
new businesses to Pennsylvania; and $39.5 million for the Housing and Redevelopment Program
which provides grants to rebuild blighted neighborhoods and to rehabilitate low and moderate-
income housing. -



During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, capacity for incarcerated offenders increased by over
3,900 beds as additional cells were occupied at five correctional institutions opened in the prior
fiscal year. In addition, construction continued on a new 1,000 cell prison in Clearfield County
which is scheduled to open in January 1996.

The Commonwealth continued to support its veterans by continuing renovations at the Southeastern
Veterans Home by providing 192 new nursing beds, and opening the newly constructed veterans
home in Scranton.

During the 1994-95 fiscal year, several major pieces of legislation were enacted that created new
programs or expanded existing programs:

— Act 1995-21 made changes to the State Tax Reform Code for 1995-96 including corporate
net income tax reductions, increasing corporate net operating loss deductions, providing for
double weighting of the sales factor in corporate tax apportionment calculations, greatly
reducing the “widows tax,” repealing a 2 percent annuity tax and creating a tax amnesty
program.

— Three related acts expanded environmental cleanup opportunities by limiting liability of
certain persons to encourage the reuse of industrial and commercial sites: Act 1995-2 provided
for the recycling of existing industrial and commercial sites by providing for liability for
cleanup by new industries and tenants, and establishing new funds, the Voluntary Cleanup
Loan Fund, the Industrial Land Recycling Fund and the Industrial Sites Cleanup Fund, to
aid in industrial sites cleanups; Act 1995-3 limited environmental liability for economic
development agéncies, financiers and fiduciaries; and Act 1995-4 provided grants for
conducting assessments of industrial sites and established a fund to provide the funding of
such assessments.

— Act 1995-18 provided for the division of the Department of Environmental Resources into
the Department of Environmental Protection to enforce environmental laws and the
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources to operate State parks and forests. This
act is effective July 1, 1995.

— Act 1995-20 made numerous revisions to the Public Welfare Code including abolishing
transitionally needy cash benefits, implementing workfare and job training programs,
authorizing additional fraud detection and prevention measures, limiting benefits for teen
pregnancy costs, and providing for expedited rulemaking for changes to pharmacy, drug
and alcohol, hospital and nursing home reimbursement programs.

Also, beginning in January 1995, there was a Special Session of the Legislature dealing with
crime. Various laws enacted in the portion of the Special Session in the 1994-95 fiscal year include:
increasing the penalties for various crimes (Special Session Acts 1995-3, 1995-5, and 1995-10);
requiring the Governor to sign execution warrants within 90 days of receipt of court review (Special
Session Act 1995-4); changing various juvenile offender provisions including eliminating the
automatic expungement of juvenile records (Special Session Act 1995-7), allowing for the
dissemination of juvenile fingerprints among law enforcement agencies (Special Session Act 1995-
6), allowing juvenile proceedings to be open to the public for certain violent offenses (Special
Session Act 1995-11), and allowing the use of juvenile records in adult court (Special Session Act
1995-13); creating the Office of Victim Advocate in the Board of Probation and Parole (Special
Session Act 1995-8); providing for mandatory restitution for adult offenders (Special Session Act
1995-12); providing for DNA testing of sexual and violent offenders (Special Session Act 1995-14);
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and providing for criminal history checks for purchasers of handguns, rifles and shotguns (Special
Session Act 1995-17).

The Commonwealth has continued to make significant investments in programs to support the
economically needy through General Assistance, Aid to Families With Dependent Children, and
Medical Assistance. State and Federal expenditures for these programs amounted to $8.3 billion in
the 1994-95 fiscal year. Approximately 44 percent of the total cost of assistance to the economically
needy is funded by the General Fund. The balance is provided by the Federal Government and
through various program collection activities conducted by the Commonwealth. Additional funding
was obtained through a Medical Assistance Intergovernmental Transfer program which prov1ded
contributions in 1994-95 totaling $287 million.

In summary, the general purpose financial statements show that commitment to fiscal discipline
has resulted in continued financial improvements, allowed us to lower taxes, and to continue funding
programs that provide equity in education, enhance economic development and meet critical human
service needs.

Sincerely,

LA p Pt e

Robert A. Bittenbender

Secretary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 15, 1995

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMFTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Bittenbender:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. This report, which includes the General
Purpose Financial Staternents (GPFS), was prepared by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations, pursuant to the
power vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget
by Executive Order No. 1984-3, October 11, 1984.

The financial statements contained in this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAF) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They
were jointly audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and KPMG Peat Marwick
LLP, a nationally recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors’ Report, expressing an unqualified opinion
on the GPFES, is included in this financial report.

I believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as
measured by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor, the
Members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain a full understanding of the
Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the compieteness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating results
by fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules;
certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social and
demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) is a primary government.
The primary government, or PG, includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of the Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which
are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented
component units. Component units include all legaliy separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability
include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (}) the ability of the PG to impose its
will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on, the PG.

Based upon the financial accountability criteria, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the
Notes to Financial Statements, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units,
except the State Employes’ Retirement System, which is included in the Commonwealth’s primary government as a
blended component unit:
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Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership Fund—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Indusirial Development Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund

Public School Employes’ Retirement System—Fiduciary Fund

State Employes’ Retirement Systern—Pension Trust Fund

State Public School Building Authority—Governmental Fund

State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their
specific programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the agency
level by appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure
categories include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed
charges. An encumbrance system is used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve that part of an
appropriation until the actual liabilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do
not exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that
unencumbered appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in
the new fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in the
Commonwealth’s governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance.
Funds reserved for appropriations carried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiseal year at which time
any remaining balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise
extended for some other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance
carried forward from one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated itern.

Accounting records of most departments under the Governor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations.
Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liquor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for
the payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor General,
and the Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, operate separate accounting systems. '

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary basis by fund, agency
and appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment
requisitions and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and
expenditures are adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP,

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions
are executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and
that the financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the Department
of Revenue's records of cash receipts.

THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPFS)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GPFS in
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary
basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
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The College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the National Association
of College and University Business Officers’ College and University Business Administration and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants’ Audits of Colleges and Universities for institutions of higher education.

In measuring financial position and operating results on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as compared to the
budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available to finance current
obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are generally reported when goods and services are received
and a Hability incurred, rather than when cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPES as of a
fiscal year end include amounts which actizally will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial data at the time the financial
statements are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of credits and refunds, and accounts payable
and accrued expenditures for which a liability has been incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The first three quarters of 1995 have been a period of slower growth in the adjusted gross domestic product than the
growth recorded in 1994. In February 1994 interest rate increases were initiated by the Federal Reserve Board in order to
avoid inflationary pressure. Current economic data appear to confirm that the Federal Reserve Board’s desired “soft
ianding” for the economy has been achieved. Barring any unforeseen major changes in the economy, both the gross
domestic product and price data have growth rates that are consistent with continued moderate economic expansion
expected during the next year. While the slowdown in national economic growth was desired, to avoid a possible recession,
the slower economic growth rate has negative consequences in job and income growth, particularly for Pennsylvania.

Since the beginning of 1995, employment and personal income growth in Pennsylvania has slowed substantially.
Despite the slower rate of growth, the number of unemployed workers and the unemployment rate continue to gradually
decline. In September 1995 the Pennsylvania unemployment rate was 6.4 percent, an improvement from 6.6 percent
during September 1994. Continuing economic growth has helped to produce gains in tax revenue. General Fund tax
collections through the first quarter of the 1995-96 fiscal year were $10 million above estimated collections, and 2.6
percent above the collections of the first quarter of the 1994-95 fiscal year, even though Pennsylvania enacted tax cuts for
the 1995-96 fiscal year.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal peint in any assessment of Pennsylvania’s financial
position. It accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere
and for the major portion of Commonwealth expenditures. Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and
sales and use taxes, constitute approximately 63.9 percent of the General Fund budgetary basis revenues. Major fund
expenditures are for general government, protection of persons and property, public health and welfare, public education,
conservation of natural resources, economic development, transportation and debt service on all obligations except those
incurred for highway or other special revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated
within its adopted General Fund budget, as amended, is presented in the “Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis),” included in the GPFS.

Budgetary Basis: At June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary
basis) of $429.0 million in the General Fund. This compares to a budgetary basis fund balance of $302.2 million at June
30, 1994. The increase in budgetary basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 was the result of revenue
collections totaling $24,147.9 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $24,057.9 million, plus other net financing
sources totaling $36.8 million. Included in the $24,057.9 million appropriation authorizations are $65.5 million of state
supplemental appropriations and $276.1 million in federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the fiscal year.
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The following table shows the General Fund’s actual year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and increases or
decreases (expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/
Undesignated
At June 30 Fund Balance
1991 $ (450.9)
1992 8.8
1993 2149
1294 302.2
1995 429.0

Increase

(Decrease)

$ (587.1)
459.7
206.1

87.3
126.8

Modified Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported 2 fund balance of $688.3
million, a decrease of $88.0 million from the $776.3 million fund balance, as restated, at June 30, 1994, Total assets
decreased by $72.8 million to $3,185.2 million. Liabilities increased $15.2 million to $2,496.9 million. These changes and
others are reflected in the General Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows.

General Fund

Summary Comparative Balance Sheets (GAAP Basis)

(Expressed in Millions)
Increase
June 30, 1995  June 30, 1994 {Decrease)
Assets
Cash and temporary inVestments ....coceecveeeeveeeecerersrarissssnens $ 13675 $ 1,168.1 5 1994
Receivables, Nt ....ocioerirvrerre e rere e sevsseses s s s e 846.8 919.7 {72.9)
Due from other funds/component units/governments ........... 965.3 1,168.0 (202.7)
OthET ASSELS ..eeveerrerererresneerresssessesssermcsessanesssersssesssrsmeeeemeemen 5.6 22 34
TFOLAl ASSELS -t ere e reesae e e s e eme st s st st ees $ 3,1852 $ 3,258.0 $ ((728)
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities ..................... 31,8296 $ 1,849.2 $ (196)
Due to other funds/component units/governments ................ 649.7 6129 36.8
Deferred reVENUE .....vveeeeeercie e e e e rses s esesnasas 17.6 19.6 (2.0)
Total LIabilities ....ccceveercerirerce e scescesrs e e e bsssas 2,496.9 2,481.7 15.2
Fund Balance
RESEIVE .ottt e eae et 245.4 364.9 (119.5)
Unreserved:
Designated .....ooooriirvreveree s rier v ss s e e 442.9 411.4 31.5
Total Fund Balance ......cc.covrveicvrrierenerce e veet e e se s 688.3 776.3 (88.0)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance .......ccccoevoeeeerenrireverevrirenen. $ 3,1852

—_—

$ 3,258.0

$ (72.8)



GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, which includes
the Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Punds. These funds account for most general
operating revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1995 increased by $62.3 million to $1,927.6
million from a $1,865.3 million balance, as restated, at the beginning of the fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund
balances at June 30, 1995 amount to $104.8 million as comnpared to a $255.6 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance
a year ago. Comparative summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (expressed
in miilions) follow.

General Governmental Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects Funds totalled $28,527 million. This represents a 4.4 percent increase over the previous year.
Taxes constituted 55.6 percent of general governmental revenues; intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds,
constituted 27.9 percent. '

Fiscal Years Ended
I—— —[ Increase
Revenue Source June 30,1995  June 30, 1994 (Decrease)
TAKES ceveeeeeceeceererenesaescereterseesssssnarasssssessneesnsrsesaraeres e s sesrseneannn $ 16,990 $ 16,095 $§ 895
Licenses and f285 v rerisiererrnnereseinerssssssssssssrssesessresassssnns 773 741 32
IntergOVernmental ... ....co..eeeee e et ee v e e e een 7,961 7.822 139
Charges for 200ds and SErvices .......covmeeinnvsensinmensesensennne 295 847 48
INVESIMENT INCOMIE .evvirrerrreererirrresnssrressressresrsressrsresssssssssanass sane 145 79 66
LOUErY IECEIPLS «oveesireeeeeee et e e ccesemeee e ere ey eenems s rererne 1,596 1,575 21
Lease rental principal and interest ........oeeevicnincsnessesncisnncnns 2 4 (2)
L1 1T U U URUTN 165 168 (3
TOtal REVEDUES ......cocvvververerreesverriessrerssrsssesmessesserssersssssenssnsas $ 28,527 $ 27,331 $ 1,196

Intergovernmental revenues increased $139 million due mainly to the increased participation in the Federal Medicare
Program.

Tax revenue increased $895 million due primarily to an increase in employment and an improvement in the economic
condition of the Commonwealth.

Fiscal Years Ended

Increase

Taxes by Type June 30,1995 June 30, 1994 (Decrease)
Personal INCOIME ...veveerererrerssurerercesesirmrasinsresorssssesssmsssessssssssassns $ 4979 5 4,833 $ 146
S2l5 ANA TSE c.rvvereecrerre e rererrersesssssenrvrs v essrrasrsnsssenssnsssssasans 5,613 T 5,249 364
COTPOTALION ..ot cece oo s e cres v easnesssnereseensans 3.826 3,448 378
LAqUid FUELS ..ovvevvcevcieeeieceicss ettt e e e ce e e ereneraenens 730 706 24

L0147 OO OO 1,842 1,859 (17
Total TaX REVENUE «.ooeoeooeee v re st e $ 16,990 $ 16,095 $ 895

General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue,
Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds totalled $28,263 million, an increase of $1,267 million over the previous year, Of
the total amount expended, public health and welfare accounted for 43.3 percent, public education for 24.8 percent and
transportation for 9.8 percent.
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Fiscal Years Ended

(- ——I Increase

Expenditure Function June 30,1995  June 30, 1994 (Decrease)
General GOVEIMIMENT ....ceveeeeeeeeis et eceeee e reeesee s e e e reseesereeas $ 2,313 $ 2,152 $ 161
Protection of persons and Property ......oececeeeeemeveeseeeeccrenas 1,927 1,773 154
Public health and Welfare ..........ccooooeeee e 12,250 11,810 440
Public €QUCAHION oot eerevaee et ssee e s ssnenn. 7,007 6,784 223
Conservation of natural TeSOUrCes ..o.v.eo.meoeveeeeeeeerereeresnnann 572 525 47
Economic development and assistance ...........oceeevvvevseeeeeerenns 338 272 66
TTANSPOTLATION 1eeviiveeeeniemeee et beetesne e easesesat s eeseeeeeeaeemeases e 2,773 2,696 77
Capital Outlay ...ttt 265 210 55
Debt Service:

Principal Tetifement ... ...ccoccoeemirieiemee e e 517 482 35

Interest and fiscal charges.......cocceceeeecieviieneeeceee e 301 292 9

Total EXPEndItures -.......coveveeieeveveeveririeiicececeeeeevesessssssssssssass § 28,263 $ 26,996 $ 1,267

Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $440 million or 3.7 percent over the previous fiscal year.
Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance
comprise the largest portion of the public health and welfare expenditure increase.

Expenditures for public education increased by $223 million or 3.3 percent over the previous fiscal year. Areas of
increase include aid to local school districts for basic instruction, vocational instruction, debt service, pupil transportation,
employe retirement including social security, and special education programs.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS— GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The discretely presented component unit governmental fund type includes the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority, the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership and the State Public School Building Authority. Their combined fund balances
at June 30, 1995 increased by $9.9 million to $278.8 million from a $268.9 million balance at the beginning of the fiscal
year.

Revenues of the component unit governmental funds totaled $221.2 million at June 30, 1995, Lease rental principal
and interest revenue of $178.8 million represents 80.8 percent of total revenues.

Expenditures of the component unit governmental funds totaled $558.5 million at June 30, 1995. Of the total amount
expended, debt service principal and interest expenditures were $249.7 million or 44.7 percent of total expenditures and
capital outlay was $274.2 milkion or 49.1 percent.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the
electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed
one and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five
fiscal years. The certified constitutional debt limit at August 31, 1995 was $30.9 billion. Qutstandin g capital project debt at
August 31, 1995 amounted to $3.9 billion.

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate apbroved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1995 was $5,041 million. Total debt service
transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995
amounted to $764.1 million.



During the fiscal yearr ending June 30, 1996 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances
amounting to $611 million, an increase of $141 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $470 million during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. This forecast reflects the need to make invesiments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, highway bridges, mass transportation, water supply systems and parks and recreational
facilities. Debt principal retirements of $448 million are forecast during fiscal 1996. The table that follows shows total
outstanding long-term indebtedness for general obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most
recent fiscal years.

) Outstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1989 $ 4,705
1990 4,634
1991 , 4,788
1992 4,874
1993 5,041
1994 5,100
1995 5,041

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1996, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including
Federat funds, are expected to increase by 0.3 percent and 2.7 percent, respectively. As a result of tax changes and expenditure
patterns that are likely to affect the cash receipts flow, the Commonwealth anticipates issuance of $500 million in General
Fund tax anticipation notes during the 1995-96 fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial paper
issuances (expressed in millions) during the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund tax anticipation
notes were not issued for the periods shown and are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issued
Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of
Issue Ended of the General Fund
June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1992 $ 1,450 10%
1993 975 7
1994 400 3
1995 600 4
1996 (Estimated) 500 3

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit monies of the Commonweaith,
excluding certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Monies deposited
are not required to be segregated by fund.
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In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest monies of the Commonwealth that have accumulated
beyond the ordinary needs of the various Commonwealth Funds. Investment pools managed by the Treasury Department
include the following types of investments, average maturity and allocated percent at June 30, 1995 as depicted below.

Average
Maturity
Investment Type (days} Percent

United States Treasury and Agency Obligations ........coeeecemeeeeereeveessiieeieiersvsnesesesesaes 666 20.8
Repurchase AZIEEIMENLS .......ceeeiviisiiieinininininc e rsnssssesesssssssnsnsss e st sssssnssssssssemmnse 28 64.8
Certificates Of DEPOSIE ........covvurerrieernrermsnsressessreesesssseeesesssmsass rssssssessssssssrmmasnsemssassorsses 195 2.5
Corporate Bonds and NOLES ........ccoveereercrmmercrceecccrnresesnsesssssssesesemsressssssssssssasess seees 652 0.2
OHBET 1ttt ittt et e s st et e e e s se e s re e sas e s ba s e e e ne e RS e a e A b e ed e en 231 11.7

100.0

Temporary investments held by the Treasury Department amounted to $6.6 billion of the $8.3 billion reported on the
combined balance sheet as of June 30, 1995. Interest on investments controlled by the Treasury Department during the
fiscal year amounted to $349 million at an average yield of 5.6 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial staterments, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983,
The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits and tort liabilities, including automobile,
employe and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage
is obtained for property losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage
for property losses less than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
program.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds. Completed projects
and construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. Projects completed during the fiscal year totalled $25.3 million; construction in progress at June
30, 1995 amounted to $231 million. Authorized but unissued general obligation bonds at June 30, 1995 totalled $16.6
billion.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan programs for
economic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth enterprise
funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1995 of $304.5 million, which represents an increase of $113.1 million
over the $191.4 million retained earnings, as restated, reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds and a pension trust fund, reported total fund balance of $16,009
million, compared to $15,778 million in the previous year. Total fund balances of the expendable frust funds increased
$601 million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $2,678 million at June 30, 1995. The State Employes’
Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $13,331 million, a decrease of $370 million from the
previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits. '

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turnpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
earnings at June 30, 1995, totaling $1,736 million, which represents an increase of $82 million from the $1,654 million
retained earnings reported the previous year.



The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported
a fund balance of $25,022 million at June 30, 1995, which represents a $1,570 million increase over the $23 452 million
previous fiscal year fund balance.

The total fund equity for the College and University funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education,
a discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1995 was $247 million, compared to $235 million at June 30, 1994.

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June

. 30, 1995 amounted to $3,916 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the
Commonwealth’s general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPES, evidenced by the Independent Auditors’ Report submitted herewith, was performed jointly by
the Department of the Auditor General and the independent public accounting firm of KPMG Peat Marwick LIP. It was
performed pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code

-.of 1929 and in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Departiment of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after their
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the
Commonwealih of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994. This represents the ninth consecutive year the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, 2 government unit must publish an easily readable and effictently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealth agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment 10 you to maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

0 2lK

Harvey C. Eckert

Deputy Secretary for Comptroiler Operations
Office of the Budget
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Peat Marwick >

Certified Public Accountants

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Office of the Auditor General 225 Market Street -
Harrisburg, PA 17120 Suite 300 ‘.
P.0. Box 1180 o
BARBARA HAFER . Harrisburg, PA 17108-1180 ..

AUDITOR GENERAL , ’ vt

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Tom Ridge, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ;
Harrisburg, Pennsylvaria o

‘We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of ;
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general -
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We did not jointly audit the financial
statements of certain component units, which represent 76 percent of total assets of the Trust and Agency
Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, and 100 percent of the discretely presented
component units. The financial statements of these component units were audited by other auditors, including :
KPMG Peat Marwick LLP acting separately, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion P
expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component units, is based solely on the :
reports of the other auditors. KPMG Peat Marwick LLP has audited separately 81 percent of total assets and
85 percent of total revenues of the discretely presented component units.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards, Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support-
ing the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our andit and the reports of other anditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note B, the insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enter-
prise Fund, is based on actuarial analysis of historical experience adjusted to estimate the impact of Act 44 and
changes in claims management practices adopted by SWIF management. Because of the length of time re-
quired for the actual insurance loss liability to be determined and the uncertainty regarding whether the ad-
justed data will be reflective of future claim payments, the actual liability may vary significantly from the
estimated amount provided for in the balance sheet.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements .
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Commonwealth of Penn- L
sylvania at June 30, 19953, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its Proprietary Funds for the

fiscal year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. , A



Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Such information has been subjected to the auditing pro-
cedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit
and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and, therefore,
express no opinion thereon.

ﬁ&zu_,#%h, KIM- Lot Norcni 1Y P

November 17, 1995, except for Note T as
to which the date 1s December 13, 1995
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

|
[

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes
Unemploytrent taxes
License and fees ......
Intergovernmental ... .
Charges for sales and services ...,
Investmentincome ...
Lottery reveaues ......
Lease rental principal and tnterest ........
L1111 SN

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General EOVEIMMIENS 1w vcssimmnrecsniens
Protection of persons and property .
Public health and welfare ._.._._.
Public education ...
Conservation of namural resources ........
Economic development and assistance
Transportation

Capital ouday .....

Debt Service:
Principal retiremnent
Interest and fiscal charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER}
EXPENDITURES ...

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds ...... .
Refunding bond pro
Operating transfers in—Note H _. .
Operating transfers out—Note H .........
Operating transfers from primary
government—Note H ......c.veeeeeeeeees
Operating transfers to component vnits—
Note H
Payment to refunded bond escrow
<1111
Capital lease and installment purchase
[u 13 :2:T1 ) 1 —

NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) .....ccounrnnnnre.

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES ..oovsiininiianiins

FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED,
JULY 1, 1994—Note C .oevrrecricrenne

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS—

NOTEH

FUND BALANCES
JUNE 390, 1995

)
Total Total A
Fiduciary (Memorandum (Memoranduom
Governmental Fond Types Fund Type Only) Only) s
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary Component Reporting
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government Units Entity !
15,425,568 $ 1533426 3 ) 31,204 5 5,853 § 16,996,051 $ 5 16,996,051
N AT e 1,930,269 1,930,269 1,930,269
139479 613,984 e 98,190 871,653 871,653
6,958,561 996,412 5,024 74.326 8,034,323 e 8,034,323
696,841 195,440 e 2,57 s 894,852 2,464 897,316
71514 55,785 2,576 9,249 131,305 276,429 16,457 292,886
1,595,726 . vaes 1,595,726 e 1,595,726
2,159 2,159 178,831 180,990
99,620 64,789 491 393 35,186 200,479 23,428 223,907 s
P
23,417,583 5,055,562 5,226 48,441 2,275,129 30,801,941 221,180 31,023,121 ' f
1,153,973 1,157,315 1,830 7,793 2320911 2320911 | |
1,866,736 13,788 46,704 43,639 1,970,867 1,970,867 -
11,584,252 665,477 N 1,622,843 13,872,572 . 13,872,572
7,006,744 . - e 7,006,744 1,678 7,008,422
351,889 213,125 6,488 571,502 e 571,502
245,844 58,008 34,525 338,377 32,960 I3
286,415 2,381,793 104,878 2,773,086 R 2,773,086 .
18,667 48,558 197,239 264,464 274,185 538,649 '
e s 516,705 e 516,705 120,625 637,330 :
19,841 9 281,618 12 301,480 129,088 430,568 '
22,534,361 4,538,073 798,323 391,676 1,674,275 29,936,708 558,536 30,495,244 !
E:
883,222 517,489 (793,097 ) (343,235} 600,854 865,233 {337,356) 527,877 E‘J
L
9,896 e 439,143 449,039 310,025 759,064
caen . 12,618 12,618 27,690 40,308
341,328 323,799 763,745 e - 1,430,872 392,056 1,822,928
(603.819) (769,205 ) (1,938) (25939) (6) ( 1,400,907 ) {392,056 ) (1,792,963 )
32,290 32,250
(683,224) {683,224 ) (683,224 )
(12,618} (12,618} (22,727) (35345 )
12,666 24,043 36,709 36,709
(933,049 ) {411,467 } 763,807 413,204 (6) (167,511) 347278 179,767
y
[
{49,827) 106,022 (29,290 ) 69,969 600,848 697,722 9,922 707,644 .
776,281 912,012 64,182 112,851 2,077,547 3,942,873 268,867 4,211,740
{38,150 ) 2,738 842 (34,570 ) (34,570) . §
688,304 § Loy % 35,734 & 182820 $ 2678395 $ 4606025 $ 278,789

§ 4884814

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES—
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

.~ General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995
TH OF PENNSYLVANIA .
I COWONW(E}E;:‘:E ed in?'housan i) S General Fund Budgeted Special Revenne Funds
: Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable.
. Budget Actuzal (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
‘s REVENUES: |
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds ........occoeveevrerrcereenne $ 15005800 $ 15425653 § 419,853 $ 980,014 § 1,008,155 $ 28,141
LOttery TECEIPLS .ourenrereerrerrmsremrereremsreiensansns . e cens 875,372 841,404 (33,968)
Liquor store profits transfer ........covveeineees 70,000 60,000 (10,000 R I e
Licenses and fees .....ccvueivsnnns i 65,800 63,796 {2,004 481,300 510,808 29,508
] Fines, penalties and interest.... 25,100 31,702 6,602 e e cean
) Departmental services ... . 032,646 932,646 - 41,650 41,650 e
MiSCEHANEOUS ...ceevecreaersieeesrrasrssrnssasreseans 138,600 183,533 44,933 65,724 77,944 12,220
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS .............. 16,237,946 16,697,330 459,384 2,444,060 2,479,961 ' 35,901
£ Federal PTOZTAMS ..o 8,058,378 7,450,595 (607,783 ) 850,421 771,447 (78,974)
|
: TOTAL REVENUES ........ccnnvmcvreenees 24,296,324 24,147,925 (148,399) 3,294,481 3,251,408 (43,073)
{ EXPENDITURES:
£ State Programs:
General ZOVEMMENE ...vvvverreerverrearearmarcarans 1,344,350 1,335,533 8,817 576,838 - 537373 30,465
Protection of persons and property ........... 1,656,696 1,646,809 9,887 230,248 228,345 1,903
1‘ Public health and welfare ........cccccvecvvenen. 5,864,924 5,847,907 17,017 596,113 591,117 4,996
P Public education .. 6,970,559 6,963,559 7,000 1,672 1,283 389
Conservation of natural TESOUICes . - 279,325 277,081 2,244
Economic development and asmstance ..... 262,491 258,968 3,523 e . e
TransPOtAtON ...oc.ev et remeasrememenerereccnes 286,206 277444 8,762 1,136,416 1,134,663 1,753
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS .........c...... 16,664,551 16,607,301 57,250 2,541,287 2,492,781 48,506
Federal Programs ..........ccoreecveeerer 8,058,378 7,450,595 607,783 850,421 771,447 78,974
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ........ccccreeee. 24,722,929 24,057,896 665,033 3,391,708 3,264,228 127,480
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
Y EXPENDITURES ..o {426,605) 90,029 516,634 (97,227) (12,820) 84,407
!‘ T
~ OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Prior year Iapses -............ 147,793 147,793 e 54,942 54,942
Transfer to Tax Stablhzanon Reserve
T s USSR (111,000) (111,000)
Increase in budgeted revenues 459,384 cees (459,384)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES .....coovurririvsrnersaarsesnsastvsnaies 607,177 36,793 (570,384 ) 54,942 54,942
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES —NOTEM .............. 180,572 126,822 (53,750) (42,285) 42,122 84,407
; UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
s BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
: JULY 1,1994 ..........orecerceermrnenesenanes 302,175 302,175 e 216,085 216,085
[, UNRESERVEL/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUNE 30,1995 ..o e $ 48247 % 428997 $§ (53750) $ 173800 $ 258,207 $ 84407

— See notes to financial statements. —-
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES

All Proprietary Fund Types, Pension Trust Fund and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Theusands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services

Investment income

Interest on notes and loans

Pension contributions

Other

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services

g

al

B
A

i expense

Depreciation

Provision for uncollectible ACC0UntS ...v.uvirweeamsrsvimsesmsinens

Benefit payments and refunds

Decrease in fair value of InVESIMENTS ..oiisiisinisassaninans

Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ......oococriessieinr

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ....ooeeeeeeeeereaviences

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income
Interest expense
Qil Company Franchise Tax
Other

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET ...

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS ..

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers out—Note H ..ol
Operating transfers from primary government—Note H.
Operating transfers from component units—Note H ........

Operating transfers to primary government—Not: H .
Operating transfers to component units—Note H .............

OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET ...ovvvvvvvnvrarreeesrennns

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt ...........

NET INCOME (LOSS)

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES, AS RESTATED

Tuly 1, 1994

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,
June 30, 1995

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fond Types Fund Type Total
{Memorandum Total
Pension Only) {(Memorandum
Internal Trust— Primary Component Quly)

Enterprise Service Notel Government Units Reporting Entity
1,172,351 3 101,863 $ F $ 12714214 3 622728 3 1,896,942
78,953 cees 654,485 733,438 1,946,350 2,679,797
6,435 cees 6435 183,433 189,868
v . 529,537 529,537 1,254,206 1,783,743
573 35 e 608 18,204 18,812
1,258,312 101,898 1,184,022 2,544,232 4,024,930 6,569,162
1,059,273 96,040 14,907 1,170,220 767978 1,938,198
1,235 e e 1,235 285,241 286,476
6,368 7.158 55 14,081 155,983 170,064
21,192 266 vees 21,458 46,925 68,383
R ceee 789,700 789,700 1,414,687 2,204,387
cere 749,290 749,290 ves 749,290
1,170 vaes 1,170 Cees 1,170
1,089,738 103,464 1,553,952 2,747,154 2,670,814 5,417,968
168,574 {1,566) (349,930 ) (202,922 ) 1,354,116 1,151,194
5,398 1,054 6,452 23,748 30,200

cea (582) (582) (55,023 ) (55,605)
42,167 42,167
176 203 379 4,568 4,947
5514 675 6,249 15,460 21,709
174,148 (891) (369.930) (196,673 ) 1,369,576 1,172,903

(61,069 ) (61,069 ) e {61,069)
294,160 294,160
6,677 6,677 ieea 6,677

(11,171) {11,171)

(6,671) (6,671) (66M1)
(61,069) 6 (61,063 ) 282,989 221,926
113,079 (891) (369,924 ) (257,736 ) 1,652,565 1,394,829

(340 ) (340)
113,079 (891) (369,924 (257,736 ) 1,652,225 1,394,489
191,440 471,539 13,700,887 13,939,866 25,105,391 39,045,257
304,519 $ 46,648 § 13330963 $ 13,682,130 $26,757,616 $ 40,439,746

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

All Proprietary Fund Types and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:
Operating income (foss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Net amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Nonoperating revenues
MNonoperating revenues—oil franchise tax
Reclassification of investment income
Changes in assets and labilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
Decrease in due from primary goversment
Increase in due from component units
Increase in due from other governments
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Joerease (dacteass) in accounts payable.and and accrued liabitites ...........
ncrease {decrease) in due to other fimds
Decrease in due to primary govemment
Decrease in due to other governments
Inectease (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase in insurance loss liability
Increase in other current liabilities

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ............c...

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and revenue bonds ........oecoeeccccenrcccicennee
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds
Interest paid on notes payable and revenue bonds
Operating transfers from primary government
Operating transfers out
Increase in contributed capital

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Increases in contributed capital
Decreases in contributed capital
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USER FOR) CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of inv i
Proceeds from sale of maturities of investments.
Investment income

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ...

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH, JULY 1, 1994

CASH, JUNE 30, 1995

Progrietary Funds Total
Memorandum Total
Only) (Memorandum
Tternal Primary Cemponent Only)
Enterprise Service Government Units Reporting Entity
$ 168,574 $ (1,566 ) $ 167,008 $ (217,281) $ (50,273 )
6,868 7,158 14,026 154,586 168,612
16 . 16 e 16
21,192 266 21,458 46,925 68,383
196 25 221 4,568 4,789
e e 42,167 42,167
{78,953) (78953 ) (190,592 (269,545 )
(59,924 ) 40 (59.884) (644,506 ) (704,350 )
4,668 (4,375) 293 e 263
950 9%0
(48) (48) (48)
(4) {4) {9990 ) (9,994)
2952 {1,943) 1.01% {655) 364
(42} 1,356 1,354 909 2,263
(677) 1,546 869 (17,050 } (16,i81)
3492 (5442) (1,950) e (1,950)
(709) (709)
(273) (23) (296) (1,148 ) (1,444)
(2,962 ) 1 (2.961) 1,235 (1,726)
51,886 51,886 e 51.886
9,992 9,992 23,648 33,640
{41,559) (1403) (42,962) (589,622 ) (632,584)
127,015 (2,969 ) 124,046 {806,803 ) (682,857 )
- cees 640,756 640,756
(1,238 ) (1,238} (135,602 ) (136,240 )
(242) (242) . (242)
284,252 284,252
(61,069) {61,069) ceas (61,069 )
7,525 7,525 1,503 9.028
(53,544) (1,480) (55024) 790,909 735,885
35,000 35,000
(18,641 ) (18,641 )
(340) (340) (55,023 ) (55,363 )
32,000 e 32,000 74,381 106,381
(13,700 ) R (13,700 ) {4,657 ) (18,397}
(4,639) (10,629 ) (15268 ) (230,715) {245,983 )
1,226 1,226 1,226
13.661 (9,743 ) 3,918 (199,695 ) (195,777 }
(1,956,260 } (58,891) (2,015,151 ) ( 18,609,013 } (20,624,564 )
1,785,150 71,397 1,857,047 18,577,272 20434319
84,351 1,054 85,405 214,340 299,745
(86,759) 14,060 (72,699 ) 182,599 109,500
3713 (132) 241 (33,090 ) (32.849)
9,581 409 9,990 64,526 74,516
3 9,954 3 2 $ 10,231 $ 31,436 $ 41,667

There were oo material investing, capital-and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

— See notes 1o financial statements. —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1995 |
L4
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o College Total
- Fiduciary and (Memorandum
(Expressed in Thousands) Gevernmental Proprietary Fund— University Only)
Funds Funds Notel Funds Component Units
ASSETS AND OTHER BEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D . $ 87,008 3 8,081 3 55 $ 5300 $ 100444 )
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D e 23,355 176 e 23531 |
Temporary investments—Note D 185,894 1,879,538 1,306,777 328,330 3,700,539
Long-term investments—Note D 61,297 210,258 23,659,644 111,943 24,043,142 *- !
Receivable, net:
Accounts veen 20324 e 23,859 44183 .
Accrued interest 2595 89,665 194,570 101 w65 |
Loans—Note G 1,629 4997484 Cean 26,767 5,025,380 ; i
Lease rental—Note G 2,312,614 13,724 e cees 2326338
Pension contributions e veen 218977 cvee 218,977
Other 5 P P 1467 7472 cy
Due from other funds—Note H . . . 137,071 137,071 :
Due from primary govertiment—Note H . 3,297 103,640 Ceas 106937
Due from other govemmeats—Note F e 38430 30 Ve 38,460 ’
Inventory iaee 7434 Caes 5,164 12,598
Fixed assets—Note E . 3,106,736 13,065 675,573 3,795374
Less: accumulated depreciation PR (1,269,324 ) (6,559 ) (199,031 ) (1474914) |
Other assets . . ceen 69,561 419,825 26,457 515843 .}
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirernent of other bonds 106,537 e vaes e 106,537
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of: . Pl
Other bonds 2312614 ces e e 2312614 i
Other general long-term obligations 175 . P oL 17§ L
TOTAL ASSEYS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 5070368 $ 9,198,563 3 25910200 $ 1,149,001 $ 41328132
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS i }
Liabilities: i
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities : 3 11912 $ 165,459 5 29,223 $ 103857 § 310451
Investment purchases payable ; . R 858,481 ceen 858,481 4
Due to other funds—Now: H e . 137,071 137,071
Due to primary government—Note H 1 40,719 687 7113 48,520
Due to ather govenunents 216 10,506 e AN 10,722
Deferred 2312614 41956 . 33,242 2,393,812
Notes payable—Note J 47,403 628,997 el 29 676,429 1
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note I . 546,000 . A 546,000 !
Other liabilities 107 195,028 el 342,823 537,958 A
Bonds payable—Note K 2,419,151 cans e e 2,419,151
Revenue bonds payable—Noe K ieen 4,625,202 eeen e 4,625,202
Capital lease and other general long-term obfigations—Note K .........occovsomnrcrcmucncs 175 56,237 e 271450 333862
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,791,579 6,316,104 888,391 . 901,585 1289765 | |
Equity and Cther Credits: ;
Contributed capital—Note H e 1,146,652 . 1,146,652 g
Investment in fixed assets e 216,351 216,351
Retained earnings:
Reserved—Note B e 1,286,631 e vees 1,296,631
Unreserved e 433,176 . e 439,176
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances . 254 . feas 32978 33,232
Pension benefits . P 25,021,809 e 25,021,809
Loans receivable s e 28,400 28,400
Long-term investments 61,297 e . A 61,297
Endowment and similar fonds eres e . 45,907 45907
Restricted fund balance 22,333 vees - 26,804 49,137 |
Other—Note B - 73,248 73,248 |
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital projects 125419 . e . 125419
Debt Service:
Retirement of other bonds 59,883 veee e e 59,883
Other 4 4
Undesignated (deficit}—Note C 9,599 e . (176272 ) (166,673 }
TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 218,789 2,882,459 25,021,809 247,416 23,430,473
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS ... $ 5,070,368 $ 9,198,563 $ 25910200 $ 1,149,001 $ 43132 -

— See notes to financial statements. ——
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units

June 30, 1995
COMMONWEAILTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Higher State Public
Educational School
Facilities Ben Franklin/ Building
Authority TRC Partnership Authority Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D ....ooevoveerivnrarensnasanns irbresan ettt § 71,318 3 cee $ 15,690 $ 87,008
Temporary investments—Note D .... 67,981 5,245 112,668 185,894
Long-term investments—Note D .......ccoccemrienncn 52,197 9,100 61,297
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest 1,114 40 1,441 2,595
Loans—Note G... e 1,629 1,629
Lease teRtal—Note G ........ooveeeremirevrenrersmseveeses 1,999,276 313,338 2,312,614
OEDEE wovvarreessns rarsrasassnsseassssns sasssnssssssnsssssns sasmems von e 5 5
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of other bonds ... 103,670 2,867 106,537
Amounts 1o be provided for the retirement of:
Oher BONAS ....ceeoevcerreec et emne et vens 1,999,276 313,338 2,312,614
Other general long-term obligations ..........couur.e.. A 175 173
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS ... $ 4,294,832 § 5285 $ 770251 $ 5,070,368
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... $ 474 $ 4176 $ 7262 $ 11,912
Due to primary government—Note H ... ............ e 1 1
Due to other governments ............... SOOI R 216 ceen 216
Defermed IEVEIUE .....cvveeevresssresncrseseasmresssssssssessssses 1,995,276 313,338 2,312,614
Notes payable—Note J .....coreiirerreercneeeniees ce 47403 47,403
Other HabIHES ..o cceveeeevrcrrrrne e rereserassarsrsssrssesans e 107 107
Bonds payable—-Note K .....o..cvieiensimtssssocrsermsennne 2,102,946 316,205 2,419,151
Capital lease and other long-term
obligations—NOte K...ovvvvereerreriromriscsnsscsnerssasnes 175 175
TOTAL LIABILITIES .........ccoreeeeee 4,102,696 4,352 684,491 4,791,579
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ... e 254 venn 254
Long-term investments . 52,197 9,100 61,297
Restricted fund balance .... 20,448 1,385 22,333
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital PrOJECES «.c.cuceenreriet e e seneceseceseaemres 62,475 62,944 125,419
Debt Service:
Retirement of other bonds ........ccoveeevneee.e. 57,016 ven 2,867 59,883
Other ......coeerecercrrnne e 4 A 4
Undesignated .......cvoieereececere e veceseneeceneesaas 635 8,964 9,599
TOTAL FUND BALANCES......cceocveereemnee 192,136 893 85,760 278,789
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES ... $ 4,294,832 $ 57285

— See notes to financial statements, —
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1
|
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 1
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES |
Governmental Funds—Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Exprassed in Thousands) o }
Pennsylvania o
Higher State Public
Educational School S
Facilities Ben Frankiin/ Building .
Anthority ERC Partuership Anthority Total ca
Charges for sales and services ..... 3 cees $ 1,303 5 1,161 $ 2,464 %
Investment iNCOME .....ceconeeeeeereereeanens 9,125 260 7072 16,457 !
Lease rental principal and interest .........coraeersicaracns 147,842 . 30,989 178,831
Other eeeeremesere s amsaeassasereaseeeerasmaseen s seaee 20,374 - 3,054 23,428 )
i - —r P imtid o
TOTAL REVENUES 177,341 1,563 42276 221,180 Ch
EXPENDITURES: g
Public education ..........coeeeveereeree e 265 . 1413 1,678 i
Economic development and assistance..........overeeeene e 32,960 A 32,960
Capital OUHAY vvcveerereeeecetrescreecrecrsmeinnscsenensnressnenas 245,293 s 28,892 274,185 o~
Debt Service: i
Principal retirement ....... 100,245 e 20,380 120,625 / i
Interest and fiscal charges 112,278 e 16,810 129,088
458,081 32,960 67,495 558,536
{280,740) {31,397) (25219) (337,356)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds ... rneenrserensreressnresseessnrens 271,125 e 38,900 310,025
Refunding bond proceeds ceen cen 27,650 27,680
Operating transfers in—Note H ..o 323,355 e 68,701 392,056 -y
Operating transfers out—Note H (323,355 ceen (68,701) (392,056 ) i
Operating transfer from primary government— }
L1113 > SR . e 32,290 e 32,290
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent .......cocevee.... e A (22,727) (22,727) -
D
NET OFHER FINANCING SOURCES ............ 271,125 32,290 43,863 347,278 i
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ©
AND OTHER USES ....cooiiieccvenercssmremnsserasane (9,615) 893 18,644 9,922 D
i
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1994 .......oeecccernneen 201,751 Cean 67,116 268,867
o
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1995 .. rovrirvnrreraees $ 192,136 $ 893 $ 85760 § 278,789

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1995
_
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1995) Authority Agency Agency Autherity Total
ASSETS
Cash—Note D $ 3,856 $ e 3 2,993 3 1,211 3 21 $ 8,081
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D ..o, R 596 et 22342 417 23,355
Temporary inv Note D 657,904 104,426 542,860 451,979 122,369 1,879,538
Long-term investments—MNote D oo Ceea 107,384 82,335 20,539 . 210,258
Receivables, net:
Accounts 11,472 . 8,852 cens 20,324
Accrued Interest 5,854 3,364 s 78,306 1,641 89,665
Loans—Note G e 475,826 2,067,621 1,566,456 887,581 4,997,484
Lease rental—Note G 13,724 13,724
Due from primary government—Note H .. .......... 3,297 ceas e 3,297
Due from other governments—Note F........ee.e.e. caas 38,430 38,430
Inventory 7434 e e - 7.434
Fixed assets—Note E 2,961,663 6,020 138,885 168 3,106,736
Less: accumulated depreciation ...........ccrerverns (1,237,500) s {2,922) (28,759 ) {143) (1,269,324 )
Other assets 18,873 10,370 12,519 18,387 9,412 T 69,561
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,432,853 $ 71569 $ 2,711,426 $ 2317128 $ 1,021,456 % 9,198,563
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites ... § 75281 $ 334 $ 46,963 5 39,694 $ 3,187 $ 165459
Due to primary govemment—Note H ... 3,99% 43 864 35813 40,719
Due to other GOVETDMEDLS ...oc...eemerereerreanrrcirnns ca 10,504 2 10,506
Deferred revenue . 47,956 47,956
Notes payable—Note T uiircrsisimsinsine 24,000 604,997 628,997
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J ............ e cees e 546,000 546,000
Other liabilities 14,509 9,983 170,536 Ve . 195,028
Revenue bonds payable—Note K 1,205,886 352,952 2,108,569 737,785 220,010 4,625,202
Capital lease obligation—Note K e . 56,237 56,237
TOTAL LIABRILITIES | .........convvcciereainns 1,299,675 363,260 2,350,111 2,044,037 259,012 6,316,104
Equity:
Contributed capital—Note H _......o.ormrmivmrervmvins 171,066 226,350 3,463 745,773 1,146,652
Retained eamings:
Reserved—Note B 962,112 s 103,529 230,990 et 1,296,631
Unreserved RN 126,071 254,323 42,101 16,681 439,176
TOTAL EQUITY ...nvirirrsssicnscssnisnisnss 1,133,178 352,421 361,315 273,091 762,454 2,882,459
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ............ $ 2432853 $ 715,690 $ 2,711,426 § 2,317,128 $ 1,021,466 $ 9,198,553

— See notes to financial statements. —
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§
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE .
Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust Fund — |
Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995
=
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ¥
(Expressed in Thousands)
C
| Proprietary Fund Type E
Pennsylvania i b
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania  Public School
Turnpike Indasirial Housing Education Infrastrmcture Employes’ R
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment Refirement P
(May 31, 1995) Authority Agency Agency Authority System Total t !
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services $ 297599 $ - £ 11,737 $ 312,149 § 1,243 $ e $ 622,728
Tnvestment income s 12,064 28,369 143,432 6,727 1,755,167 1,946,359 ’
Interest on notes and loans 16,916 152,665 e 13,852 U 183,433
Pension contributions e e P R e 1,254,206 1,254,206 i
Other 12,240 1,826 3,252 634 202 e 18,204
TOTAL QOPERATING REVENUES ..o 309,839 30,806 196,023 456,265 22,04 3,009,973 4024930 . |
Vol
OPERATING EXPENSES: .
Cost of sales and services 146,325 2,864 15,095 578,199 2,003 22,492 767978
Interest expense - 20,123 140,836 112,994 11,288 e 285241 |
Depreciation 144,025 e 348 10,197 16 1,397 155,983 i
Provision for uncollectible accounts .. e 2,126 42,1271 e 2,672 - 46,925 =
_Benefit payments and refunds . s I 1,414,687 1,414,687
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ... ......... 290,350 25,113 199,406 701,390 15,979 1,438,576 2,670,814 : }
i
OPERATING INCOME {(LOSS} ... 19,489 5,693 (3,383) (245,125) 6,045 1,571,397 1,354,116 -
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): ) .
Investment income 23,748 23,748 ‘
Interest expense (55,023 ) (55023) '
0il company franchise tax 42,167 . 42,167
Other - 4,568 4568 -
P
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET ...c.ovrrnrrr 10,892 4,568 15460 | |
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY h §
ITEMS 30,381 5,693 (3,383) (240,557 ) 6,045 1,571,397 1,369,576 | }
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers from primary government—Note H 32,500 251,752 9,908 294,160 Rl
Operating transfers to primary government—>Note H ... A - (11,171) (11,171) f
. i
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET .ovovevrreecmersrrnireoee 32,500 251,752 (1,263 ) 282989
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS 30,381 5,693 29,117 11,195 6,045 1,570,134 1,652,565
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment
of debt....... (340) (340} '
NET INCOME 30,381 - 5,693 28,777 11,195 6,045 1,570,134 1,652,225 -
RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE,
JUEY 1, 1994 931,731 120,378 329,075 261,896 10,636 23,451,675 25,105,391
RETAINED EARNINGS / FUND BALANCE, P
JUNE 30, 1995 $ 962112 $ 126,07 $ 357,852 F 273,091 § 16,681 $25,021,809 $26,757,616 !

— See notes to financial statements, —




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Proprietary Funds — Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) _ . Pennsylvania .
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Fennsylvania
Turnpike Industrizl Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Inveshment
May 31, 1995) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total
CASH USED FOR OPERATIONS:
Operating income (loss) $ 19,489 3 5,693 $  (3,383) $ (245,125) $ 6,045 $ (217,281)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (foss)
to net cash provided by {used for) operating activities;
Depreciation 144,025 . 348 10,197 16 154,586
Provision for uncollectible aCCOUMS ..o-rvmveueece e . 2,126 42,127 e 2,672 46,925
Nonoperating revenues ceas e e 4,568 ceen 4,568
Nonoperating revenme—oil franchise tax 42,167 . . e . 42,167
Reclassification of investment income s (12,064 ) (28,369 ) (143432) (6,727) (190,592)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables (3,833} (47,751} (209,563 ) (264,558 ) (118,801 ) (644,506 )
Decrease in due from primary government ........... 8 PO e 982 e 990
Increase in due from other governments ............... ces (9,990) (9,990 )
Increase in inventory (655) (655)
(Increase) dectease in other current assets ........... 1,538 1,666 (99) (2,177) (19) 909
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
account liabilities (19,172) 169 3,110 (978) (179) (17,050}
Increase (decrease) in due 10 primary
government 1,350 (73) 14 6 (2,006) (709)
Decrease in due 10 other governments .. (1,146 ) (2) (1,148)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue ... 1318 (83) 1,235
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities ...... 8,270 5727 10,251 (600 ) e 23,648
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ... 173,698 (50,200 ) (182,181 ) (405,810) (125,129) (589,622 }
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
{USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES ... 193,187 (44,507 } {185,564 ) {650,935) {119,084 ) { 806,903 }
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and
revenue bonds PO 260,221 380,535 640,756
Principal paid on notes payable and revenue bonds .......... (4,376 ) (78,828 ) (52,398) {135,602 )
Operating transfers from primary govemmeni .................. cean 32,500 251,752 284,252
Increase in contributed capital 1,503 1,503
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,376) 215,396 576,889 790,909
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds ... feee 35,000 35,000
Principal paid on revenue bonds (12,266 ) (6,375} (18,641 )
Interest paid on revenue bonds (55023 ) . (35,023)
Increases in contributed capital . 6,539 67,842 74,381
Decrease in contributed capitat ..... . . . . (4,697 ) (4,697 )
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ... (221,370 (635) (8,699) (11) (230,715)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES .. (282,120) (635 ) (8,699) 91,759 {199,695 )
CASH FLOWS FRCM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments (80,988 ) (15,650,192 ) {405,735 ) (1,751,965 ) - (720,133 ) (18,609,013 )
Proceeds for sale and maturities of investments ............. 115,832 15,686,563 347,873 1,688,821 738,183 18,577,212
Investment income 23,748 12,064 28,369 143,432 6,727 214,340
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 58,592 48,435 (29,493 ) 80,288 24,777 182,599
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ..... (30,341 ) (45} (296) 543 (2,548) (33,090}
CASH, JULY 1, 1994 34,197 1,044 3,289 23,010 2,986 64,526
CASH, JUNE 30, 1995 $ 3,856 & 596 3 2,993 $ 23553 $ 438 $ 31436

There were no material investing, capital and financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year,

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, |
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES P
College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA '
(Expressed in Thousands} ey
Unrestricted Restricted Total :
REVENUES: 3
TUHON AN FEES ..evvrvrrrrerrcssessssssensesesrsmssssesssssssasssesssesons $ 377,831 $ ... $ 377,831 1
Government grants and contracts: : %
State and 10021 .....cvecreesiriemrsasrssensinsrsensesanomtsssressansrecs 793 50,316 51,109 v
Federal ...t s s s 1,566 57,305 58,871
Private gifts, grants and contracts 4,288 6,534 10,322 B
INVEStMENE INCOME ....oovrvvererereran . 16,038 242 16,280
Endowment income . e oeeeeeeseesseenene 41 470 511 o
Activities of educational departments ..........cccecnoreecnrsneenns 7.329 5 7,334
OHBET SOULCES c.vvvieieeecesisrcsiesiesosanemsstes sorssrasensres 11,054 440 11,494 y
AlACY ENEIPIESES oo.oceemeeroecrerrscrreseoecsamrsasrosasssesssocorns 129,051 e 129,051 i
TOTAL REVENUES .......ocoooeeecimeesioninrencssensrenes 547,991 115312 663,303
3
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS: E s
EXPENDITURES:
Educational and general:
INSEUCHON oo saresesssecsssseesssssesssnsnsssssesessses e 394,620 5,569 400,189 e
T 1,050 2,329 3379 o
Public SeTvice ..., 8,008 16,246 24,254 -
Academic suppott ......... resarerns s 79,959 2,956 82,915
Student services ....... 63,325 3,889 67,214
QOperations and maintenance of plant 81,214 202 81,416
General institutional support .............. 123,108 3,499 126,607
SHUFEnt &id ....vomeeerrc e irer et s 7,583 80,741 88,324
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL. .............. 758,867 115,431 874298
AUXIBATY EMEIPIISES ..oucrreeereencreemieeressaerrserarasmrerarsesssmsass 113,455 36 113,491
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS ... 872,322 115,467 987,789
MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
Principal and itErest ......oeviriiseseenisscsissesiassirenissssnserssseres 10,037 . 10,037 i
Other ........co.. . 387 12 399
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS .....ccooccrvnmenas 10,424 12 10,436
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY i
TRANSFERS ...oooevovernserenrssnasrassasssomesmmsssenmssssemsssanesens 882,746 115,479 998,225 L
—— i
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND DEDUCTIONS: =
Operating transfers from Primary Government— \f
Note H . 366,399 1,628 368,027 i
Other tEARSTELS ......oeveeeereceeemerim et resseesseresessamerensasaes (51,242) (88) (51,330)
DEQUCHIONS ..o eemrene s eserssearaseesessssensssseessssseassensrsnssssnes e (1,927} (1,927} i
OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER L
TRANSFERS AND DEDUCTIONS, NET ............ 315,157 {387) 314,770
NET DECREASE IN FUND BALANCES ............. $  (19,598) 3 (554) $ (20,152} 1

— See notes to financial statements, —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
NOTE A—FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government
(PG). The PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of the Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards
and organizations which are not legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting
entity includes blended and discretely presented component units. Coroponent units include all
legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion
would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define
financial accountability include appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing
body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
PG. The following organizations are included in the financial reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The SERS is a public
employe retirement system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting
board members and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS
to provide pension benefits to PG employes. The PG makes essentially all employer contributions
to the SERS; PG employes make almost all of the employe contributions to the SERS (virtually all
PG employes are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for all of the SERS pension
obligations. The SERS is a blended component unit because it provides services and benefits almost
exclusively to the PG.

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority (HEFA) (Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited
obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities
for school districts and public and private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely
from lease rental payments from the schools. Upon completion of the lease payment requirements
(and satisfaction of bondholders), the title to the constructed or acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA governing boards; nine
high-ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is
able to impose its will. The PG Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA
projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal dependency). Although neither the PG nor
the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease rental payments from schools),
the PG may take certain actions to satisfy the SPSBA and the HEFA bondholders.

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership (Partnership) (Governmental Fund Type) - The Partnership assists
business through interaction of technology development, modemization and training programs.
Industrial resource centers and technology centers, established through the Partnership, also increase
the competitiveness of businesses. Operations of the Partnership are funded by state appropriations
and private contributions; the Partnership may not issue debt. The Partnership works closely with
the Department of Commerce.

-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1995

NOTE A—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The PG appoints all fifteen voting members of the governing board. All Partnership expenditures
must be appropriated annually by the General Assembly.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The
PHEAA makes grants and leans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending
institutions and post-secondary schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA
grant program; the PHEAA issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds
are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for
lending institutions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA.
A significant PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the
PG is not obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy

bondholders. The PHEAA is fiscally dependent, as the Governor must approve the issuance of its
debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHFA makes
loans to eligible individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs
benefit low and moderate-income individuals and families.

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will.
The Govemnor is required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA
whenever a deficiency exists in the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to
avoid a default on the PHEA debt. This represents a PG moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The
Govemnor must approve the issuance of the PHFA debt.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA
collaborates with local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or
expand the work force, assist targeted economic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made
at lower-than-market interest rates; the interest rates are based on local unemployment and other
economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan repayments
are used for debt service payments. The PIDA operates closely with the Department of Commerce.

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has
provided contributed capital; “excess” PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The PG is
not obligated for the PIDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) —
The PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities,
businesses and nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation
of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST obtains funds through Commonwealth general
obligation bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government and
contributed amounts from Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST debt
service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with the Department of Environmental Resources.

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments.
By issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1995

NOTE A—TFinancial Reporting Entity (continued)

capital, the PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST
debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of
the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created to
construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth. Activities are financed
through user tolls and the issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through
user tolls. The PTC works closely with the Department of Transportation.

The PG appoints all voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all contracts
related to tumpike construction and supervise construction. When all the PTC bondholders have
been satisfied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve
the issuance of all the PTC debt. The PG is not obligated for the PTC debt, but the PG could take
certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The PSERS was
created to administer and provide pension benefits to public school employes in Pennsylvania. The
PSERS covers almost all such employes. Employer contributions are made equally by covered
school districts and by the PG; employes also make contributions.

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by
active or retired public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to
making significant contributions to the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and
other pension benefits. This represents a compelling PG financial burden,

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was
created to provide nstruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen
universities and an administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants
and PG subsidies.. '

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trustees of
universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to
the SSHE. The PG is not obligated for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions to
satisfy bondholders.

Financial Reports

Audited financial statements for all component units are available from the individual organizations.
Interested parties should write to the Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations, Room 207
Finance Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120, to learn how to obtain these reports.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG
appoints all eleven governing board members but is not financially accountable as there is no
imposition of will, no financial benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS.
Local governments are the only participants in the PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are
variations among different municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financially
responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1995

NOTE A—Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement basis. The PMRS is not included in the financial reporting
entity.

. Joint Venture

- The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employes
Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employe
labor unions. The PEBTF establishes and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare
benefits. The PEBTF is administered by a governing board, one half of whose members are each
appointed by the Commonwealth and the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions
control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The
Commonwealth unilaterally pays for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based
on the terms contained in collective bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financiatly
responsible for making contributions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an
equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the PEBTF. Aside from its obligation to make
periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not responsible for any obligations of the
PEBTF.

Excluded Organizations

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary
governments, as they are governed by popularly-elected officials.

Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered
as potential component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These
schools may receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint
a voting majority of governing board members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations.
Although various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly influence these organizations, the PG
does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not fiscally dependent on
the PG. '

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University,
University of Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and Temple University, were considered as potential
component units. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing board at
each university and provides significant operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence
of the PG appointment of a voting majority, the lack of imposition of will and the Iack of fiscal
dependency, these universities are excluded from the financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting
entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related
liabilities and equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the
Commonwealth, funds are established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commonwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the
primary government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue FMs—Awount for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from other
funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources io be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public
organizations (other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing
basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State
‘Workmen’s Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1994 and the State
Stores Fund for its fiscal year ended June 27, 1995.

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on
a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These
include Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds. The State Employes’
Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, the Deferred Compensation Fund and the INVEST Program
for Local Governments, Agency Funds, are included for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1994.

Account Groups
General Fixed Assets Account Group—Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or constructed
for use by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted for in Proprietary

Funds, Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—Accounts for all long-term obligations of the
Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and Unjversity Funds.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Compenent Upits include Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, 2 Pension Trust Fund and College
and University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but are considered part of the
reporting entity. The College and University Funds are as follows:

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities, which
comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with existing authoritative accounting
and reporting principles applicable to colleges and universities. Accordingly, the College and University
Funds are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds—Unrestricted—Account for economic resources of the institution which are
expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the universities and have not
been designated by the governing body for any other purpose.

Current Funds—Restricted—Account for resources received from donors or other outside
agencies that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds—Account for resourcej:fsﬂavailable for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds—Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds and quasi-
endowment funds.

Endowment Funds—Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a condition
of the gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained inviolate and in
perpetuity for investment. Investment earnings may be added to the principal or expended
for restricted or unrestricted purposes, based on thie donor’s stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds—Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of which may
be expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds—Account for resources that the governing board of an institution,
rather than an outside source, has determined will be retained and invested. Since this is an
internal designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend the principal of these
funds at any time.

Plant Funds—Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional properties
and to service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b) the cost of fixed assets and the
source from which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds—Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of an agent
for distribution to designated beneficiaries.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency funds
are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus only current assets
and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of “available spendable resources. ™
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust funds are
recognized in the year that they become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal year-end) to
pay current fiscal year liabilities. The Commmonwealth accrues the following major revenue sources that are
both measurable and available:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods and
services.

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
fiscal year the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures
for principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless resources have
been provided for payment early in the subsequent fiscal year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are
reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather than allocating cost to the fiscal year when the items are
used. Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer i)ension contributions are
reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources.

Although included as a Special Revenue Fund, the State Lottery Fund reports on a basis of accounting which
provides results which are the same as if the full accrual method of accounting were used, except for fixed
assets and related depreciation, which are not reported.

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the flow
of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus
all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund
equity (i.e., net total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year
incurred.

The College and University Funds, a component unit, are reported using the *“financial flow” (spending)
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with the National
Association of College and University Business Officers’ (NACUBQ) College and University Business
Administration (1982) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants” (AICPA) Audits of Colleges
and Universities (1975) for institutions of higher education.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAFP requires the use of estimates and judgements
by management.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary): The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit a
budget annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly
may add, change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retains veto
power over the individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce individual
appropriations, but may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be overridden only by a two-thirds majority
of each House of the General Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentiafly on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by the
General Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the Governor,
plus (less) the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for constitutionally
authorized debt service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authority level). Encumbrances
and expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between departments and any
supplemental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered and
unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the subsequent
year. On the budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year
end for the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and
use taxes and personal income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to
the Motor License Fund, which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but not collected at fiscal year
end. Also, estimated encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable against current year appropriation authority
but expended in the subseguent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the subsequent
year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year appropriation authority. A separate document, “Status
of Appropriations” for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 reports the level of legal control at the appropriation
level for specific departmental programs and functions, and is available from the Commonwealth’s Office of
the Budget.

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal year for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen’s Compensation Adminisiration

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $65.5 million in supplemental appropriations approved
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995.

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such
Special Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by the
Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects.
Appropriations for capital projects normaily remain in effect until the completion of each project uniess
modified or rescinded. ‘

Budget revenues in.the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances-—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates
while expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented
on the budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation of the
differences between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth funds
are pooled by the Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for
receipt and disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial
institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on deposit.

Temporary Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash within twelve months or less are reported
as temporary investments. These investments include cash equivalents, which have original maturity dates of
three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value which would result from changes in interest rates. No investments which could be defined
as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the Statement of Cash Flows; therefore, net changes in cash
only are displayed. Temporary investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported as
long-term investments. Long-term investments are stated at cost for equity securities and at amortized cost for
debt securities, except for various investments of the State Employes’ Retirement System and the Deferred
Compensation Fund, which are stated at market value,

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement type grants are recorded as
revenues when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College and
University Funds. These inventories are valued at the fower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for Proprietary
and weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types, inventories are
accounted for on the purchases method.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on general
fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were acquired
or constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the Commonwealth’s
General Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed by the SSHE subsequent
to June 30, 1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE debt are also reported in the
Commonwealth’s General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment is used to conform to the
enabling legislation for the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated
historical cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives,
The following lives are nsed:

BUIlAINES ..cvrvieriee it i ssss st st st i neens 10-50 years
Improvements other than buildings ........ocvievrvierereeccec e 5-50 years
Furniture, machinery and equipment..........ccoinmeiemecmeennceesenns e veeeeecs 3-25 years

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Amounts Available in Commonwealth Funds: The amount available for retirement of Other General Long-
Term Obligations in the amount of $459 thousand, is reported as part of fund balance, “Reserved for other” in
the General Fund at June 30, 1995.

Insurance Loss Liability; The insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an
Enterprise Fund, is based on historical claims experience. In determining the liability amount, which has been
calculated using a 4% discount rate, consideration was given to the extensive changes in statutory benefits due
to the passage of Act 44 in 1993 and changes in claims management practices adopted by SWIF. SWIF
management expects these legislative and operational changes to substantially reduce claim duration, the
utilization of medical services, and inflation of medical costs. At present, SWIE does not have a significant
amount of empirical data to measure the expected cost reduction for these changes. However, the estimated
impact was incorporated in the actuarial reserve analysis through adjustments to the historical data. These
adjustments were based on limited actual information. Because of the length of time required for the actual
insurance loss liability to be determined and the uncertainty regarding whether the adjusted data will be
reflective of future claim payments, the actual Liability may vary significantly from the estimated amount
provided for in the balance sheet.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/
hospital benefits, employe disability and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in
Note O.

Compensated Absences: Employes earn annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid.
A maximum of 45 days may be camried forward at the end of each calendar year. Employes are paid for
accumuiated annual leave upon termination or retirement.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summafy of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employes earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. A maximum of 300 days may be carried
forward at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employes that meet service, age or disability requirements
are paid in accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 . 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days }
of employment) over 300 13

Accumulated annual and sick leave liability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds and
Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary,
Pension Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year earned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service
costs over varying periods not exceeding 30 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal
year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Reserves and Designations: Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a
specific future use or are not appropriable for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $70.5 million, is applicable to a demand loan to the
State Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $2.3 million, both
Enterprise Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million, a Special Revenue Fund. For its
fiscal year ended December 31, 1994 the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund has reported an advance from the
General Fund in the amount of $2 million.

The $3.3 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the General Fund at June 30, 1995 includes $.5 million
for arbitrage rebate tax, $2.1 million advances to organizations outside the financial reporting entity and $.7
million for other reservations.

The $399 thousand reported as “Reserved for other” in the Special Revenue Funds at June 30, 1995 pertains
to reserves for other receivables in the State Lottery Fund and the Nursing Home Loan Development Fund in
the amount of $8 thousand and $391 thousand, respectively.

The $73.2 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely presented
component unit, at June 30, 1995 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in subsequent fiscal
periods.

Reserved retained earnings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for insurance claims relating
to The State Workmen’s Insurance Fund and loans relating to the Minority Business Development Loan Fund.
Reserved retained earnings reported for Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds are provided
principally for the retirement of revenue bonds relating to the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, student
loans relating to the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, and housing loans relating to the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued).

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency. At June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth has included the following
reservations of retained earnings for the Enterprise Funds and the Discretely Presented Component Unit
Proprietary Funds (expressed in thousands):

Discretely

Presented
i Primary Component

Government Unit
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund ......coeeeevveercrmirsceresinicssann. $102,978 $ R
Pennsylvania Turnpike COMIMESSION ...veeerrerececeeccenemrarnniesanas e 962,112
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .............. ceen 230,990
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZEncy ........coeecevveeveenenceanens ee 103,529
Other Enterprise FUns.......cccevveiesvenemssnssniessssssesssssessesessneas 7,625
TOLAL ... eese et st e co e $110,603 $ 1,296,631

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources. At
June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth has included the following amounts as “Designated—Other” for the General
Fund and Special Revenue Funds (expressed in thousands):

General Fund:
RESITICIEd TEVEIUE ..o eeceeveee e e e sesscseraceensresnns $ 152,471
Continuing PrOETAMS ...cooeececreninensesissnsisienisnscssmnrsees 131,452
Group medical and life insurance .........cc.covveveveerernns 74,076
Tax stabiliZAtION ...cc.ccecreeiicreceemee v ccreerenrrressvnnerarssesses 66,647
OThET st ci s ste st st aeres e rrns s ravneen 18,253
Total General Fund ........cocooeieeeemeecece e $ 442,299
Special Revenue Funds:
Land reclamation ........ccovceerceeceevvenseressnsssanens $ 24954
Recycling programs ........ovessenemisiinnicesiccenceseeens 3,000
Solid Waste ZTants ......coeevierrmresreseesrerrersesssrnssssssnsres 1,162
OHhET ..coveeeesvvescres s s eererssesssss e sas s esarsssessasmensnn 1,716
Total Special Revenue Funds ........ccoouveueerrereens, $ 30,832

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Government.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred io as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was created in
July of 1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits, and
promote greater continuity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax stabilization
reserve is not to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revenues of the General Fund. Revenue is provided through
an appropriation by the General Assembly for transfer to this fund. Whenever the Governor determines a need
to transfer moneys from this fund, a request for an appropriation is made to the General Assembly. An
appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members of the General Assembly. Also,
Act 35 of 1991 provides that in any fiscal year in which there is a surplus of operating furds in the General
Fund, as certified by the Budget Secretary, ten percent of such surplus shall be deposited into this fund. In
addtiion, the proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets of the Commonwealth are also to be
deposited into this fund. For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is reporied as part of the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers)—Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred

as “Operating transfers in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers out” by the disbursing

fund. Legally required transfers between primary government and component unit organizations are

reported when incurred as “Operating transfers from component unit” by the recipient organization

L ' and “Operating transfers to primary government” or “‘Operating transfers to component unit” by the
disbursing fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (coniinued)

Transfers of Expeﬁditures (Reimbursements}—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund
for another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures
in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers—Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance.

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions}—Charges or collections for services rendered by
one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses
of the disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1995 is presented in
Note H.

New Accounting Pronouncements: Effective July 1, 1994, the Commonweaith has included the applicable

disclosure requirements outlined in the Governmentat Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Technical Bulletin .

94-1, “Disclosures about Derivative and Similar Debt and Investment Transactions.” The disclosure information
is presented as part of Note D, Deposits and Investments.

Effective July I, 1994, the Commonwealth has included the disclosure requirements provided in GASB
Statement 10, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Fmancmg and Related Insurance Issues.” The
disclosure information is presented as part of Note O.

Effective July 1, 1994, the Commonwealth adopted GASB Statement 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” For the
proprietary funds reported.as part of primary government, the Commonwealth has elected not to apply
Statements and Interpretations issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board after November 30, 1989.
All five discretely presented proprietary component unit organizations have elected to follow the same policy.

GASB Statement 23, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refundings of Debt Reported by Proprietary
Activities,” is effective during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. The Commonwealth’s primary government
does not include any proprietary funds which may issue bonded debt and none of the five discretely presented
proprietary fund component unit organizations advance refunded any debt during the fiscal year ended June
30, 1995.

Totals—Memorandum Only: The “Totals (Memorandum Only)” celumns represent an aggregation of the
combined financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical
purposes. These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available
to or used by the Commonwealth. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of the totals.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C—FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS/RESTATEMENTS

The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $12.4 million at June 30, 1995.
This deficit results from increasing expenditures for benefits for the elderly and stable lottery revenues. The
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $3.3 million at June 30,
1995. The Workmen’s Compensation Surpersedeas Fund and the Home Investment Trust Fund, both Special Revenue
Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $2.4 million and $23 thousand, respectively, at June 30, 1995.

The Capital Debt Fund, the Water Facilities L.oan Redemption Fund and the Local Criminal Justice Sinking Fund,
Debt Service Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $553 thousand, $2 thousand and $32 thousand, respectively,
at June 30, 1995. None of these debt service funds reported fund balance designations.

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$413,900 at June 30, 1995. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance of $129,352 at June 30, 1995.
Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $548,024, designations for Capital Projects
of $48,696 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $413,900, for a total combined fund balance of
$182,820 at June 30, 1995 (amounts in thousands).

The Minority Business Development Fund and the Storage Tank Loan Fund, Enterprise Funds, reported deficit
retained earnings of $27.9 million and $44 thousand, respectively, at June 30, 1995.

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, reported a current funds unrestricted fund
balance deficit of $228,273 (in thousands) at June 30, 1995.

The previously reported fund balance of the General Fund was $892,940 at June 30, 1994. This amount has been.
decreased by $116,659 and is being restated at $776,281 as of July 1, 1994 to recognize previously unreported
revenues and expenditures as follows (amounts in thousands): :

Fund balance previously reported at June 30, 1994 ..o $ 892,940
Plus: Intergovernmental reVenue INCTEASE .-......oveerererreesreeesniessnesennns 118,480
Less: Public health and welfare expenditure increase .........o.o.e......... (235,139

Fund balance, as restated, July 1, 1994 .......ooeireeeecceeceite e resere s $ 776,281

The components of fund balance which are affected by the reduction of $116,659 are: a reduction in previously
reported unreserved fund balance designated for “other” from $448.,928 to $411,431 and a reduction in prevmusly
reported unreserved/undesignated fund balance from $79,162 to zero (amounts in thousands.)

"The previously reported deficit retained earnings for the Minority Business Development Fund, a proprietary fund,
was $17,157 at June 30, 1994. This deficit amount has been increased by $6,100 and is being restated at $23,257
(amounts in thousands} as of July 1, 1994 to recognize a higher allowance for loan losses.

The previously reported assets and liabilities of the agency funds was $883,010 at June 30, 1994. These amounts

have been increased by $116,452 and are being restated at $999,462 (amounts in thousands) as of July 1, 1994 to
recognize the assets and liabilities of the INVEST Program For Local Governments not previously reported.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D —DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Authority for deposits and investments: The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301.1 and 505
of the Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, PL. 343, No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must be held in insured
depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The Treasury Department may invest in direct
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One” by
Moody’s Credit Service or the equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch’s Rating Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvania banks
or savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Government obligations that are held by the Treasury Department at the
Federal Reserve bank; banker’s acceptances; and up to a maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment (other than
common stock) not otherwise specifically anthorized. The Treasury Department may also participate in reverse repurchase agreements.

The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated short and long term investment pools to maximize efficiency, liquidity and yield for
Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report amounts invested in such pools as temporary and/or Iong term investments; the pools
themselves are not financially reported. The Treasury Department has also established an investment pool for local governments. Although local
governments are not included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting enuty, this particular pool, the INVEST Program for Local Govern-
ments, is reported as an agency fund.

The deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds included in primary government and component units are established by authority
other than the Fiscal Code. Enabling statutes generally provide deposit and investment authority for component units. Further, specific bond and
trust indentures, as well as formal governing board resolutions, provide deposit and investmnent requirements. Allowable investments of compo-
nent units do not significantly differ from those investments of the Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory
authority, the State Employes’ Retirement System and the Public School Employes’ Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in
common and preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years. These two Funds also
participate in a securities lending program, sponsored by the Treasury Department, and utilize financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk.
Specific disclosures about Pension Trust Fund investments are included in this Note.

Deposits: The Treasury Department controds the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included in the primary government.
Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of their own funds, typically through a trustee. The
following summaries present the amount of primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth) deposits which are
fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the Commonwealth oz its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits
which are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institation’s trust department or agent in the Commonweaith’s name
(Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the pledging firancial institution or the pledging institution’ 5
trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 3) at June 30, 1995 {expressed in thousands).

Primary Government
Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount
CSH c-ioeerneeeersn s s sisaen s aressssseresaensssrsnrasiensens $ 27,009 $ 8378 $ 8925 $ 4312 % 108,156
Cash with fiscal AEEDES ..veveeeeemecraeeceeeeeereeecnnnae 1,906,694 e 12,406 1,919,100 1,919,100
Certificates of deposit and related items .............. 135,098 7,611 35,187 177,896 177.896

The above-listed $177,896 in certificates of deposit and related items is reported as part of primary government temporary investments at June 30,
1995.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Total Carrying
Category 1 Category 2 Category3 Bank Balance Amount

Cash .. % 4,153 $ 1,010 $103,321 $ 108484 $ 100,444
Cash w1th ﬁscal agents 22,977 s 560 23,537 23,531

Investments: The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth)
categorize investments according {o the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealth. Category 1 includes investments that are insured,
registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the Counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department or its agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments

—34—

]
-




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)

Primary Government

have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership
interests in mutual funds and in morigage, real estate and venture capital pools. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed
by the Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1995 (expressed in thousands).

All primary government investments susceptible to credit risk are in category one.

Carrying Market
Amount Value
Common and preferred SLOCK ....oiiemmrreraserseecmemesesermmssessmsssseesessiesesesae $ 2410475 $ 2411,076
Corporate bonds and notes ........ 2,038,950 2,023,192
International fixed income ..... 1,130,969 1,130,969
Repurchase agreements ......... 3,032,399 3,032,399
State and municipal obligations.... 543,043 543,043
U.S. Government ObLIZAHONS ...ovcvcoiecrreemmsmrsssmrcsiinssssmserssssiisnssinsecossrssses 2,113,480 2,099,613
U.S. Government agency obligations ... 1,171,682 1,159,020
TOALS vuvueverieisereorerrasrasentessnenssamemsmassassseasrassasesseseanassssmsnssssssssaanssamssssis 12,440,998 12,399,312
Add invested amounts not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investments owned by the State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS)
at December 31, 1994:
MOTTEAZE JOAMIS «1veverrerrreneesessrcrnecammcnssrsemcamarasnensremesescaebessstsesssonssseseneesone 642,265 642,265
MULDAL TONKS ...vevevsereerereassrnsereeseemrmeesmeeasmeseem e mrarms s reeestsbese s ememsmeneensste 4,323,254 4,323,254
Real e51ALe ..cuurereeeeecrecene 988,568 988,568
VEOIUTE CAPIAL ....ceceeeccescecmsiss s nersssss e masssirsasns rasssasasasensemsassnansnsan 231,819 231,819
Securities loaned by SERS at December 31, 1994:

U.S. Government securities ... 311,038 311,038
Corporate bonds and notes ....... 16,500 16,500
Common and preferred stocks .. 2,105 2,105
International SECUTIIES .v.rrureeecrereeeee i cmceee e meeeneesemee e censestesasasrass serasas sce 93,076 93,076

Investments owned by the Statutory Liguidator Fund at June 30, 1995:
ADNUIHES oeeeersreeececreeceaecserasssnsormsssss fesassssssssasss sasarassansarasressassanassassaesin 860 860
Insurance comparny subsidiaries ... 4,150 4,150
LUOAIIS cuvvveverersrermrancassencrresrsasaemsosmsteemsaemsomesorancetbebossas ot sissssnsss sonsssessassts 1,760 1,760
MOITZARE LOANE vvoverecrrrrersssmecsvecmrmsesmcssesescssmesessemeomereecesbesst shs st venensics 36,326 36,326
Partiership iMELESES ... coveeeerrerereereserrersenssrerranessrerssrmesesasemesmensssemmrmess 443 443
19,093,162 19,051,476
Certificates of deposit and related items .........cc.oiercrrronriesssesssiscsssncean 177,896 177,856
Total temporary and long-term iNVESIMENS .......coceeveemreeeceseesisissmmneras $ 19,271,058 $ 19,229,372

The above-listed $177,896 in CD’s are reported as investments at June 30, 1995 but are treated as deposits for a determination of the level of credit
risk associated with them.

The State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 97 percent of the common and preferred stock, 80 percent of
the corporate bonds and notes, 98 percent of international fixed income, 95 percent of mortgage loans and 100 percent of the real estate reported in
the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for investments during the vear ended June 30, 1995,



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments (continued)
Securities Lending:

The State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) participates in a security lending program, whereby certain securities are transferred to an independent
broker/dealer in exchange for collateral equal to at least 102 percent of the market vale of securities on loan (reverse repurchase agreements). As
the SERS represents only one of several Commonwealth agencies participating in the security lerding program and, as collateral received by the
custodial agent in exchange for SERS securities is not specifically identifiable by agency, the SERS does not record the receipt of such collaterat or
the comresponding liability to return collateral via repurchase of securities under loan. Securities under loan, however, are maintained on the SERS’s
financial records and have been classified accordingly in the summary of investment risk. The SERS has minimized its exposure to credit risk due
to broker/dealer default by having the custodial agent determine daily that required collateral meets 102 percent of the market value of securities on
loan. The SERS has not experienced any losses due to credit risk on security lending activity since implementation of the program.

These financial instraments necessarily involve counterparty credit exposure. The policy of the SERS is to require collateral to the maximum extent
possible under normal trading practices. In the event of counterparty default, the SERS has the right to use the collateral to offset the loss associated
with the replacement of the exchange agreements. Specific credit limits have been established for each counterparty and are monitored and adjusted
daily. The limits are developed based on the counterparty’s creditworthiness, overall industry and other considerations, such as the length and legal
structure of the contract, type of collateral advanced, and historical volatility indicators. )

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk:

The SERS uses financial instruments including forward exchange contracts to manage market exposure. These instruments are integral to the asset
allocation, risk management and control systems of the SERS’s investment management strategies and practices. These strategies include holdings
of certain foreign debt and equity securities which amounted to approximately $1.6 billion at December 31, 1994. As a result of these sirategies, the
SERS enters into forward contracts as hedges relating to identifiable currency positions. Those instruments are designed to minimize exposure and
reduce risk from foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts which hedge foreign currency assets are
recognized as incurred. Such amounts effectively offset gains and losses on the foreign currency assets which are hedged. The SERS does not enter
into forward contracts on a speculative basis.

At December 31, 1994, the SERS ‘had contracts maturing through April 5, 1995 to purchase or sell foreign currency as follows {expressed in
thousands):

Buy at Sell at Net (Payable)}
Spot Rate Spot Rate Receivable
DEULSCHETNATK ....vcveceruraeresenssieessssesasssssanssss vosssssersonsansssosssmmasassesenssens $ 13456 $ 17,320 $ (3,873)
French FIanc ... s naemnnes 13,511 27,912 (14,401)
R 12,935 {12,935)
. 19,001 {19,001 )
T442 12,842 (5400)
$ 34,409 $ 90,018 $(55,610)

Based on limited partmership agreements in the venture capital and alternative investment portfolios, SERS is obligated to invest specific capital
amounts committed to these managers. At December 31, 1994 and June 30, 1995, the amount of capital committed for investment is approximately
$225 million and $420 million, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investments {continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

| Carrying Amount E—
Market
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total . Value
COMMETCIAl PAPET .eoeeecererecreereivsasssesssmsssessrsasssnns 5 e $ 25267 $ 65379 $ 90,646 3 90,646
Common and preferred stock ..... evereresbvaretensserons 14,389,523 e 944 14,390,467 17,872,491
Corporate bonds and notes .. 1,415,875 15,298 51,755 1,482,928 1,504,197
International fixed income................ . 2,644,353 e . 2,644,353 2,741,216
Mortgage backed securities ......coomneriesnrscasenneas 2,020,593 cee 96,945 2,117,538 2,143,479
Repurchase agreements .......oissemssisssssmssssinss 163,076 427,044 180,236 770,356 770,356
State and municipal obligations e 7.400 18,174 25,574 26,618
U.S. Government obligations .......cceweeevcrrarncrnaes 185,892 373,489 19,285 578,666 606,480
U.S. Government agency obligations .........ccecuee.. 1,791,488 cea 184,617 1,976,105 2,040,905
Various short-term investments ..........eeccvecsmcerees 712,362 cee 38,322 750,684 751,300
L1 $ 23,323,162 $ 848,498 $ 655,657 24827317 28,547,688
Investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investments owned by the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership in Pennsylvania Treasury
investment pool at JUne 30, 1995 ...t s e s s s srseaera s v 5,245 5,245
Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority in Pennsylvania
Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1995 ... s s s 58,752 58,752
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at
June 30, 1995:
IVIOMEY THATKEE .euvvivrrerraenmenrmemesrasemecemsemememesadbsd bobashheds 1 bbb s 4 bbb o408 b S 440 Abb 4442 R 000 FhRARAS L RTS8 sb Lot sRRSSbRS S 50,026 50,026
Investment agreements ..... 94,357 94,357
Pennsylvania Treasury rnvestment pool 134,716 134,716
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1995:
Investment agreements 68,412 68,412
Mutual fFunds .......eeemeeenseersremseriseeccsrenseescnes 87,572 87,572
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool 3,159 3,159
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1995 ..ot 863 863
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority in
Pennsylvania Treasury investment poot at Jane 30, 1995 ..o 86,835 86,835
Investments owned by the Public School Employes’ Retirement System at
June 30, 1995:
Farmiand investments 76,490 84,107
Limited partnerships ..o iisincninsiniiinres 75,000 83,408
Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool ........ 640,670 640,670
Private placements, fixed income and equrty 304,056 328,527
REAl ESLALE «....eeeeceeecressctsersnscs e snsesns s senssesestrassa e 1,007,968 1,006,119
Short term investments —— health insurance account.... 31,167 30,996
Venture Capital ......oeweeircssmsmsescssmeem e rememsesnsmsssibes 191,076 255442
TTOEALS .ouvrsrseemasiesesimeesessvassssassessesrsntssesassssastanssatsessnas sesssssesmns nassnssastasaseasasssasanssnsssasssscanssnases § 27,743,681 $ 31,566,894

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent of the common and preferred
stock, 95 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 95 percent of mortgage backed securities and 100 percent of the real estate reported in
the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30,
1995.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D — Deposits and Investmeénts (continued),

Securities Lending:

The Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) participates in a security lending program, whereby, the custodian, acting as the lending
agent, loans securities to independent brokers or dealers in exchange for collateral in an amount not less than 102 percent of the market value of any
securities loaned except for non-U.S. corporations for which 105 percent of the market value is required. Collateral is marked-to-market daily. If the
market value of the collateral held falls below the minimum guidelines for securities loaned, additional collateral is obtained. In lieu of securities or
‘cash, the borrower may deliver to the lending agent irrevocable bank letters of credit for collateral. If the collateral obtained consists in whole or in
part of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with reinvestment guidelines approved by the Commonwealth.

Under the securities lending program, the lending agent provides indemnification to the Commonwealth if the borrowers fail to return the underlying
securities (and the collateral is inadequate to replace the loaned securities) or fail to pay income distributions on them. For the year ended June 30,
1995, there were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions, no borrower or lending agent default losses, and no recoveries of prior
period losses.

The Commonwealth will eam the greater of 85 percent of income realized from security lending by the lending agent or $1 million per month. The
PSERS’ income from securities lending represents its pro-rata share from participating in the program.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk:

The PSERS enters into a variety of financial contracts, which include options and futures. The PSERS also enters into foreign exchange positions,
such as forward and spot contracts to hedge foreign currency exposure. The PSERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The
contracts are used primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to enhance performance are fully
collateralized, eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The PSERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties
to financial instruments. As the PSERS generally enters into transactions only with high quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty
nonpetformance on derivative financial instruments have been incurred. Legal risk is mitigated through careful selection of executing brokers and
an extensive process of review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that future changes in market conditions may
make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed in accordance with risk Hmits set by senior management, by buying or selling
instruments or entering into offsetting positions.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS’ involvement in the various types and uses of derivative financial
instruments and do not measure the PSERS’ exposure to credit or market risks and do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties.
The amnounts exchanged are determined by reference to the notional amounts and the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the number of open contracts, and aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS’ derivative financial
instruments at June 30, 1995 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Notional or
Number of contractual
contracts amount

FULHIES CONTACES ...vcvvveeenrscesseeeesesssesssssmsansssesarssssrossssssossesses 11,558 $ 1,638,305
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts ... 676 6,136,015
Options—calls purchased ......... rtrerre et e e e aeens 74,155 117,152
Options—puits purchased ... 86,180 86,122
Options———Calls SOI ... veaenas 125,352 1,038,456
Options—puts 50l ... st st 90,376 366,004

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a specific financial instrument at a
predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying) principal value and do not involve an
actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a
counterparty will not pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying security at a set price during a
period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy cor sell the underlying security if the option purchaser chooses to exercise. The
PSERS only utilizes exchange listed index and equity options and primarily call options which settle in cash. The PSERS has authorized investment
managers to write covered call stock index options up to an amount of $1,775 million of the equity portfolio.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D - Deposits and Investments {continued).

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at an agreed-upon
price and settlement date. These contracts primarily consist of forward contracts. The $6,136 million of foreign currency contracts outstanding at
June 30, 1995 consists of “buy” contracts of $2,504.5 million, which represent the U.S. doilar equivalent of commitments to purchase foreign
currency commitments, and “sell” contracts of $3,631.5 million, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to sell foreign currencies.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s} and interest-only strips in part to
maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates. These securities are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result
from 2 drop in interest rates. The carrying value and market value of CMOs at June 30, 1995 is $932.5 million and $943.3 million, respectively. The
carrying value and market value of interest-only strips at June 30, 1995 is $46.1 million and $39.9 million, respectively.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE E— FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1995 is as follows (expressed in thousands):

—— Primary Government | Discretely Presented S
Component Units
College
Internal  Pension General Fixed and
Enterprise  Service Trust Assets - Proprietary Fiduciary  University
Funds Funds Fund Account Group Funds Fund Funds
Land .oreccecereinenr. $ 323 8 6 % ... $ 241,265 $ 75529 § $ 5206
Buildings 3,181 3,699 2,693,616 388,095 288,576
Improvements other
than buildings ......... 18,004 832 196,895 23,315 38,684
Fumniture, machinery
and equipment ........ 66,736 55,042 759 552,997 172,216 13,065 312,104
Turnpike
infrastructure........... 2279759
Construction in
PIOZIEss ceas 166 ceis 231,257 167,822 31,003
Total ...oveeeeeees $ 88334 $ 59745 § 759 $3,916,034 $3,106,736 $ 13,065 $675573

Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
19%4 Additions Retirements 1995

Land ..covcinec it e ssssesasones $ 238,843 3 2,460 $ 34§ 241,269
L S1011e 110 IS ——— 2,667,274 26,342 2,693,616
Improvements other than buildings ...... 196,088 807 196,895
Furniture, machinery and equipment.... 503,472 68,281 18,756 552,997
3,605,677 97,890 18,790 3,684,777
Construction in Progress ....voeereecens 88,645 167,920 25,308 231,257
TOLALS ..oevvesreeenerenmmieeerssssssssassanes $ 3,694,322 $ 265810 $ . 44,008 $ 3916,034

Interest costs of $14.5 million were capitalized for the Pennsyivania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component

unit Proprietary Fund, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995.

The Commonwealth’s initizl valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 using appraisal and historical
cost recenstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are valued at cost. At June 30,

1995 the amount of general fixed assets related to the initial valuation amounts to $2,004 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1995 is composed of the following

(expressed in thousands):
Expended
Project Through Authorization
Project Axthorization June 30, 1995 Available

Department of Corrections Institutions .......cciveane $ 321,494 § 137,162 $ 184,332
Colleges and Universities .....coversrenivensesnsssersnrosasees 257,278 39,349 217,929
Capitol Complex Buildings ........covivnerininniiniinne 123,422 3,238 120,184
DPepartment of Public Welfare Institutions ... 54,739 13,920 40,819
Veteran Homes and Military Armones .....oceevveeveene 53,740 6,298 47,442
Department of Environmental Resources ................. 32,082 10,939 21,143
HiStoriCal SIES ..eoveireierecrcreeemere e careeesmecsenssenseraease 27,742 2,667 25,075
Department of Transportation .... 25,982 8,122 17,860
L0111 VOSSOSO 47,109 9,562 37,547

T 7 S U, $ 943,588 $ 231,257 % 712,331

NOTE F— DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government for various department

programs.
00—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G— TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Taxes Receivable; Taxes receivable at June 30, 1995 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Special Trust and

General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
Sales and USE v § 494171 $ 15748 § .oo. % 509919
Unemployment compensation ... e .. 389,960 389,960
Personal iNCOME ....o.c.cooceireeerrnrnrcrsrsnrsesesssssesessassnss 186,370 . Cae 186,370
COIPOLAON ..o ccrreresrerrese e srasaseessarscmsansenne 79,888 ce cees 79,888
Liquid fuels.... e 57,199 2,596 59,795
20,544 60,518 ceen 81,062

5 780973 § 133465 § 392,556 $ 1,306,994

Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1995 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Discretely Presented
Primary Government Component Units
College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  Proprietary  University
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Mortgage 10ans .........cco.ocoemeeecicnnesesecesesensesemsrannas L) oo, 8 cee. 32176385 % R
Student 10ANS .....o.coeeeeeeceeere e e e s R . 1,579,781 34,542
Business development 10ans .......coceeeveereeesmsressiannees 63,675 209,808 494,113
Water and sewer system 10ans ..o.ooveveeevrcrienisnceceens 26,702 - 890,253
Volunteer fire company 10ans ........cooeensvessvensreeees e 63,521 R
Other notes and 10ans ........ceeveuee 6,389 12,544
96,766 285,873 5,140,532 34,542
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts ........... 6,922 40,304 143,048 7775
Notes and loans receivable, net .....oeecveecveceennes $ 89844 5 245569 $ 4997484 § 26,767

Discretely presented component unit governmental funds reported $1,629 thousand of loans to school districts at June 30,
1995.

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and State Public School Building
Authority, discretely presented governmental fund component units, finance construction projects for educational institutions
through the issuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and interest of which are paid through the collection of
lease rental payments related to the projects. The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, finances construction
projects for educational institutions through the issuvance of General Obligation Bonds, the principal and interest of which
are paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposits in their related Debt Service Funds. Also, at the
conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease
arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and associated deferred revenue equal to
the principal lease payments to be received are recorded in the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds relating to these
arrangements. For the Capital Facilities Fund, the total minimum lease payments to be received was $4 million and the
present value of the lease payments was $3 million at June 30, 1995, the difference representing interest of $1 million. For
discretely presented component units, total minimum lease payments was $4,010 millien, the present value was $2,313
million and interest was $1,697 million. A discretely presented proprietary fimd component unit reported a lease rental



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G— Faxes, Loans and Lease Rental Receivables (continued)

receivable of $13.7 million at June 30, 19935, Minimum Jease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1995

are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Discretely Presented
Fiscal Year Ending Governmental Fand
June 30 Primary Government Component Units

1996. . .. $ 482 $ 190,095
1997.... 274 213,074
1998. ... 270 197,823
1999. ... 268 194,598
2000. . 267 196,192

NOTE H—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY

TRANSFERS____

A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1995 is

as follows (expressed in thousands):
FUND TYPE/FUND

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Special Revenue:
State Lottery Fund ...ttt
State Racing Fund ..o oececriceceeee
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund
Agricultural Conservaticn Easernent Fund
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fond .......oovvevevnincncnns
Motor License Fund ........... temerannns
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund
Other FUNds ...oovverriemiccrr e st et i e

Debt Service:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority

Redemption FUnd ...

Tax Note Sinking Fund .....

Other Funds

Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund......cvevvreceeseee e
Other FUNdS ...cccoiriicoimimirmnsnsrssrnssmisesessssiseassssvessassreransnas

Enterprise:
State Stores Fund ......c.ccceoveremercerseensesessessnssnsersressessanes
State Workmen’s Insarance Fund ....
Rehabilitation Center Fund .............
Other FUNAS «.......ooviiiiersin v risssessnsssssmssessssasees vassssseseessnnes

Internal Service:
Purchasing Fund ...
Manufacturing Fund ... s

Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Fund ..o
Other FUnds ..ot vrsnssnsnsn s

Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement System.........oeooeeoveveerenenneee.

Agency:
ANFUNAS oot s s

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ..o

DUE FROM DUE TO
OTHER COMPONENT OTHER CoMPONENT
Funps Unrts Funps Unrrs

3 34664 § 2,608 $122,557 $103.642
581 17.407
e 7,792
17,000 10
10,727 A
21,667 253
4,186 1,269 20,281 3,531
25 . 3,349 eae-
6,580 e 9,307 v
60,766 1,269 58,399 3,531
35,753
cen . 1,874
233 e e
233 35,753 1,874
1,173 879
e 21
1,173 200
111 16,698
226 6,701
2,714 155
316 2,033
3,367 25,587
13,311 977 3,418
2,348 30 194
15,659 1,007 3,612
3,368 283 cees
3 e 119
3,371 283 119
70,351 8,901 156
5,488 613
$195072 § 49,821 $213,817 $107,173

|
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS

Governmental ...o.o.ooeveeeeee e e

Proprietary:

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ...........
Pennsylvania Tompike Commission .......cecvrcvererceresserernnns

Other Funds .......oeoeeeeneee S

Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement System

College and UnIVETSILY .....ocovivesieeemeeeceseremseecrcaeeesceeeereeees

TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED

DUE FROM DUE TO
OrHeR PRIMARY OTHER PRIVARY
Funps  GOVERNMENT Funps GOVERNMENT

$ ... % $ $ 1
35,813

3,297 3,999

907

3,297 40,719

103,640 687

137,071 137,071 7.113

$ 137,071  $ 106,937 % 137,071 $ 48,520




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continned)

The amount of total interfund receivables of $488,901 does not agree with total interfund payables of $506,581
at June 30, 1995 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined balance sheet at
June 30, 1995. The amounts shown as interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension
Trust Fund, and the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, are as of their fiscal year end of December
31, 1994. The amounts shown for the State Workmen's Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, and the Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit proprietary fund, are as of their respective fiscal
year ends of December 31, 1994 and May 31, 1995. The following presents a reconciliation of interfund
accounts reported at June 30, 1995 (expressed in thousands) and those amounts which would have been
reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end:

Due from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1995 ............ $ 332,143
Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
JUne 30, 1995 ... e e e s s et sar s 106,937
Due from component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1995 ... 49,821
Interfund receivables — Combined Balance Sheet ............... 488,901
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in receivables from
June 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ... ranens 236
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund increase in receivables from
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ...t sttt 443
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ..o rvrrsresssa e rassns 11,807
TOTAL INTERFUND RECEIVABLES ..., $ 501,387
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30,1995 ................. $ 350,888
Due to primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
JUDE 30, 1995 ...t e s s b s 48,520
Due to component units - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1995 ........ 107,173
Interfund payables — Combined Balance Sheet ................... 506,581
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ...t vesneeeaes (81)
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in payables from
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ... e 193
State Workmen'’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ...t eeseese et (6,135)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in payables from
June 1, 1995 through June 30, 1995 ........eeeeerrrverveessersvsenere snsserienseseses 829

TOTAL INTERFUND PAYABLES ........ccoorreeceececinneenans $ 501,387

At June 30, 1995 the General Fund has reported Advances to Other Funds of $70,475 (in thousands). Specifically,
this amount kas been advanced as follows: $66,000 to the State Stores Fund, $2,300 to the State Workmen'’s
Insurance Fund, both Enterprise Funds and $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. These
amounts have been reported by the respective owing Funds as Advances from Other Funds, except for the
State Workinen’s Insurance Fund, which has reported an advance of $2,000 for its fiscal year ended December
31, 1994.

At June 30, 1995 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has reported an advance to
other funds of $3,000 (in thousands). This amount was advanced to the Air Quality Improvement Fund, a
Special Revenue Fund, which has reported an advance from other funds of $3,000 (in thousands).

—44—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

[, A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 is as follows {expressed in thousands):

. OFPERATING TRANSFERS
5 FUND TYPE/FUND From To
! COMPONENT COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT In UniTs Our Unmrs
General ......... . . $ 341,328 5 e $ 603819 $ 683,224
Special Revenue:
State Lottery Fund 347 i 238,856
Motor License Fund ........cooericcnceeincannnns 27,103 cea 492,439
Pharmaceutical Assistance FEnd .......ccoeoeveemeiecressnsssnsressnssnssanas 217,000 ceen
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund ...........coooooooeees, 28,446 - R
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund ... 41,799 - - 1,040
Nursing Home Loan Development Fund.......... ceen AN 17,238
Other Funds aesmett bvsatenstsbs benenene : 9,104 e 19,632
323,799 e 769,205
Debt Service: .
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund .........ccooovveeveveenecnnae 27,708
Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund ........oeovvvvrvevessserermrenns 19,331
Capital Debt Fund ......cicccciucivnsminissneiinntvmrsee e scsmssssnsscssensarenes 646,111
Pennsylvania Infrastucture Investment Authority
Redemption FURA ...t e esaeee e s 20,880
Local Criminal Justice Sinking Fund .........ccoovevvcccmiccemiiicrnn 10,845
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund . - 13,311 e ceas
OUhEL FULAS .vovveverevesessnnnrssnmsrsnresssssmsasmssssns sessns sassansssssssssasssassns 27,559 - 1,938
765,745 R 1,938
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities Fund........ccocvcrmvnverrsrmssesmmssesnssssssssinans et . 25,450
Land and Water Development Fund ..., ceen cee 489
25,939
Enterprise:
State Stores FUN ...t sree et s rrasrsr s sessanenes . ceas 61,069
e Expendable Trust:
Taition Payment Fund ............ . - e e 6
Pension Trust: .
State Employes’ Refirement SYSIEM ...ov.vveervorrersoresssressmasrasmnsess caas 6,677 e 6,671
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ...coooietiriereneerrnns $ 1,430,872 3 6,677 $ 1461976 $ 689,895
OPERATING TRANSFERS
From To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PriMaRY Provary
COMPONENT UNITS In GOVERNMENT Our GOVERNMENT
Governmental FURAS ..ococeeiee et s eeseeeseesssort enenesmonne § 39205 $ 32,290 $ . 392,056 %
Proprietary:
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency .......cccu.e.... R 251,752
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Aency ... remesrersmmsmrens RN 32,500
284,252
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes’ Retirement SYStem .......cocoveceurerveecnnes e 9,908 v 15171
College and University Funds ... e e 373,682
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS .....ooiicremecens s sssiss e ceenanns $ 392056 $ 700,132 $ 392056 % 11,171

—_—



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

NOTE H—Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continned) B

The amount of total operating transfers in of $2,529,737 does not agree with total operating transfers out of $2,555,098 for
the fiscal year ended June 30,1995 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the financial reporting
entity. The amounts shown as operating transfers for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, are
for the fiscal year ended Becember 31, 1994, The following presents a reconciliation of operating transfers reported in the
financial statements to those transfer amounts which would have been reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end
(expressed in thousands);

A
]
L

Operating transfers in - all funds ..o eceerensresneses § 1822928
Operating transfers from primary government ... 700,132 :
Operating transfers from component UNIES ..............ccoevienrivrcesincrssrecsmim s 6,677 : }f
Sub-total interfund operating transfers in ..o sensarees _ 2,529,737 .
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in operahng transfers in R
for the period January 1, 1995 to June 30, 1995 ... e nn e ssensrenenn 4494
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS IN......cooceiminmcrreensrisrannnin $ 2534231 a
Operating transfers out - all funds ...........corvericrreeciesnnc s e seseses e seneas $ 1,854,032 ; %
Operating transfers {0 primary ZOVernment .................coowveeceeenrremresscesessrssen: 14,171 L
Operating transfers to component units ................ 689,893
Sub-total interfund operating transfers out 2,555,098 _ S
Transfer to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (during its fiscal year ended Coe
December 31, 1994) which was reported as a reduction in provision for . ) !
UNCOHECHDIE BCCOUNLS ..o sttt e e ety sasas reaases s anarasenns (24,104} o
State Employes’ Retirement System increase in operating transfers out P
for the period January 1, 1995 to June 30, 1995 .......covumverremrerermmrerssssssssmssenssssnsssns 3,237 g
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT .......ccoviviieiencrereiessesesersesensronresesssossares $ 2,534,231
Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—~primary government and diseretely presented ;
component units—during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands): o
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: i
Increases in contributed capital—primary government.... : 3 7,525
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component umt 1,503 '
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 7
Increases in contributed capital—primary SOVEIRMENE ..........cceceeeverrerseroenrresscsnens 32,000 i
Decrease in contributed capital—primary GOVEINMENL .......c.occevecvererseserererensressenrans (13,700) Pl
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units ... 74,381
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units (4,697)
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented COMPONEnt UNILS ..o errrsseririees $ 97,012

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental residual equity _
transfers (amounts in thousands): 2

Net governmental residual equity transfers .. $ 34,570 oy
add: general obligation bond proceeds and federal funds received P
by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment AUHOMLY ......ocovcrveerecrrrecerones 58,777 ¢

less: program grants disbursed by the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Investment AUthOIIEY ...v.cvcvceeececcnr e crsessevsassirasenssens (4.697) Y
add: federal funds received by the Turnpike COMMISSION .......oooocveeremnseeeesenenee 6,539 !
add: federal funds received by the Capital Loan Fund .., eeessrnsnsan st sr e art s ssaas 324 L

add: other increase to Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency .......................... 1,503
less: other decrease from the Capital Loan Fund to a private organization............. (2) 3 r
less: other decrease to the Hiram G. Andrews Ceier .......vvevvvvrrenerresmsnsesrsnssenesas (2) L

Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented COMPONENt UNILS ....ecuvvvernsraerecessieessssioreeeensnes $ 97,012




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PENSION SYSTEMS

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
Commonwealth, public school, local government and certain other employes. Commonwealth employes are
members of the State Employes” Retirement System (SERS), a blended component unit. The SERS is the only
blended component unit in the financial reporting entity and it is the only pension trust fund included in the
primary government. Public school employes are members of the Public School Employes’ Retirement System
(PSERS), a discretely presented component unit. The PSERS is the only Fiduciary Fund reported as a discretely
presented component unit.

The SERS follows the accounting and reporting requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(FASB) Statement 35 and the PSERS follows the National Council on Governmental Accounting’s Statement
1. Both the SERS and the PSERS currently follow the disclosure requirements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement 5, “Disclosure of Pension Information by Public Employee Retirement
Systems and State and Local Governmental Employers.” FASB Statement 35 provides authoritative gnidance
on accounting and financial reporting for defined benefit public employe retirement systems and GASB
Statement 5 provides disclosure guidance. The following summaries present disclosure requirements for both
the SERS and the PSERS for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1994 and June 30, 1995, respectively.

Since the SERS reports under the provisions of FASB Statement 35, a statement of changes in net assets
available for benefits has not been presented separately. Financial information which would have been presented
in such a statement is included in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Balances for Pension Trust Funds.

STATE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system
established by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) to provide pension benefits for employes
of state government and certain other organizations. At December 31, 1994 there were 110 participating state
and other organizations. At December 31, 1994 the actuarially-computed annualized covered payroll was
$3,714 million. For the same period, the covered payroll for agencies included in the Commonwealth’s financial
reporting entity was $3,341 million, or 92 percent of total payroll of $3,622 million, for the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity.

Membership in the SERS is mandatory for most state employes, members and employes of the legislature and
certain elected persons in the executive branch. Certain other employes are not required, but are given the
option to participate. At December 31, 1994 the SERS membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
and terminated employes entitled to benefits but

not yet receiving benefits ..o, 85,290
Current employes:

VESEEA cevveeeverecerresrreressets s e essssesmmrsssens s arananersssesnssesssssanas 66,320

NORVESIEA ... eeeveeeaerestesesess e eeemeemresraransrevassnssesrases 47,800
Total MEMDBETS ......ccorercreccrmrese et cmrresen s s reenvmeanns 199,410

The SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited
service. Employes who retire at age 60 or, if under age 60 with 35 years of service, are entitled to a normal
(unreduced) annual retirement benefit. Members of the legislature and certain employes classified in hazardous
duty positions can retire with full benefits at age 50.

The general annual benefit is 2 percent of the member’s high-three year average salary times years of service.
Members of the legislature who were members of the SERS before March 1, 1974 are entitled to a benefit of
7.5 percent of average salary for each year of legisiative service. State police troopers are entitled to an annual
benefit equal to a percentage of their highest annnal salary (excluding the year of retirement). The annual
benefit is 75 percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and 50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of
service.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Covered employes are required by statute to contribute 5 percent of their gross pay to the SERS. Increased
contributions are required of legislators who were members prior to March 1, 1974 and judges (18.75 percent
and 7.5 to 10 percent of gross pay, respectively) who are entitled to increased benefits, The contributions are
recorded in individually identified accounts which are also credited with interest, calculated quarterly to yield
4 percent per annum, as mandated by statute. Accumulated employe contributions and credited interest, which
amounted to $2,353 million as of December 31, 1994, vest immediately and are returned upon termination of
service if the employe is not eligible for other benefits.

Participating employer contributions are also mandated by statuie and are based upon an actuarially determined
percentage of gross pay that is necessary to provide the SERS with assets sufficient to meet the benefits to be
paid to SERS members. According to the retirement code, all obligations of the SERS will be assumed by the
Commonwealth should the SERS terminate.

The fair value of individual investments at December 31, 1994 that represent 5 percent or more of the SERS
net assets available for benefits are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Wells Fargo Nikko Investment Advisors:

Equity Index Fund P—131,531,390 UDtS ....c.eccvrvrerrererenererereeenenssenemransasans $ 2,064,180
70/30 Enhanced U.S. Tactical Asset Allocation Fund—48,985,876 units . 706,476
Extended Equity Market Fund—16,348,703 RIS ....ccccveerrrvrerrrsnereresssssnenes 764,328

The SERS owned no securities issued by the Commonwealth or related parties and made no loans to the
Commonwealth or related parties during the year ended December 31, 1994,

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of
credited projected benefits and is intended, on an ongoing basis, to facilitate the assessment of the SERS
funding status and progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and to allow for
appropriate comparison of this data among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent
of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the SERS as discussed below.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at December 31, 1994. Significant
actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 9.25
percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4 percent per year compounded
annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases of 2.7 percent per year, aitributable
to merit/promotion, and (d) no postretirement benefit increases.

Net assets in excess of the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 1994 totalled $153 million as calculated
below (expressed in thousands):

Pension benefit obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated members entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving benefits ........ooceicieinrieisisseseeeerereeeerennns $ 5,117,258
Current employes:
Accumulated member contributions with INterest..........cocereveereeseessaees 2,349,731
Employer-financed, Vested .......ccuovrereeseieressracseseiessesssesieeecoeasrsasens 5,219,026
Employer-financed, NONVESLE ..........covrvrvrerresernrerrenrsnasssnsenssssmensressanes 485,856
Total pension benefit obligation .......c.covcveecrrmeccerimeccnircee s resees 13,171,871
Net assets available for benefits (at market value)..........ccccevrreereeeecercrveennns 13,330,963
Net assets in excess of pcnsion benefit obligation ........coceceeeeereecccenneeann, 3 159,092

Contributions: The SERS funding policy provides for periodic member contributions at statutory rates and
employer contributions at actuarially determined rates (expressed as a percentage of annual gross pay) that are
sufficient to accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. All required 1994 contributions were made,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued),

Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, with amortization
of the unfunded actuarial asset of $249 million and of the supplemental annuities arising from cost of living
and other adjustments over varying periods ending June 30, 2014. These rates are computed on a Commonwealth
fiscal year basis such that employer contribution rates in effect for the SERS for 1994 reflect a blended
average of those in effect through June 30, 1994 and subsequent to that date, as calculated based upon actuarial
valuations prepared as of December 31, 1993 and December 31, 1994, respectively. The actvarially determined
contribution requirement for the year ended December 31, 1994 consisted of (amounts in thousands):

% of Current
Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer NOmAl COSE tomiaiiinisisissssnissesmm s sssssscans s sssssssssneas 10.02 $ 376,897
Amortization of unfunded actuarial liability (assets) ......ccocosvrsnanan {2.13) {80,119)
Amortization of supplemental annuities. ........ccccevcvveeecnenicennnens 1.01 37,991
Total contribution TEQUITEMENE .......cvveerserenerrrrerreesremssnesermmesneeeanas 8.90 $ 334,769

Member contributions amounted to $193 million, or 5.20 percent and employer contributions amounted to
$343 million, or 9.24 percent, of total actual covered payroll of $3,713 million, for the year ended December
31, 1994. Total employer contributions of $343 million are more than the above actuarially determined
contribution requirement of $335 million due to employer contributions related to employe purchases of prior
service cost, employer contributions related to the transfer of prior employe service from the Public School
Employes’ Retirement System to the SERS, and actual employer contribution rates which were slightly higher
than those determined by the actuarial valuation. Total employer contributions amounted to $336 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, of which $316 million relates to agencies included in the Commonwealth’s
financial reporting entity. The Commonwealth employer contributions of $316 million approximate 89 percent
of total employer contributions of $356 million.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are the same as those used to
compute the pension benefit obligation as described above, except for a rate of return on investments on a
scale starting at 9.9 percent in 1994 graded down to 6 percent after 2015.

THREE-YEAR HISTORICAL TREND INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31

1994 1993 1992
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the pension benefit obligation
applicable to covered employes .......cocvvvieerrissarirnens 101.2 % 1156 % 111.7%
Assets in excess of pension benefit obligation
as a percentage of the SERS’s annual
covered payroll ... e 43 521 38.9
Employer contributions to the pension plan
as a percentage of annual covered payroll ................. 9.2 8.6 9.5

All required contributions were made, in accordance with actuarially determined requirements, for each of the
three years ended December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992.

Ten-year historical frend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the SERS. These
separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits {continued) : ,__EJ
The following information is presented in accordance with the reporting requirements of FASB Statement 35. .
g
The calculation of actuarial liabilities under GASB Statement 5 (the pension benefit obligation presented J
above) differs principally by the consideration of future salary increases from the calculation required under
FASB Statement 35 of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits presented below.
The accumulated plan benefit information as of December 31, 1994 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits:
Vested benefits:
Participants currently receiving Payments .....c.ccovecerreevernsiniinn $ 5,551,363
Other partiCipants ..........eveevseeesrssnnns sesesesst s st e s eeaereaeas 5,654,105
: ' 11,205,468
Nonvested Denefits .....ccuceevreiieiiiecrcsirreseress s sssscesssesssoese s resseaseseesns 200,517
TORAE ettt sttt $ 11,405,985 o
Changes in accumulated plan benefits as of December 31, 1994 are as follows (expressed in thousands):
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits ;
at December 31, 1993 .....eeececrnernenssessesenrasrasensscssssasssesesnrens $ 10,631,427 )
Changes during the year attributable to: P
Passage of tiMe .....cucvenecrve ettt nesansens 421,308 y i
Change in plan provisions .........eeeeeseesresssessssssssmssesmssssssssens 353,250 o
INEL INCTEASE ....veeiecstiisiisssiotiasntennrerressonervasensonsesssansennevesnaeens 774,558 . %
Actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits o
atDecember 31, 1994 .......ovrvivierecesirie s sesnsscesssssstssscaeesees $ 11,405,985 )
The change in plan provisions resulted primarily from Act 1994-29 (the Act) which was enacted on April 29, ’
1994 and, among other things, provided a cost of living adjustment (COLA) to annuitants with an effective
date of retirement on or prior to June 30, 1992. The COLA provides for an additional monthly annuity of
between 1.50 percent to 7.90 percent based on date of retirement. The Act also provides for a monthly longevity
supplement for members with 20 or more years of service with a date of retirement on or before July 1, 1984.
The significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the actuarial present value of accumulated plan —

benefits as of December 31, 1994 are as follows:

Mortality
Superannuation (normal retirement) and ) i
early TEHIMENt ..........ovvereeererssensseresensenssessensaseons The 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table %
DiISability ..ocoeeeeriiitenesencsnesssens sttt Modifications of the Federal Civil '
Service Disability Mortality Table

Assumed rate of return on investments .................. 7.75% )

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Public School Employes’ Retirement System (System)
was established July 18, 1917 under the provision of P.L. 1043, No. 343. The System is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer plan and its designated purpose is to provide retirement allowances and other benefits, including
death, disability, and health care benefits, to members. As defined by GASB Statement 5, the Commonwealth
is a non-employer contributor to the System.

Membership in the System is mandatory for substantially all full-time public school employes in the ‘
Commonweaith. Certain part-time employes are eligible for membership in the System. At June 30, 1995 L
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

there were 635 reporting units, generally school districts. Membership as of June 30, 1994, the most recent
year for which actual amounts are available, consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits ........... 115,000

Inactive members and vestees entitled to, but not yet
1eCeivIng DENEfItS ....vevvervrererecrsacsrirmrercssesnrnnerecsssssssrensnssasas 36,000
151,000

Current employes:

VESIEA ..veererrerererrerrrarnersrrrrnrsssrsrsessrmersrensrarasessssrnrssssarsssssnanar 119,000
NODVESIEA o eerieecerrrreeereess s esnresssesssnesssssesssssssnessssssnsnessnas 87,000
. 206,000
Total BIEMDETS ..ececeeieeieirireretiessereisssimseeseessssm e sessres s sasssssnnons 357,000

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the estimated current covered payroll for public school employes
was $7,429 million. Total payroll for public school employes was substantially the same. The annualized
covered payroll at June 30, 1994, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, was $6,856 million.

Benefits: Significant amendments to the System were made in the 1975 revision of the Pennsylvania Public
School Employes’ Retirement Code (“The Code”) by the Pennsylvania General Assembly. Under the provisions
of the Code, members are eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a} age 62 with at least one
full year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (¢) 35 or more years of service regardless
of age. On April 29, 1994 Act 29 was signed into law which, among other items, permitied school employes
with at least 30 years of credited service to retire without a reduction in benefits until June 30, 1997. This so-
called “early retirement window” does not require 2 minimum age in conjunction with length of service for a
member to be eligible for full benefits.

Benefits are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied by the
number of years of credited service. After completion of 10 years of service, a member’s right to the defined
benefit is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. Under certain features of the System, active
members may purchase credit for types of prior educational or military service on a lump-sum or instaliment
purchase basis.

In addition to regular retirement benefits, the System also provides for disability retirement benefits and death
benefits. Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of 5 years of eligible
service. Such benefits are equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary (as defined) multiplied by
the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary (unless the participant would
have less than 16.667 years of credited service had the participant worked until superannuation age, in which
case the participant receives two percent of final average salary times the number of years service that wouild
have been credited had the participant worked until superannuation age), nor greater than the benefit the
member would have had at superannuation retirement age. In addition, under Act 29, members older than
normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 or who has at least 10
years of eligible service. Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit which would have been effective
if the member had retired on the day before death.

Members with credited service in the State Employes’ Retirement System may elect to transfer such service to
the Public School Employes’ Retirement System upon commencement of employment in the public school
system. Similarly, a member with credited service in the System may transfer such service to the State Employes’
Retirement System upon becoming a member of that system.

Upon termination of a member’s employment in the public school sector, the member’s accumulated
contributions plus interest are refundable from the Members’ Savings Account.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I--Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued) l

A health insurance premium assistance program was established effective July 1, 1991 for all eligible annuitants,
as defined in the Code and amended by Act 29, who elect to participate. Under this provision, an employer %!
contribution rate for premium assistance was established for the fiscal year that began July 1, 1991 to provide L

reserves in the Health Insurance Account as of June 30, 1992. Effective July 1, 1992, participating eligible

annuitants received premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $55 per month or the actual monthly : 1
premium. :

Funding Status and Progress: The amount shown as “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure
measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated Y
to be payable in the future as a result of employe service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of 5 1
credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System’s funding status on a going-concern '
basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons
among public employe retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used o
to determine contributions to the System, B

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1994, the date of .
the most recent actuarial report. Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 8.50 percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary o
increases of 6.75 percent, including an allowance for inflation of 4 percent, national productivity of 1 percent

and merit or seniority increases averaging 1.75 percent, and (c) no postretirement benefit increases. i

At June 30, 1994 the unfunded pension benefit obligation was $2,811 million as follows (expressed in -
thousands):

Pension benefit obligation: :
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits g
and terminated members entitled to benefits but not ‘

yet Teceiving DENefits ....voccceencrmeercere s st isssss s nensnenenene $ 9,821,881 2
Health care payments ........cccccceerrerenmeessesensssessssssssssssesssesssssssasans 39,331 9
Current members: 1

Accumulated member contributions with interest .......ccoeeeunen, 4,324,422 .

System-financed vested........ocoeiiiiicriiriiienie e 4,116,912 P

System-financed NORVESLEA ........vvervreevreeersremsesseressreeeaseessasnes 7,960,326 . s
Total pension benefit obligation..............coveveeverenrcesesesnnne 26,262,872 |

Net assets available for benefits, at cost (market value _
IS $24,TTB,A15) ceeeeeeeeeeetenteesecerevnsssesssesssensensasssress sansssassessnesmnns 23,451,675 o

Unfunded pension benefit obligation .......c.coveevereresreersenec. $ 2,811,197 L

Ten-year historical trend information is available in separate financial reports issued by the System. These

separately issued reports include information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I—Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Contributions: The contribution policy is set by the Code and requires contributions by active members,
employers and the Commonwealth. The rate of contribution for most active members is set by statute at 5.25
percent of the member’s compensation. For members joining the system on or after July 22, 1983 the rate of
contribution is 6.25 percent. The contributions required of employers and the Commonwealth are based upon
an actuarial valuation, using the “entry age normal” method, computed as a-percentage of the total compensa-
tion of all active members during the period for which the amount is determined.

Effective July 1, 1994 the combined (employer and Commonwealth) contribution rate was decreased from
13.17 to 11.06 percent of covered payroll. This rate is comprised of a pension contribution rate of 10.61
percent for pension benefits plus a health care contribution rate of .45 percent for health insurance premium
assistance. The components of this contribution rate, and the related amounts, are summarized as follows
(amounts in thousands);

% of Current

Covered
Payroll Amount
Employer NOTMAl COSE .....uvrrreererreneererercinsere e sssasmesssssesenssesssesssssins 6.43 $ 479971
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability and :
supplemental ANNUILES .....ccovcecerriiniiiisnisinsiec i srsssns e snans 4.18 312,076
Health care cONBUtION FALE .........oovevvrvreeieeerecrseeresmresessasssnsesssesensins A5 33,575
Total CONtribUtion FEQUITEIENT ........c.oveevvevessssnsersersseeesssessassssasnnenn 11.06 $ 825622

The employer and the Commonwealth equally share the cost of required contributions and all required contri-
butions were made. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 Commonwealth school districts contributed $415
million and the Commonwealth contributed $411 miilion to the System. The Commonweaith contribution
approximates 5.53 percent of current covered payroll. Employe contributions of $429 million approximate
6.3 percent of covered payroll of $6,856 million for the year ended June 30, 1994, the most recent year for
which actual amounts are available. Effective July 1, 1995 employers will pay the Commonwealth’s share of
the contribution rate rather than the current equal sharing between the employers and the Commonwealth.
Employers will be reimbursed by the Commonwealth in an amount equat to the Commonwealth’s proportion-
ate share.

Based on the June 30, 1994 valuation, the unfunded actuarial liability is $3,797 million and the average
funding period to amortize this liability is 20 years at July 1, 1991. Changes in the unfunded liability subse-
quent to July 1, 1991 are amortized over a period of 20 years from July 1 of the fiscal year following the
change, with payments increasing 5 percent annually,

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the System owned no securities issued by school districts, the
Commonwealth or any related parties and made no loans to school districts, the Commonwealth or any related

 party.
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth provides certain health care benefits for retired employes that meet specified length-of-
service and age requirements. These benefits are provided as aresult of negotiated union contracts and through
administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as paid, which
totalled $147 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. Approximately 52,000 individuals qualified for
these benefits during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, inciuding disability life insurance and
certain benefits to beneficiaries of state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount expended for
these benefits was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995,



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth issued $600 million of tax anticipation notes
which matured on June 30, 1995. The $19.8 million of interest related to the notes is shown as a debt service
expenditure in the General Fund.

The State Stores Fund, an Enterprise Fund, has reported $713 thousand of notes payable as of June 30, 1995
collateralized by investments held with the Treasury. The notes bear interest rates of 5.38 to 6.66 percent. The
Purchasing Fund, an Internal Service Fund, has reported $2.7 million of notes payable at June 30, 1995,
bearing interest at 6.6 percent.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a governmental fund component unit, entered into the
Treasury Initiative for Education (TIE) Program with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department (Treasury). The
SPSBA issued a $75 million note which was purchased by the Treasury. The proceeds of this note were
deposited by the SPSBA with the Treasury, which will invest the proceeds in a manner acceptable to both
parties. The note is due April 28, 1996. It is renewable on an annual basis for a term not to exceed two years.
Interest is payable at a percentage rate which will be the lesser of the rate of interest payable from 90 day
Treasury Bills plus 20 basis points or the rate earned by the Treasury Short Term Investment Pool. The interest
rate at June 30, 1995 was 5.68 percent. The note is collateralized by investments the SPSBA has made with the
Treasury. The SPSBA has agreed to make $25 million available for loans to school districts and $50 million
available for reinvestment by the Treasury at the time loans are made to the school districts. The outstanding
balance of the note payable at Fune 30, 1995 was $47.4 million.

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component unit, has
reported $546.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $605 million of notes payable consisting
of student ioan financing of $580.3 million and capital financing arrangements of $24.7 million at June 30,
1995. Demand revenue bonds at June 30, 1995 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Student Loan Student Loan Student Loan Stodent Loan
Adjustable Rate  Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate Adjustable Rate
Student Loan Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Tender Revenue Tender Revenuoe Student Loan

Revenue Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Revenue Bonds
1994 Serfes A 1988 Series E 1988 Series C 1988 Series B 1988 Serjes A 1984 Series A

Amount issued..... $125,000 . $ 36,000 $ 75,000 $110,000 $100,000 $100,000
Date of issue . 12/15/94 894 8/94 7/29/88 1/28/88 19/84
Interest rate . 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.2%
Due date ............... 12/1/24 11119 1/1/19 T8 /118 12/1/00
Letter of credit: .
Principal amount . 5133425 $ 36,592 $ 76,233 $119,625 $101,643 $103,082
Expiration date .... 12/14199 131/99 3199 3195 12/7/99 12/15/00

The 1994 and 1988 bonds bear interest at an adjustable rate determined by PHEAA's remarketing agent based
upon prevailing market conditions and is reset weekly. The 1984 bonds bear interest at a fluctuating rate based
on the remarketing rate of the J.J. Kenny Index and is aiso reset weekly. All bonds are subject to purchase, at
par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on the demand of the bondholders upon seven days prior irrevocable
written notice. None of the letters of credit pertaining to PHEAA’s demand revenue bonds have been used as
of June 30, 1995.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

Student loan financing notes payable for PHEAA at June 30, 1995 consist of the following (expressed in
thousands): ‘

Line of credit agréement dated November 5, 1992 with interest at
prime, 9.0 percent (paid quarterly) and annual principal payments.
Principal not to exceed $16 MALON «..ccueeiiereeerreceee e cevesseracnenas $ 9,500

Amount due under revolving credit agreement dated September 23,
1994, through June 15, 1996. Interest rate at June 30, 1995 was 6.85

percent. Principal not to exceed $60 million ... veeeeeececcuccccnnnnne. 52,200
Note payable, interest at 91 day U.S. Treasury Bill rate plus .9 percent
(6.848 percent at June 30, 1995), due February 28, 1997 ................... 70,000

Note purchase agreement dated May 1, 1990, amended subsequent to
May 1, 1992, and extended through October 31, 1996. It provides for
three separate notes known as the 1991 F, G, and H Series. Principal
not to exceed $300 million in the aggregate. Interest is the 91 day
Treasury Bill rate plus .5 percent (6.448 percent at June 30, 19953) ..... . 299,060

Note purchase agreement dated September 21, 1994, due April 1, 1996.
Principal not to exceed $200 million. Interest is the 91 day Treasury

Bill rate plus .65 percent (6.598 percent at June 30, 1995) .................. 149,500
TORAL ... ittt e s s s n e et s s $ 580,260

Capital financing arrangements for PHEAA at June 30, 1995 consist of the following (expressed in thousands):

Dauphin County General Authority Revenue Bonds. Interest is a
weighted average rate of 6.8 percent and is paid semiannually on
March 1 and September 1. Principal is due through 2000 .................. 5 3,230

Note payable refinanced in October 1992 with interest at 5.54 percent
and monthly payments of principal and interest through November 1,
1007 e e e st e b e e b s ear e bna s 7.645

Note payable dated December 31, 1992 with interest at 6.7 percent and
semiannual payments of principal and interest through December 31,

2002 ..oseeremteeeessns s st et e et sttt st remsanr e avaeR e e s ras 2,626
Loan security agreement dated April 12, 1994 with interest at prime,

9.0 percent (paid quarterly) and annual principal payments ................ 1,534
Amounts due under various installment purchase agreements bearing

interest at various rates that average approximately 6.1 percent ......... 9,702

TOEAL cuceeriresrinnrntee s st sn s s sasesrsas sttt sasb s sebbneemmr s v nesens serseeasanes $ 24737

All of PHEAA's capital financing arrangements are collateralized with property, plant and equipment. The
aggregate maturities due for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1995 and through maturity are as
follows:

1996 e $ 8,260
1997 v e 8,183
1998 ... e 3,384
1999 ... 1,538
2000 ..ereveeriereeerererersae e 364
Thereafter..........c.coeueene.... 3,008
117 $ 24,737
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued) : o

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA}, a proprietary fund component unit, maintains two lines
of credit with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which it may borrow up to $15 million and $50
million to fund its multi-family housing program. The $15 million line of credit bears interest from the date of
issuance at a rate equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes plus 20 basis points. The $50 million : l
line of credit bears interest at a fixed rate on the date of a draw equal to the current yield on two year Treasury L
Notes plus 15 basis points. At June 30, 1995 $4 million and $20 million were owed at a range of 4.47 to 6.98 o
percent and 4.24 to 6.13 percent, respectively, against the $15 million and $50 million lines of credit. Total
reported notes payable at June 30, 1995 for the PHFA is $24 million. ' L
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 1995 and changes for the fiscal year then ended
are as follows (expressed in thousands):

GENERAL LONG-TERM Maturity Bonds
Issue Interest Dates Anthorized Balance Balance
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP gy Rates Throngh  But Unissued July I, 1994 Additions Reductions  June 30,1995

General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:

Capital Facilities ..........ruremvsmrerinsiasecsas 1968-95 3.00-10.16% 2015 § 16496744 $ 2901,365 $ 375000 $ 395520 $ 2,880,845
Disaster Relief ... 1973-89 4.91- 769% 2003 21,908 51,160 P 6,025 45,135
Land and Water Development ................ 1969-94 3.00- 7.30% 2014 300 126,385 e 21,145 105,740
Nursing Home Foan Development ........ 1977-86 5.00- 8.26% 2006 31,000 17,745 e 5,025 12,720
Project 70 Land Acquisition .. 1970 6.26% 2000 cee- 3,930 Cee 550 3,380
Volunteer Companies Loan..................... 197794 3.00-10.75% 2014 10,000 23935 ceen 2,035 21,900
Vietnam Conflict Veterans

Compensation ......ccumeecreerererinesseences 1970-74 5.36- 6.11% 2003 3,000 14,380 R 1,770 12,610
Water Facilities Loan ......cocverecmreccnnan 1983-95 3.00- 8.75% 2015 35,500 144,530 2,000 13,600 132,930
Pennsyivania Economic Revitalization.. 1985-93 4.00- 8.75% 2013 16,000 94,170 . 7,430 86,740
Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Investreent AUthority .......ccooovereerreceeo. 1988-95 3.00- 7.20% 2015 364,500 237,985 3,000 10,265 230,720
Agricultural Conservation Easement ]

PUFCHASE .ot snsrrna e reas 199194 3.50- 6.75% 2014 19,000 69,370 8,000 2,670 74,700
Local Crirninal Justice .....cceeeecnncnnnne. 1992-95 3.00- 6.75% 2015 25,000 115,910 57,000 3,635 169,275
Keystone Recreation, Park and

CONSETVALION wvucv-iecsearesceresecesnasemresaneans 1994-95 5.00- 6.75% 2015 38,000 et 12,000 s 12,000
Refunding Bonds 1985-94 3.00- 7.50% 2010 e 1,298,647 12,630 59,310 1,251,967

17,060,952 5,100,012 469,630 528,980 5,040,662
Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues: )
Installment Purchase Obligations ceee e ... e 6,126 15,100 8,061 13,165
Capital Lease Obligations ..........c..cou.. e e ees ceel 61,720 328 1,424 60,624
Cbligations Under Master Lease

Agreement—Equipment ...........cccoeeev.. ceee e . . 95,420 48,860 38,675 105,605
Cbligations Under Master 1 ease—

Prison Faciliies ....ouecivesnrmeciereonsranans e e . e 762,495 e 4,775 757,720
Self-Insurance—Note O .....ccovrrrriienns e e e - 826,682 260,133 108,347 978,468
Compensated Absences..................... . e e . e 475,352 255,889 224 844 506,397
Catastrophic Motor Vehicle Losses ........ ....  ....... . e 264,279 e 82,935 181,344
OHhET .....oeocrvereverrsem s rsens it e smeeese e e . cae 869,044 483,489 313,910 1,038,623

3,361,118 1,063,799 782,971 3,641,946
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNTGROUP . ....  ....... ... $ 17,060,952 5 8,461,130 $1,533,429 5 1,311,951 % %,682,608

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented component unit organizations at June 30, 1995 (May 31, 1995 for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (expressed in thousands):
GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS

Bonds Payable From Lease Rentals:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational

Facilities AUthOIILY ......cccooeerevrciiinnnnins 1969-95 2.70- 9.63% 2031 $ 1933452 § 272359 $ 102,865 §$ 2,102,946
State Public School Building Authority . 1986-95 2.75- 7.90% 2017 280,893 76,107 40,795 316,205
TOTAL GOVERNMENTALFUNDS ....  ....... e $ 2214345 $ 348466 $ 143,660 $ 2,419,151

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Revenue Bonds Payable From User
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education

AsSIStance AZENCY ...oeceieaeremrereienias 1985-92 3.84-10.70% 2026 $ 848785 s oo 8 11,000 737,785
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency . 1982-952.88-10.875% 2028 1,948,953 260,000 78,675 2,130,278
Pennsylvania Industrial Development

ATHOTILY ..ot s 1994  4.50- 7.00% 2014 354,330 e 4,335 349,995
Pennsylvania Turnpike Comrmission ...... 1986-94 2.50-7.875% 2019 1,268,275 e 15,715 1,252,560
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment

AUthOTitY .eovv i s rceen e v, 1990-94 3.10- 7.15% 2014 191,385 35,000 6,375 220,010

4,611,728 295,000 216,100 4,690,628

Less: Bond disCOURtS ....eeeeeeeeeeererrerenrans e e - 68,230 1,972 5,660 64,542

Deferred costs of refunding .........  ....  ....... e e 384 e 884

TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... e e e $ 4543498 § 292,144 5 210,440 $ 4,625202
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ........... e e ... $ 6,757,843 $ 640610 $ 354,100 $ 7.044,353
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds
accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majority of its bond issues. Additional cash
with fiscal agents is held by the Federal Government for unemployment compensation claims.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following (expressed in
thousands):

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims ............ $ 599,008
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) .....oervevrcvesiresrieas 154,922
‘Litigation—Note P ......vveoeceeecceccirnenns . 216,898
Medical Assistance Cost Settlements .....coceoveeeeresreeeccsrinns 67,336
Arbitrage Rebate TaxX ..vvevecsmiinicnninicvsssnsss s sesrsessens 459

$ 1,038,623

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen’s Compensation
Law to individuals whose employments are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. The PURTA provides for a tax on utility
realty property which is available for appropriation as a general revenue source. The Act also provides for payment of a tax
distribution to local taxing authorities. The Commonwealth is liable for underpayments of medical agsistance to nursing homes
and inpatient hospitals based upon audits performed on the medical assistance program. Amounts included in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1995 relating to Workmen’s Compensation Claims, PURTA, Litigation, Medical
Assistance, and Arbitrage Rebate Tax are not payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

In 1991, the Commonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authorities for the rental of five new
prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each lease provided for the Commonwealth to
pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation
issued certificates of participation to refund the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to
provide additional construction funding. As a result of the consolidated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments
equal to the finance corporation’s debt service payments. Both the original and the new leases provide that the Commonwealth’s
obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to provide for these obligations. In the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using the new prison facilities. The finance corporation holds nominal
title to the facilities as security for the Commonwealth lease payments. When the certificates are fully redeemed, at which time
the lease agreement expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth has reported $757.7
million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general fixed assets for the new prison facilities.

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $30.9 billion as of August 31, 1995, with net debt outstanding
of $3.9 billion.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), discretely presented
proprietary fund component units, have pledged all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding. Revenue
bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 (May 31, 1995 for the PTC) include
bond discounts of $64.5 million,

The Pennsyivania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority, discretely presented

governmental fund component units, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1995 which are payable from the lease rentals of the
projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Nonrecourse Debt

" The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania created the Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) to finance projects
related to energy conservation and research. Fees are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The
bonds issued by the Authority represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The
majority of the bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers
from the trustees to the entity served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $123.1 million in revenue bonds outstanding at June
30, 1995. The Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included
in the accompanying financial statements.

The Commonwealth also created the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) to finance projects
on behalf of local industrial and commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth.
Revenue bonds issued by the PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At
June 30, 1995 the PEDFA has $1,015.8 million of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation
for this debt. Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary government
and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1995 (May 31, 1995 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (expressed
in thousands):

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2001
Through
1996 - 1997 1998 1999 2000 Maturity Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Capital Faciliies ..coeoveeme e renereeane $ 468,740 $ 401456 § 381,705 $ 346,969 $ 314,266 § 2,234,416 $ 4,147,552
Disaster Relief........ccccrernrrennn . 7,185 7,001 6,981 6,961 . 6,820 20,605 55,553
Land and Water Development................. 25,011 19,163 16,541 14,791 14,600 39,792 129,898
Nursing Home Loan Development ....... 3,566 3,514 2,175 2,114 879 3,062 15,310
Project 70 Land Acquisition........... 779 780 778 783 785 e 3,905
Volunteer Companies Loan ... . 3,402 3,329 2,356 2,267 2,188 18,513 32,055
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation ........cu.corvmsrcemasierssseans 2,575 2,578 2,581 2,592 2,601 1,937 14,864
Water Facilities Loan ........cocoveeeeeeemrenene. 16,289 13,124 12,942 12,165 12,043 139,835 206,398
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization .. 10,160 9222 9,061 8,898 8,742 91,310 137,393
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AUthOTILY ....cvvemeeeecreemerarinees 23345 23,249 22,806 22,500 21,009 249,038 361,947
Agricultural Conservation Easement
PUrchase ...co.vevecreierrensieeecmsrmsae e veeeues 7,054 7,007 6,943 6,886 6,825 84,133 118,848
Local Criminal JUSHCe .....ocovreveresrsrnneres 14,658 14,665 14,671 14,680 14,686 204,753 278,113
Keystone Recreation, Park and
CORSEIVALION .cvvvovrescrearesasersssmsnasesssssrsss 1,051 1,048 1,049 1,049 1,053 15,793 21,043
Refunding Bonds ...-............ — 136,530 161,471 156,685 154,168 161,972 954,208 1,725,034
Total Principal and Interest ....ooeenn. 720,345 667,607 637,274 596,823 568,469 4,057,395 7,247,913
Less: Interest Payments................. 272,555 247,662 224,714 201,298 180,994 1,080,028 2,207,251
447,790 419,945 412,560 395,525 387,475 2,977,367 5,040,662
COther General Long-Term Obligations .. 353,925 204,687 198,367 215,889 143,567 2,525,511 3,641,946

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNTGROUP $ 801,715 § 624632 § 610927 $§ 611414 $ 531,042 § 5,502,878 $ 8,682,608

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational :
Facilities Authofity ....coccorenecensrnnnrisnan $ 16186 $ 185889 $ 170368 $ - 167285 $ 168,732 $ 2,777.446 $ 3,631,586
State Public School Building Authority . 33,055 32,697 32,521 32,290 32,430 322,172 485,165
Total Principal and Interest ................ 194,921 218,586 202,889 199,575 201,162 3,099,618 4,116,751
Less: Interest Payments .............. 126,336 122,753 119,523 114,772 109,935 1,104,281 1,697,600

TOTAL GOVERNMENTALFUNDS ... $ 68585 $ 95833 $% 83366 $ 84803 § 91,227 $ 1,995,337 3 2,419,151




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K—Long-Term Obligations (continued) .

2001
_ Through -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS: 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 Maturity Total ;1
Revenue Bonds: VJ \
Pennsylvania Higher Education : o
ASSIStance ABENCY -covemriceeisecenenenaes 3 49722 § 49,722 3% 49722 § 49722 % 49,722 $ 1,400,221 3 1,648,831 :
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency . 183,839 180,222 180,326 180,592 179,525 3,667,201 4,571,705 Sy
Pennsylvania Industrial Development : {
P00 11T v 30,545 32,257 33,723 34,276 33,679 404,210 568,690 L
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ...... 95,732 93,551 97,503 96,895 96,965 1,843,228 2,323,874
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority 17,836 17,815 17,546 17.452 17,370 237,700 325,719 il
Total Principal and Interest ........oeoven. 377,674 373,567 378,820 378,937 377,261 7,552,560 9,438,819 - |
Less: Interest Payments ........ S 285,330 291,213 286,427 281,594 275,562 3,318,065 4,748,191
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS .......... 82,344 82,354 92,393 97,343 101,695 4,234 495 4,690,628 ;
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 150929 § 178,187 § 175759 § 182,146 $ 192,926 $ 6,229,832 $ 7,109,779 ‘

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of
future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of A
June 30, 1995 (expressed in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented Component Enits o

Pennsylvania i
General Higher Education
Long-Term Assistance College and _—
Obfigations Agency University Fonds o
Fiscal year ending June 30 ]
1996 $ 7,258 $ 5,443 $ 26,438 |
1997 7,016 5,369 25,035 .
1998 ..t s 6,871 5,583 24,085 :
190G ...t si b eetnsmeceas e e st et ene s et s 6,768 5415 23,073 Vo
2000 ... ettt st senpn s 6,666 5,107 21,902
Later years ......coevesevrnres i snnaraian 101,307 68,237 385,172 .
Total MiniMUM 16ASE PAYTOCHLS ....vcerermscerrersssserssssssrsersss e sssoss savesmssnssens 135,886 95,154 505,705
Less: amount representing estimated executory costs
included in total minimum 1ease PAYMENLS ........ocrverencesmriasasseserrenns 17,013 cant cens )
INEt DHNEMUM 1C2SE PAYIMCTES ....o.ereeceveveressesmsererssensssssseensones 118,873 95,154 505,705 ey
Less: amount tepresenting iNEEIESt ............cowwesorveemseeesesseassscrmsesessssmsens 58,249 38,917 228,255 o
_ _— —— -l
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 5 60,624 $ 56,237 3 277,450 '
3 13,165

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS

et

At June 30, 1995 the State Public School Building Authority, a discretely presented governmental fund component unit, owed
$175 thousand under capital lease obligations.

At June 30, 1995 general fixed assets included $96.0 million of buildings and $3.3 million of equipment being procured by
capital leases. A total of $51.2 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1995 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital projects o
currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the ‘
public financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets include $31.0
million of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1995.

The Commonweaith has entered into three lease arrangements with a trustee for the refinancing of previously existing leases and
installment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment. These arrangements provide that the trustee issue
certificates of participation, the proceeds of which allow for immediate payment to Commonwealth equipment vendors. This is -
not a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are responsible for :
securing appropriations to make lease payments to the trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund periodic principal and
interest payments to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use of the leased equipment, ..
the trustee holds legal title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the certificates are fully funded, legal P
title vests with the Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1995, $80.3 million in general fixed assets is being procured under these /
master lease arrangements.

e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth issued $12.6 million in general obligation
bonds, Refunding Series of 1994, with an average interest rate of 5.5 percent to advance refund $12.3 million
of previously issued general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of 7.39 percent. The net refunding
bond proceeds of $12.6 million, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were
deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a
result, the bonds refunded are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. The Commonwealth advance refunded its previously issued bonds to reduce debt
service payable on its general obligation bonds by $586 thousand and to obtain an economic gain of $293
thousand.

At June 30, 1995 $742.8 million of general obligation bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFAY), discretely presented governmental fund
component units, issued revenue bonds to advance refond $18.7 million of previously issued revenue bonds as
follows {expressed in thousands):

College College
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Category Series of 1995 Series of 1994
Issuing Authority ......ccoeeoeeereeeeeencae SPSBA PHEFA
Bond Type.....ocoevrerecrvnssesnernnesrsnnnes Revenue Revenue
Date Issued ......cocceeeereeerreierscrennnen 6-29-95 7-28-94
Refunding Bonds Principal............. $22.495 $7,285
Interest Rate (Refunding) ............... 5.38% 7.09%
Refunded Series .......ccoorvereeerevvennacs College College
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds
Series A 1990 Series of 1987
Series D 1991
Refunded Bonds Principal .............. $9.885/85,535 $3,280*
Interest Rate (Refunded)................. 6.99%/6.75% 92.30%
Payment to Escrow Agent............... $16,743 $3,392
Debt Service Savings (Loss)........... $606 $(293)
Feonotmic Gail ... $485 $348

* Current refunding.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—Refunded Debt (continued).

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs,
were used to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for
all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group. :

The SPSBA reported advance refundings in its component unit financial statements for the Wyoming Area
School District which is not reported in the preceding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed
from their General Long-Term Debt Account Group; however, since the SPSBA did not issue any new debt,
this was not an advance refunding transaction of the SPSBA. Furthermore, there were no debt service savings
nor any economic gain or loss to the SPSBA.

The PHEFA defeased, using funds provided by Holy Family College, $2.6 million of its College Revenue
Bonds, Series of 1986 with a net interest rate of 7.66 percent. A deposit of $2.6 million was made to an
irrevocable trast with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the bonds. As a result,
the Series of 1986 Bonds are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the General Long-Term
Debt Account Group.

At June 30, 1995 $543.5 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously aceounted for in their General
Long-Term Debt Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings, for the PHEFA and the
SPSBA. Included are $422.7 million for the PHEFA and $120.8 million for the SPSBA.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS.

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and three Special Revenue Funds (Motor
License, State Lottery and Workmen's Compensation Administration). The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary
Basis)—presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary
basis, which differs from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting (expressed in
thousands):

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds
BUDGETARY BASIS:
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over
EXPENAITIIES .oocirmieee et errsreeene e s s st assssess e st een § 126,822 $ 42,122
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue ......ovveeveevvnivscieenenee. (524,141) 1,219,109
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued Habilities ....................... { 1,259,661) {1,439,194)
To adjust encumbrances ............c.coccovevvevivneiievese e 1,607,153 302,884
Net adjuSmEnts c.ocevceineeeeecmcccece e mmrs e ererereveses (176,649) 82,799
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under
expenditures and other USES .......c.oveeeeeeeecesvimsecenne e e (18,899)
TOTAL ALL FUNDS:
GAAP Basis — revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and Other HSES .....ooeeceveverrr v, $ (49.827) $ 106,022




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE N — SEGMENT INFORMATION
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The Commonwealth’s Primary Government has seven major Enterprise Funds which provide for a variety of loan programs to business and government
organizations, workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development loans. Component Unit Proprietary Funds comprise five

organizations which provide for a limited access highway system, industrial development loans, low-cost housing, student loans and scholarships and

&%

local government capital development loans. _:. ) }
' N
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Enterprise Funds ; i}
State Machinery .
‘Workmen’s State Volunteer Minority and Other Total
Sunny Capital Insurance Stores Company Business Equipment  Enterprise  Enterprise ,
Bay Loan (Dec. 31,1994 (June 27, 1995) Loan Development Loan Funds Funds
Operating revVEDItes ........cnimeimuresusraresrares $ 4674 5 3338 $ 543,036 $ 688,058 $ 1603 § 985 % 1278 % 15340 $1,258312
Depreciation e .. 1,069 5,216 e AN . 583 6,868 . |
Operating iRCOME (0S5) +.couurrrmsseremssaern 6,973 2,755 113,287 49,576 1,349 (4,637) 955 (1684) 168574 - |
Operating transfers out 61,069 61,069 wd
Net income (foss) 6,973 - 2,755 113,287 (7,613) 1,349 (4,637 ) 955 10 113,079
Increases in contribited capital ... 25,000 P . 7,150 7,000 375 39525 . 1
Decreases in contributed capital ............. 13,698 2 13700 i
Acquisition and construction of
capital assets 869 3,180 590 4639
Net increass (decrease) in cash ....... o (14) 283 183 (99) (18) (4) # s
Total assats 149,709 50,238 1,595,590 177,728 69,914 11,801 38,833 37,092 2,130,905 -
Bonds and other long-term liabilides
payable from operating revenues .. 1,250,130 T3 1,250,843 .
Total fund EqUILY ..oovrrevereeereeesesecseenern 148,559 48,236 230,987 17.417 69,879 10,636 38,825 32,259 596,798 | |
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS !
Proprietary Funds !
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Penmsylvania 5
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure Total !
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment Proprietary ;
(May 31, 1995 Anthority Agency Agency Authority Funds
Operating revenues .... $ 209,830 $ 30,806 $ 196,023 $ 456265 $ 22024 $ 1,014,957
Depreciation 144,025 e 348 10,197 16 154,586 {
* Operating income (1058) ..ooeeerooceerimrrs 19,489 5,693 (3,383 ) {245,125) 6,045 (217,281 )
Operating transfers from primary a
government 32,500 251,752 L. 284252
Extraordinary loss on early i
extinguishment of debt .rvvevrerceresvrevens 340 340
Net income 30,381 5,693 28,7717 11,195 6,045 82,091 ’
Increases in contribinted capital 6,539 1,503 67,842 75,884 §
Decreases in contributed capital 4,697 4,697
Acquisition and construction of .
capital assets 221,370 e 635 8,699 11 80,715 |
Net increase (decrease) in cash ... {30,341 ) (448 ) (296) 543 {2,548) (33,050) !
Total assets 2,432,353 715,690 2,711,426 2,317,128 1,021,466 9,198,563
Bonds and other long-term liabilities
payable from operating Ieventues ... 1,205,886 352,952 2,132,569 1,342,782 220,010 5,254,199
Total fund equity 1,133,178 352421 361,315 273,091 762,454 2,882,459




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—SELF INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation and medical payments for its employes
injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital claims and for tort
Lability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employe and general torts. For property losses, the
Commonwealth has a $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance coverage up to $134 million per
occurrence. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the Department of Transportation
(transportation claims.) The Commonwealth has established various administrative policies which are intended
to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended Tune 30, 1995. No
scttlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage during each of the past three fiscal years,

The accrued liability for annuitant medical/hospital claims is determined by an actuary in accordance with
accepted actuarial principles. Accrued liabilities for employe disability, tort and transportation claims are
established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such claims are not
discounted. No accrued liability has been reported for property losses.

At June 30, 1995 the accrued liabilities which will be paid with current expendable available financial resources
are reported in the General Fund. Those labilities which will not be paid with current expendable available
financial resources at June 30, 1995 are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
(GLTOAG). All accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1995 are summarized as follows {(expressed in
thousands):

General Fund GLTOAG Total

Employe disability.......occermevrrveceeceaenns $ 111,456 $ 677,289 $ 788,745
Annuitant medical/hospital ................... 31,700 e 31,700
Automobile 1Ot ..oeevvereeveeeiiinie e 2,768 10,774 13,542
Employe tort ......coccv v rvecinre e, 2,481 17,755 20,236
General tOTL .ot evee e 1,545 35,677 37,222
Transportation .........c.coveveveeeeceercrernnn.. e 236,973 236,973

0] 1 U $ 149,950 $ 978,468 $1,128,418

The following summary provides aggregated information on prior year self-insurance liabilities; incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June
30, 1995 {(expressed in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1994 Claims Payments 1995
Liability ' Current Prior ' Current Prior | Liability

Employe disability ............... $651,278 $206,762 $ 2,672 $ 10,374 $ 61,593 $ 788,745
Annuitant medical/hospital .. - 177,840 Ce 146,140 e 31,700

~ Automobile tort .......cce.n.c... 11,845 1,273 3,393 501 2,468 13,542
Employe tort ...cceeveeeecerrenae. 17,810 769 9,699 5 8,037 20,236
General tort .......covvcrevrevrnreens 33,209 465 4,541 5 978 37,222
Transportation...........oevueens 218,000 - 18,973 R e 236,973
Totals c.covrermrreererirnerens $932,142  §$387,109 $ 39278 $157,035 $ 73,076 $1,128418




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1995 the Department of Transportation and the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual commitments
of approximately $1,192 million and $122 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass
transit projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarity from approved federal grants and
general obligation bond sales. In addition, the Commonweaith has certain contractual commitments for future
purchases of various goods and services approximating $1.9 billion at June 30, 1995. These commitments are
contingent upon the availability of financial resources.

At June 30, 1995 the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that had not been
disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ........c.ccvevcriviarens h) 170
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority .......cccoovvevvveneeee 213
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZency ......ceiveccimrscecesineennns 128

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component units have
commitments to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1995 were as follows {expressed in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:

TOO6 ... e rierieieraan s e st casa s s eat e s enre st s sesas s e nne $ 186,384
8 U U 89,491
[0 Cvrrens sttt e nens e easann 73,012
1999 . ettt e s 73,674
2000 ettt s e e s e ene 41,512
LALeF YEALS ....eerererriirecrsiussrenssrerneressmranesencmrrresanssnseensemrensen 214,895

Total Minimum Lease PAYmMents .......cocoveererveccnen $ 678968

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended Fune 390, 1995 amounted to
$242 million.

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matiers normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other
alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities
at June 30, 1995 with respect to torts as described in Note O and as follows with respect to other matters of
litigation for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable (expressed in thousands):

GeNeral FUN ... reres e saesresrerresssrassseesrasrenerreamrresamsreress $ 4,237
Banking Fund ......ceeceeninieiiencsssee e e 1,800
Capital Facilities Fund .......cceeeevmrcmmeecnniee e 73
Other Generat Long-Term Obligations ......oveeeevecoceervereececcecaca 216,898

" Additionally, the Commonwealth has been involved over the past several years in certain legal proceedings
relative to bank taxes which continues into the present year. Other cases that the Commonwealth is currently
vigorously contesting could range from approximately $343 to $626 million, $2 to $32 million, and $1 to $30
million of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenne Funds and Capital Projects Funds,
respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could
range from $3 to approximately $18 million, $148 thousand to $2 million and zero to $3 million of additional
liabilities for the College and University Funds, Proprietary Funds and a Fiduciary Fund, respectively, and
could result in approximately $3 million of additional liabilities for Governmental Funds,

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings for which accruals have not been made, it is the
opinion of the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the
Commonwealth’s financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (confinued)

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government
in the form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in the
general purpose financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms
and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources
for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial
and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees. Disallowances
and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth is
currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various
disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $197 to $424 million. The
Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material
effect on the general purpose financial statements.

At June 30, 1995 the Commonwealth had custedy of $548 million in Federal Food Stamps. These food stamps
will be distributed to eligible recipients in accordance with Federal regulations.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident
students. Total outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $10.4 billion at June 30, 1995, Under
the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy, and default claims paid to lenders.
Pursuant to this agreement, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there is
compliance with various federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 78 percent to 100 percent depending
upon default rates in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the year ended June 30, 1995, PHEAA’s
default rate was in a range that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department.

Other Contingency: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has entered into agreements with
insurance companies under which the Lottery purchases annuities under group contracts which provide payments
corresponding to the State Lottery Fund’s obligation to prize winners. The Commonwealth would be liable for
such future payments if the insurance companies would default on their payment. In the event of default, the
Commonwealth would have to fund future prize payments amounting to $2.3 billion, discounted at an interest
rate of 6.8 percent to a net present value of $1.3 billion at June 30, 1995.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q—MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND,

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate
the payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by health care providers
practicing in the Commonwealth. The Fund levies health care provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance
premiums for basic coverage, to pay claims and administrative expenses paid on behalf of health care providers
during the prior year. The actuarially computed liability to the health care providers for claims outstanding at
June 30, 1995 totals $1,872.5 million ($1,514.8 million at present value based on the expected payment
pattern and an assumed long-term interest rate of 4 percent). The amount of expendable financial resources
available to pay claims at June 30, 1995 is $100.6 million. This is reported as a fund liability. The remaining
claims will be funded exclusively through surcharge assessments in future years as claims are settled and paid;
as aresult, a financial liability for remaining claims is not reported. The following is a summary of the increases
and decreases of the Fund’s assets for the year ended June 30, 1995 (expressed in thousands);

Fund assets, July 1, 1994 .......covevrvecerrererens $ 112,136
Surcharges to health care providers ............. 177,309
Investment €arnings .....uceeveressessssssneesransnns 5,605
Payments to claimants .........coeninimsnsiienns (172,276)
AdmInIStrative CoStS .vveerrrrerrreersescerscersrersens (17,505)

Fund assets, June 30, 1995 ...veeeervrineeeens § 105,269

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth offers its employes a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are
not available to employes until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts, and
all income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject only
to the claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of
general creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account of
each participant. The Commonwealth has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due
" care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes it is unlikely that
plan assets will be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $219 million in assets (at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund,
at December 31, 1994, $215 million relates to primary government employes and $3 million relates to employes
of discretely presented component units. The remaining balance of $1 million relates to organizations not
included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.

[ —




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S—JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, and various labor unions representing
Commonwealth employes participate in a joint venture, the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
(PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare benefits for active employes; the PEBTF
is a third party administrator for annuitant medical/hospital benefits. The Commonwealth is required to fund
all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of providing benefits; the unions are not required to make
contributions. Confribution rates and/or amounts are established by collective bargaining agreements and
administrative policies. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995, the Commonwealth paid PEBTF over
$580 million in contributions to fund benefits. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity
interest in the PEBTF. At June 30, 1995, the PEBTF reported total assets of $266 million, total liabilities and
benefit obligations of $97 million, and net assets available for benefits of $169 million. During the fiscal year,
net assets available for benefits increased by $74 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored on
an ongoing basis; financial stress is not evident.

As of June 30, 1995, under the annuitant medical/hospital program, the Commonwealth has funded almost
$7 million which is part of escrow and advance amounts which the PEBTF must maintain at program service
providers. In addition, under the annuitant program, the Commonwealth must maintain balances of $15
million (in a special account} which the PEBTF may borrow to meet short term cash needs; no amounts were
borrowed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. Separately, the Commonwealth must also maintain $15
million (in a special account) from which the PEBTF may draw to pay for annuitant claims and administrative
costs in excess of Commonwealth contributions to the PEBTF. The PEBTF need not repay amounts drawn
from this account; no amounts were drawn by the PEBTF during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:
Brian Kilty
Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On September 30, 1995, the Insurance Commissioner levied an emergency surcharge of 68 percent on all
health care providers participating in the Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency
Fund, as of August 31, 1995. The emergency surcharge, the first to be levied in the 20 year history of the fund,
was necessary to collect additional surcharge revenues of $107 million. This approximates the shortfall between
the normal surcharge remittance and the c¢laims payout of $279.5 million for the ¢laims year ended August 31,
1995. Actions were initiated to contract with a reinsurance company for finite risk insurance on Qctober 18,
1995. This action was necessary, considering the ability of the fund to collect the necessary revenues within
the short period of time until December 29, 1995, the date that payout of claims for the claims year ended
August 31, 1995 must be completed. If purchased, reinsurance will increase the operating expenses of the
Fund for the current period through December 31, 1995.

On October 25, 1995 the Commonwealth issued $500 million in Tax Anticipation Notes, First Series of 1995-
96. The notes are payable from and secured by the pledges of revenues to be received in the General Fund
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1996. These obligations are due and payable no later than June 30, 1996.

On November 15, 1995 the Commonwealth issued $179.5 million of General Obligation Bonds, Second
Series of 1995 with an interest rate of 5 percent. Bond proceeds will be used for the construction and acquisition
of capital facilities projects, loans to construct, rehabilitate and improve water supply, storm water control and
sewage treatment systems, and to promote ecoromic redevelopment.

On December 13, 1995, the General Assembly approved a legal settlement and enacted an appropriation to
pay $145 million to Envirotest Systems Corporation of Arizona (Envirotest) in four installment payments
ending in July 1998. Including potential reimbursements to Envirotest for possible losses from selling 78
testing sites already constructed, and interest at 6 percent, the maximum settlement liability could be as high
as $171.4 million. This amount is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Discretely Presented Component Units

On July 3, 1995 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component
unit, remarketed $110 million Student Loan Adjustable Rate Tender Revenue Bonds 1988 Series B. As a
result, the interest rates are now reset weekly by the remarketing agent on the basis of prevailing market
conditions. The rate at July 3, 1995 was 3.25 percent.

On July 26, 1995 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund component unit,
issued $4.7 million of Multi-Family Limited Obligation Rental Housing 501 (c)(3) Bonds, Issue 1995, The
proceeds of these bonds will be used to provide second mortgages to four Section 8 Muiti-Family Projects.

On August 1, 1995 the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $350 thousand of Multi-Family Moderate
Rehabilitation Revenue Bonds Issue 1985B and $1.7 million of Multi-Family Housing bonds Issue 1985B
using the proceeds of a mortgage restructuring and prepayment, respectively. An extraordinary Joss of $81
thousand resulted from the redemptions. :

On October 2, 1995 the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $2.1 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series N and O using mortgage prepayments. An extraordinary ioss of $41 thousand resulted from the
redemptions.

On November 2, 1995 the PHFA issued $50 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue bonds, Series 1995-
46. The proceeds of these bonds will be used to provide new single family mortgage loans.

[———
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted
to expenditure for specified purposes.

State Lottery Fund — to account for the payment of prizes to winners in the state Iottery, for property tax and rent
assistance to the elderly, for mass transit fare subsidies, for the inflation dividend program for the elderly and for a partial
rebate of drug and medical costs incurred by the elderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge improvement, design and maintenance, for the purchase of
Rights-of-Way, for aviation activities, for transportation licensing and safety activities, for payment of subsidies for
construction and maintenance of roads, and for financing Pennsylvania State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. The Fund assesses insurance companies and self-
insured businesses a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these Acts.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — to account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of
the Commonwealth’s transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, an additional motor vehicle
lease tax, and a motor vehicle rental fee,

Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund — to account for a limited pharmaceutical assistance program for the Commonwealth’s
senijor citizens who are 65 years of age or older.

Water Facilities Loan Fund — to account for the implementation of the water project loan referendum that authorizes the
Commonwezlth to approve loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement of
water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Repayments of principal and interest from loans
are transferred to the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund — to account for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout
Pennsylvania, for grants and loans for industrial and small business development, for acquisition of equipment for vocational
programs in secondary schools, and for agricultural and recreational programs.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid
waste is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection
and propagation of game and aquatic life.

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Other — to account for programs related to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous

Commonwealth activities. This other category includes thirty-two individual special revenue funds.

There are a total of foriy-two special revenue funds.
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Debt Service Funds
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fond.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and
small business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic
Revitalization Fund.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction
and improvement to waier supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities
Loan Fund.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for
the acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the

General Fund. This other category includes eight individual debt service funds.

There are a total of fourteen debt service funds.
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Capital Projects Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other public
organizations.

Capital Facilities Furd — to account for the proceeds of general obligation bonds to meet the financing costs of capital
projects specifically itemized and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties for the repair, expansion,
construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multicounty regional prison facilities, or for
the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing programs.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to improve and
expand Commonwealth and community parks, recreation facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves
and wildlife habitats.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to meet the financing costs for the
acquisition, development and improvement to Commonwealth land and water facilities.

There are a total of four capital projects funds.




COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
ASSETS
L0 - OO $ 3 b3 1 $ ... $ ... § 4
Temporary iNVESHINENLS .. .....ceeeceremeceernmsnrernsrsasess 172,306 16,169 38,476 3,789 230,740
Receivables, net:

Accrued interest ..o et erernen 933 97 194 19 1,243
Due from other funds ..................... 1,173 1,173
Due from other governments 1,061 1,061

TOTALASSETS ... $ 175476 $ 16,267 $ 38,670 $ 3,808 $ 234221
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: 7

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......... $ 44664 $ 4,619 $ 624 $ 13 $ 49,920

Due to other funds ......coeeeeeeeeeiereeevreeenienns 879 . 2 19 900

Due to other goveriments..........cocvreevanssrinnns 581 581

TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o 46,124 4,619 626 2 51,401
Fund Balance:

Reserved for:

ENCUMDBIAACES ... .. verveeecvarsrersrnessersrnsrasseresasres 543,252 2,911 1,670 191 548,024

Unreserved:

Designated for:

Capital PrOJECLS evcvrrrremsreevesseresmmssrerrassenes ceen 8,737 36,374 3,585 48,696
Undesignated (deficit) ...covevevvcersreenrrcencan (413,900) cees . (413,900)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ....................... 129,352 11,648 38,044 3,776 182,820

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .. $ 175476 $ 16,267 $ 38,670 $ 3,808 $ 234221




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended june 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
REVENUES:
TEXES <. cmeeerieveseresnsassismsmssssesessmsmrsssmsssnsresssssssssracsrs B e $ $ 31,204 $ $ 31,204
Intergovernmental ......cocieeeerrcenesienens 5,024 e 5,024
Charges for goods and Services ....oeveervcsnncsieans 2,571 cens cenn e 2,571
Investment INCOME ..ot eececsirenassras i rnsnsessans 6,860 964 1,193 232 9,249
OHREE c.veevveterremsesssnesiessniesesestmeasas sasesesrossssesrssesanss 362 e 31 393
TOTAL REVENUES........cccccverrurmrvrmecsrraraerase 14,817 964 32,397 263 48,441
EXPENDITURES: _
General GOVEITIMNENL .......c..ccoivvmeniessanesrssssnssansraes 1,830 - 1,830
Protection of persons and property ......eesreeserseiess e 46,704 s 46,704
Conservation of natiral reSOUTCES .uuvvvvvcvsrereesnirns 273 e 6,215 6,488
Economic development and assistance .............. 34,525 cees 34,525
TranSPOTLAON - eoeeeeeeme s csssisnsassnnssseies 104,878 e 104,878
Capital QULIAY .oververerececrmireree s sesscrsssnsassons 196,310 929 197,239
Debt Service:
Interest and fiscal Charges ......e.veevmeremececerecccas i2 12
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... 337,816 46,704 6,227 928 391,676
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ........ccovuverreruacmcmcamanroenenes (322,999) (45,740) 26,170 (666) (343,235)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceads ... ercceneemeencrnenesrmissessnsssnines 370,858 56,411 11,874 A 439,143
Operating transfers oul ..o csnsevesinessserenns (25,450) .. - {489) (25,939)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) .ceeeermeeermrceesssunassnres 345,408 56,411 11,874 (489) 413,204
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER USES .......ovvvienerenrsseresmseesaenssessnssens 22,409 10,671 38,044 (1,155) 69,969
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1994 .....oovcceeerreeeerns 106,943 977 4,931 112,851
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,1995 .........c.ccce.... $ 129,352 $ 11,648 $ 38,044 $ 3,76 $ 182,820
R,
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Sunny Day Fund — to account for and provide assistance to the Governor and the Economic Development Partnership in
their effort to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises to the Commonwealth.

Capital Loan Fund — to account for and provide low interest loans to businesses for the purchase of land, buildings,
machinery, equipment and for working capital.

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for and provide workmen’s insurance to private employers in the
Commonwealth, including those unable to obtain coverage from private insurance firms.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operation of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the Liquor Store System and enforcement of the Liguor Control
Law.

Volunteer Companies Loar Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide loans to minority business and for operating expenses
of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments, transfers
from the General Fund and interest.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest machinery and equipment financing to
Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value added-capacity. Sources of revenue include
loan repayments, transfers from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund and interest earnings.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers and
vocational rehabilitation services and loans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development
enterprises to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. This other category includes eight individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of fifteen enterprise funds.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS o
DESCRIPTION o

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the Ll
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions.

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods by inmates in the institutions of the Department
of Corrections. .

There are a total of two internal service funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
[ (Expressed in Thousands) :

Purchasing Manufacturing Total

ASSETS
CASH 11eerieicrmrire st risene s ars s rns s st er s en e s er e pnss b n s ettt mmnene e e nnens 5 91 3 186 $ 277
Temporary iVESHITIENTS ..vvviiverereiresrasssresiensssstsss o esssssssonnens s eeeeens 11,851 1,157 13,008
Receivables, net: '
ACCOUNLS covieverirseresreraeeressesesaeesesesanasasnsssasnasnassasssssssasinrasanssesasans 13 ce 13
64 4 68
ceen 39 59
13,311 2,348 15,659
Due from COMPONENE BIELS ...coweernsesesearerssss sesee soeeesmssmssrecsrsesenesns 977 30 1,007
Due from other governments 200 57 257
IBVENIOTY .ot resnss s s aes esscobastmsrme s rass s st ennessenssssaennsanns 2,133 12,568 14,701
FIXEA A8SELS ..vuvereeisirricesstir e e e e enen s emema s e s s e e rsanebens 39,804 19,851 59,745
Less: accumulated depreciation .. (21,021) {9,686) {30,707)
OHDET ASSLLS ...vieccresvrerrveneerrnesrirsississesnessrerssasmessmvanssssantessasssnssasasssssaras 2,207 25 2,232

TOTAL ASSETS ...t enssssses s s emsee e eemeamseenenses $ 49,720 § 26,599 $ 76,319

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities: '
Accounts payable and accried liabilities
Due to other funds ......o...cooeveeemremsrenesressnons
Due to other governments...
Deferred revenue ... cees
NOtes payable ... .ot et 2,732 e 2,732

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...t ecenasenaees 16,870 3,582 20,452

$ 10,708 $ 3369 $ 14,077
3,418 154 3,612
12 18 30

—
[y

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital ... oo et anr e snns e e s sreenis 9219 e 9,219
Retained earnings: ‘
URIESEIVEA ...o.coeeeeeee e sesraes srsas s ensnssersnna s aneaen 23,631 23,017 46,648

TOTAL FUND EQUITY .....coictiiimcscensesicasscssssescmnescasssenecnss 32,850 23,017 55,867
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY ..........ccoccerrurrmnircene $ 49,720 $ 26,599 $ 76319




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, _ : j ]

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchasing Manufacturing Total .
P
OPERATING REVENUES: -
521E5 AN SEIVICES .ovvevrresitimeesessinessssssecssssaesssasssnssesssssssrssaresararesasane $ 74,959 $ 26,904 $ 101,863 )
OE wevrerreaeeseseseeeescssssese s seee oo sser e serss e i e 35 35 H
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ..ccouurvcemrmerrsessssssmsssnees $ 74959 $ 26,939 $ 101,898 L
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services 71,674 24,366 96,040
DEPIECiation ......cc.vcrseerunssrescsossrorerssssseenns 6,125 1,033 7,158 -
Provision for uncollectible accounts - 266 266 .
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . e 77,799 25,663 103,464 o
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ... srennersravasannasas (2,840) 1,274 (1,566)
NONOFPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): oy
Investment income 966 88 1,054 o
Interest expense ............. (582) e (582) ot
(HRIET 1vvreerrvensorcnsereonseaaeeanseerammeaameeansessmtee srmessbetesannanrt sebsssatessbisasatons 426 (223) 203
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET ............ 310 (135) 675 '
NET INCOME (LOSS) ..o tecteeciveresstissssssna e senressasransnavas (2,030) 1,139 (891) ]
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1994 ... eviirineereescsnersnnenesans 25,661 - 21,878 47,539 :flr 1
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30,1995 ................... $ 23,631 $ 23,017 $ 46,648

R
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR}
OPERATIONS:
Operating income (1058) ...cocorrirrce e srcae e cer e e e se s

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation .....ccooovereerermererersnenornes
Provision for uncollectible accounts ...
NOTODPELALNG TEVEIUE ... eeereerrrsecrassissesissse cosesessseesssnsrsensmeneessesmsssn
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables .. .
(Increase) decrease in due fmm other funds
Inerease in due from component units ..
(Increase) decrease in due from other govemments
(Increase) decrease in inventory ...
Decrease in Other assels .......c..cverisrreriremesnesismssrarsmsssesmarssrasssassaseaes
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...
Decrease in due t0 ofher funds ......cvceerererereecesmmnasinssreessiesisesans
Decrease in due to other governments
Increase in deferred reVenUe ......ccoee i scsaestreecesenras esssctie st eeenns

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ...t vcnseecasncessnns .

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES ..ot e sssas s s s een

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES: ‘

Principal paid on notes payable ........cowcrecesieescenicesnecrnsssesssnens

Interest paid on notes payable ...... smestensssesss sy eassbeneaee
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..........oorererescscrnrmnrrersssssenens

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid on revenue bonds ... esmisnmeresseneesinns
Acquisition and construction of capital 855€tS.....ccvcwrrrneriressseranis
Proceeds from sale of capital aS5ets ......ceereerereserrarinsceressssssens

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..........cccoiccrercnneees

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESHMENLS ... ieecreee s rrareresssssressserssatesens
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments
Investment INCOME ........ccccereecceereereerersaeeretessrevsrsseterar s srvssnaseasnas

NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH ...............

Purchasing Manufacturing Total
$ (2.840) $ 1,274 % (1,566)
6,125 1,033 7,158
- 266 266
25 e 25
25 15 40
(5436) 1,061 (4,375)
(27) (21) (48)
33 ' (37) (4)
145 (2,088) { 1,943)
1,324 72 1,396
1,618 (712) 1,546
(3,400) (42) (5,442)
(10) (13) (23)
e 1 1
(1,578) 175 (1,403)
(4418) 1,449 (2,969)
(1,238) {1,238)
(242) . (242)
(1,480) (1,480)
(340) e (340)
(6,550) (4,079) (10,629
1,226 . 1,226
(5,664) (4,079) (9,743)
(38,940 (19,951) (58,891)
49391 22,506 71,897
966 88 1,054
11,417 2,643 14,060
(145) 13 (132)
236 173 409
$ 91 $ 186 $ 277
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Trust and Agency Funds |

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and Agency Funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
These include Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer and employe taxes, for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to transfer and receive monies from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to
individuals who are insured by an insolvent stock insurance company and for the administrative costs to administer the
program.

Catastrophic Loess Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses
over $100,000 to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund (no
longer in existence).

Other — to account for financial assistance to public schools for certain repairs or alterations to buildings and for

reimbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgements against any person licensed by the Real Estate Commission.

This other category inciudes three individual expendable trust funds.

PENSION TRUST FUND:

State Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members
of the State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

AGENCY FUNDS

Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect and administer funds for a program to provide claim
payments to owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective action, for
bodily injury or for property damage caused by a release from underground storage tanks.

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
policybolders and stockholders.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are
deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premiums tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance
companies conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities
must pay these monies to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to collect a portion of the insurance company tax revenues for distribution to municipalities
for distribution to police and fire pension funds.

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to collect annual surcharges levied on health care providers to
make professional liability insurance available at a reasonable cost to health care providers.

INVEST Program For Local Governments — to pool and invest amounts owned by local governments and school
districts. Participation in the Program is voluntary.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the
Federal Government. This other category includes eight individual agency funds.

There are a total of six expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund and fifteen agency funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Trust and Agency Funds
June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Expendable Pension Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
. a8 et st e eas 5 12,524 $ 1 $ 4,548 5 17,073
Cash with fiscal agentS ..o occreercerecee e erenrerseeseses s 1,906,690 e 4 1,906,694
Temporary iNVESIMENTS .....cc.covreurreeerverrressssersrsssneresssserens 206,523 193,641 950,327 1,350,491
LONG-term iNVESIMENLS «..o.cecvvecrueescernersesressesereamsesresesseseaes 252,156 12,977,551 283,200 13,512,907
Receivables, net:
TEXES cvovrvrarnsssarssisssanssrnassassrrsssssssssssssssesnassrasanasa sesssssssens 389,960 e 2,596 392,556
8,687 - 64,226 72913
7,552 82,156 7,988 97,696
ceen 128 193 321
3371 70,351 5,488 79,210
Due from cOMPONENt UMILS «....c.oveerecereeeeceeeecemeneennrereraseres 283 8,901 . 9,184
Due from other governments ........cc.cceeeeceeeeecnrarecrsenens 17,280 8,027 ce 25,307
Fixed assets ....cccccerenrericeenenunearinas caes 759 e 759
Less: accumulated depreciation...........ccocoeooeececerrnrenaens e (155) ceee (155)
ONET ASELLS ...vevreiesscreraesrainiesseeesasseemesseesnsnarennesnssrenenare .. 105,361 105,361
TOTAL ASSETS ........cooiieesrvenmcasiorennevesssmsasresesseseeans $ 2,805,026 513,341,360 $ 1,423,931 $17,570,317
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities ..oovveecrvene.. 5 115787 5 10,241 $ 304,637 $ 430,665
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements ....... R . 16,872 16,872
Tax refunds payable ... ne 6,912 s e 6912
Due to other funds ..........occoeenirceics s s iressieeene e 119 156 613 888
Due to 0ther SOVEIMINENLS ......cvuseveesiseessimsncrrcenesreecns 3.813 e 461,170 464,983
Other HaDilItes .. ..ooveevrermivereeceieeeeeeserrreresmesressessernnas : 640,639 640,639
TOTAL LIABILITIES ......ccovorceeveesrereressmseessrnnns 126,631 10,397 1,423,931 1,560,959
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
ENCUMDBIANCeS ....ccccvmeeevereerersseveevss seassrissnaesasssssesenen 13,451 e e 13,451
Pension benefits - 13,330,963 e 13,330,963
Long-term investments ............... T, 252,156 ceee cee 252,156
Unreserved:
Designated for:
OHhET . vse s e s e srsane s 3,178 e e 3,178
Undesignated .........cooeicrruensrerersesieresseresesessrseesserssesnns 2,409,610 R e 2,409,610
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ... 2,678,395 13,330,963 R 16,609,358
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ......... $ 2,805,026 $ 13,341,360 $ 1,423,931 $ 17,570,317




COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Expendable Trust Funds
June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Workmen’s
Compensation  Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits
Compensation Trust Continuation Other Total
ASSETS
Cash ottt 8 12,100 $ 255 $ 8 $ 161 $ 12524
Cash with fiscal 8BNS ......cceiiiiicisnsieissnsissniaes 1,906,600 e e . 1,906,690
Temporary investments ............... 200 132,048 39,677 34,598 206,523
Long-term investments 252,156 252,156
Receivables, net:
THXES .o veeneermrerraesesrssnesossrsssssrarersensareraeseerasaeses 389,960 e e 389,960
ACCOUMS ...cvvverrerrnns 1,982 40 6,665 e 8,687
Accrued interest ....... 3 5,655 178 1,716 7,552
Due from other funds.......... S 3,368 3 3,371
-Due from component UMits .......coeeveeeeeeeees 283 283
Due from other governments ...........oceeeerceiimenenns. 17,280 17,280
TOTAL ASSETS ...t ree e $ 2,331,866 $ 390,157 $ 46,528 $ 36,475 $ 2,805,026
LIABILITIES AND ¥UND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......... $ 70,706 $ 2879 $ 16,200 $ 87 $ 115,787
Tax refunds payable .........cccvcnrniencnenncninenens 6,912 e e 6,912
Due to other funds e 105 14 11%
Due to other governments 3,812 1 3,813
TOTAL LIABILITIES .......ccoorrrroeremencemrnns 81,430 28,794 16,305 102 126,631
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances.......ueeresnnecccommaseseccscesnsonesncs 13,394 57 13,451
Long-term investments .........vce... errrereeraeraens 252,156 252,156
Unreserved:
Designated for:

OLHET ... cssrssns snerases e e e e 3,178 3,178
Undesignated ..o e 2,250,436 95,813 30,223 33,138 2,409,610
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ... 2,250,436 361,363 30,223 36,373 2,678,393

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ..  § 2,331,866 $ 390,157 $ 46,528 $ 36,475 $ 2,805,026
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands}
Workmen’s .
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits
Compensation Trust Continuation Other Total
REVENUES:
Taxes ... STV STUTTUUUUP. 5,853 $ e $ ... $ ... $ 5,853
Unemploymcnt taxes ............................................ 1,930,269 . BN e 1,930,269
Licenses and fees .. R 56,976 37,661 3,553 98,190
Intergovemmental 74,326 e I e 74,326
Investment INCOME ......ooeceereeeceeeeeteeeeeeeeereevsnrererens 103,382 24,374 1,768 1,781 131,305
195 14,313 A 20,678 35,186
2,114,025 95,663 39,429 26,012 2,275,129
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government .. e 4,586 1,274 1,933 7,793
Protection of persons and propcxty ................... e 25,538 17,892 209 43,639
Public health and welfare ......... 1,622 843 I s e 1,622,843
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,622,843 30,124 19,166 2,142 - 1,674,275
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES........ 491,182 65,539 20,263 23,870 600,854
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Operating transfers out ..o e cee cee- (6) (6)
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES ..o 491,182 65,539 20,263 23,864 600,848
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1994 .......oiveviemnen. 1,759,254 295,824 9,960 12,509 2,077,547
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30,1995 .................... $ 2,250,436 $ 361,363 $ 30,223 $ 36,373 $ 2,678,395
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds '

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Balance

Balance
ressed in Th il
e ousands) July 1,1994 Additions Deductions  June 30, 1995

Sritd
" T T

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
INDEMNIFICATION FUND .

s st

ASSETS
Cash e $ 1 $114,872 $114,872 $ 1 _
Temporary investments 41,795 116,913 2,837 155,871 }
Receivabies, net: |
ACCTUEA INLETESE ...oooeeeceeveeeeceeereeereeeeeeeeeeceereessenemeeon 135 4,963 4,329 769 '
TOTAL ASSETS ..o ccrcenrcreserreresssieverenenns $ 41,931 $236,748 $122,038 $ 156,641
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued labilities .....oocvvrevernes $ 2556 $ 64,799 $ 2,559 $ 64,796 -
Due to other funds : 343 21 343 21 §
Due to other governments... 1 15 15 1 =
Other HabiHHES ...o.eovecciececercereccreren s ssme e rmamesasnens 39,031 55,165 2,373 91,823
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...........rnieinannnes $ 41931 $ 120,000 $ 529 $ 156,641 E’
STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS e
0 OO $ 1 $207,992 $ 207,993 5 ... i
Temporary investnents ........oceeeeeeeesrnes 172,920 193,575 172,920 193,575 '
Long-term INVESHMENDLS .......veeeerreveereressnssrersssnssscenas 58,750 32,879 15,514 76,115
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNLS vevvevrmersenrosasccrasnarerornssarsensessernsasserasastensasasens 64,733 1,217 19,558 46,392
Accrued interest 875 5,632 875 5,632
Due from other funds.......ccceverveenees S R 180 cees 180
L0 T g 13 1 26,820 73,220 325 99,715
TOTALASSETS . e $324,099 $ 514,695 $417,185 $ 421,609
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........cccouce.... $ 143 L £ ... $ 143
Due to other funds 259 3 259 3
Other Habilities ......ocoveoeev e reerrsesnn e sensssaronsscanens 323,697 142,434 44,668 421,463
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... $ 324,009 $142.437 § 44,927 $421,609
DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND .
(December 31) o
ASSETS
€SI cevvoormavuveermmsaserissmssssssmsesssisssssssssssssssssssssressessssmmesnns 9 1 $ 79,652 $ 79,652 $ 1 o
Cash with fiscal AZEME ... eceeerereerrerseererrsesreresessersseseres 1 4 1 4 b
Terporary INVESHNENES ....c.ov.viverceaceeeeerieareeesmrssrermsmrnes 10,717 15,228 13,445 12,499 i
Long-term INVESHMENTS ......cvviesvvecrmeeeesseees e e eenees "~ 159,883 54,191 7,277 206,797
Receivables, net: i
AccTued INETESt ..o eeeeereenem 29 5 29 52 ; i
L0 1= U 98 193 98 193 -
TOTAL ASSETS ... veceeeenee $170,729 $149,320 $ 100,503 $ 219,546
LIABILITIES ‘ : L
Accounts payable and accrued Labilities .........cocece.... $ 170,413 $ 59464 $ 10414 $ 219,463 .
DUe t0 Other FINAS cvvvverreveresirensirssrssserissransssesssssserensesns 316 83 316 83 [
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...........ocvecvirerienenne $ 170,729 $ 59,547 $ 10,730 $ 219,546 5
' i
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) COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
. Agency Funds — (continued)
' For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
July 1, 1994 Additions Deductions June 30, 1995
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
L0 T4, U $ 1 $112,059 $ 112,060 3 ...
Temporary investments 51,948 60,208 57,549 54,607
Receivables, net:
ACCIIEd TNIEIESE ... e ccececsecae e eee st eenesemesnssssens 189 300 . 189 300
TOTALASSETS ...t s § 52,138 $172,567 $ 169,798 $ 54,907
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds $ 189 $ 300 $ 189 $ 300
Due to other governments 51,949 54,510 51,852 54,607
TOTAL LIABILITIES ........ TR —— $ 52,138 $ 543810 $ 52,041 $ 54,907
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS :
0 | U U UV $ i 5260471 $ 260,471 $ 1
Temporary investments 117,828 133,592 131,656 119,764
Receivables, net:
ACCIUEd INEIESE ....eccerertecenstrermerrsmeseensesssssssessssevennn 429 611 420 611
Due from other funds 164 855 756 263
TOTAL ASSETS oo eees s $118422 $ 395,529 $ 393,312 $ 120,639
EJABILITIES
Due 10 Ofher FUNAS .....ceveieivveisiiiee oo eemvseressneaes 5 ... 3 1 5 ... $ 1
Due 10 Other SOVETAMENLS .......ceeeeeeeeeeeeeerreereenesresmae s 118,422 127,393 125,177 120,638
TOTAL LIABILTTIES ... $118,422 $127,394 $125177 $ 120,639
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND
ASSETS
CASH v rerrvsesrrrerrssessirsrssr s ies s snssss e smsns seem e mmem b eeeeonamenen $ 232 $ 365,964 $ 366,176 $ 20
Temporary iRVESEMENLS ..o..vrveverereeererrnssenrereresa oo srnenns 107,613 181,657 185,731 103,539
Receivables, net: -
ACCOUNES ..c.eeceeecririeceniierrets s rsesssssesamsnsenne st eearanens 3,925 1,252 3,963 1,214
ACCTUEH IMIETESL oo vvevecveerieisemseeressmeessanea e sessorrmsssens 366 5475 5,345 496
TOTALASSETS ...t $112,136 $ 554,348 $561,215 $ 105,269
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued labilities .......oun...... 5 71752 $ 4631 5 7,786 $ 4597
Due to other funds ..........cccecereeev e 32 47 32 47
Due 1o other governments 5 90 90 5
Other Labilities ........ccoecceoeeeee e eeresrerre s esa s saerane 104,347 180,233 183,960 100,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES .........ccoocciiiiiiocaeerecnn. $112,136 $ 185,001 $ 191,868 $ 105,269
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds — (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

INVEST PROGRAM FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS
(December 31)
ASSETS
Temporary INVESLINENLS .ueviverrererrsrasercsesssesemssessensseananasas

TOTAL ASSETS ....occonneee N —

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements .......
Due to other GOVEMMENES........coveeiirresesesssisensneressennne

OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS

Temporary iNVESLIMENTS .....cvrivriverersnersresservrrsrsnssassassnanas
Long-term inVEStIENES v..ouicreerirervimsereressnssssnssersensensrnss
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES ..veerrererrrrsrsrresmresersaessmreamrm s orsstssasss sessssrssvases
Accrued interest .........
Due from other funds.....
Other 58685 ...eeeevvuernrnees

TOTAL ASSETS ...

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .........ccovieeeeen
Due to other funds
Due to other gOVEINMERLS ........oovvcvvvrirrrarsessrsressremrenses
Other liabilities ......ocooreverrrvervareeseren revestresserresaterssarerasas

TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash with fiscal agents
TeMPOLALY INVESHMENLS -..oevoeeeeereceereerseersemesssassssssssssions
Long-term investMents ...ocievoserieemsmeecessacessesenssnnsces
Receivables, net:
Taxes
Accounts

TOTAL ASSETS ...t

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .....................
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements .......
Due to other fands ...o.ve oot
Due to other governments......
Other Habilities ......oocivieesenrernsessorsnsnsssmssnsrnssssnesessinrans

TOTAL LIABILITIES ... fesemsrresasrea e

Balance Balance
July 1, 1994 Additions Deductions June 30, 1995
$ 116452 $ 786,834 631,295 $ 271991
$ 116,452 $ 786,834 $ 631,295 $ 271,991
$ $ 676 $ e $ 676

. 16,872 et 16,872

116,452 769,286 631,295 254,443

$ 116,452 $ 786,834 $ 631,205 $ 271,991

$ 2,825 $ 824907 $ 823207 $ 4,525

37,549 371,337 370,405 38,481

1,313 1,025 288

2,725 2,596 2,725 2,596

12,491 4,403 274 16,620

96 128 96 128

1,377 5,045 1,377 5,045

5,179 519 52 5,646

$ 63,555 $ 1,208,935 $ 1,199,161 $ 73329

$ 13,179 $ 14,670 $ 12,887 $ 14962

171 3,871 3,884 158

26,203 420,726 415,453 31,476

24,002 37,295 34,564 26,733

$ 63,555 $ 476,562 $ 466,788 $ 73,329

$ 3,062 $ 1,965,917 $ 1,964,431 $ 4548

1 4 1 4

656,822 1,859,344 1,565,839 950,327

219,946 87,070 23,816 283,200

2,725 2,596 2,725 2,596

81,149 6,872 23,795 64,226

2,119 17,161 11,292 7,988

98 193 98 193

1,541 6,080 2,133 5488

31,999 73,739 377 105,361

$ 999,462 $ 4,018,976 $ 3,594,507 $ 1,423,931

$ 194,043 $ 144240 $ 33,646 $ 304,637

R 16,872 e 16,872

1,310 4,326 5,023 613

313,032 1,372,020 1,223,882 461,170

491,077 415,127 265,565 640,639

$ 999462 $ 1,952,585 $1,528,116 $1,423,031
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General Fixed Assets
Account Group

' Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DESCRIPTION -

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for general government puposes. These include all fixed assets except those accounted
for in Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds. .

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAIL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance n
July 1, June 30, : }
1994 Additions Retirements 1995 h
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS: B
a0 oo senaseenneas $ 238843 $ 2460 $ 34 $ 241,269 |
Buildings ....oocoeveeerinsnnrenrieiesiensessiennne 2,667,274 26,342 et 2,693,616 '
Improvements other than buildings ...... 196,088 307 e 196,895 : .
Furniture, machinery and equipment.... 503,472 68,281 18,756 552,997 —!
3,605,677 97,890 18,790 3,684,777
Construction in progress ......... everersiens 88,645 167,920 25,308 231,257
Total General Fixed Assets ........... $ 3,694,322 $ 265,810 § 44,098 $ 3916,034 i
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL }
FIXED ASSETS: - L
Acquired on or before June 30, 1986 ... $ 2,011,592. $ . $ 7.887 $ 2,003,705 P
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from:
General fund revenues ......ccoeoevvveneens 584,731 18,666 10,489 592,908 _
General obligation bonds ........ceeeee.. 735,092 25,324 5 760,411 .
Federal grants .......cursimesnasnnes 28,692 5,284 34 33,942 C
Special revenue funds 237,543 48,558 375 285,726 '
DONAHONS -...ccccvnnsvimmississisansasssssseranss 7,833 8 e 7,841 .
CORFISCALIONS .vcesrvrsercrenrrsesiones 194 50 . 244 ol
Total SOUTCES ....coveermememrercmrceeaemenes 3,605,677 97,890 18,790 3.684,777 |
CORSLrUCHION iR PTOBTESS w.crerrrr e 88,645 167,920 25,308 231,257 %
Total Investment in General Fixed _
ASSELS e eeverreerenn $ 3,694,322 $ 265,810 $ 44,098 $ 3,916,034 "i !‘

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acguired on or before June 30, 1986 are not available, o



SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Furniture
Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION
General GOVEITIMEDL «.....ccovvveureccrnrasssensasesensrassasans $ 9,793 $ 456,155 $ 23,095 $ 57,986 $ 547,029
Protection of persons and property .....c.oeovsveseeras 8,952 936,563 88,737 55,216 1,089,468
Public health and welfare ........ccorevrererenrvarsrscrnenne 2,954 573492 18,132 76,139 666,717
Public education ........coeeeruiversranrenns 17,453 597,219 49,418 5,339 669,429
Conservation of natural feSOULCES uvvvirrrevsresnnne 198,771 60,412 10,870 35,724 305,777
Economic development and assistance..... e e cen 406 406
TIANSPOILAION ....ceceveeaseeraesevssensnssoresasssennsnsrassensns 3,346 67,775 6,643 328,187 405,951
TOTALS ALLOCATED TO

FUNCTIONS .......oooeeeiceresarinsesessrasnanens $ 241,269 $2,693.616 $196,895 $552,997 3,684,777
Construction in PIOZTESS .-....coeeeerremrreecrrssnvssesrens 231,257

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ...........ccevnene.. $ 3,916,034

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
: Balance Balance
July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30,
1994 Additions Retirements In Out 1995

General SOVETNIRENE ..oevvereerseerarrmeeasnesesssseasssnssenrssesss $ 541270 § 9,061 $ 15,805 $19594 § 7,001 % 547,029
Protection of persons and property 1,081,850 16,823 732 681 9,154 1,089,468
Public health and welfare .........cccuerecvrmeenvnssiecnnnen. 652,837 14,574 447 239 486 666,717
Public dUCAtION .cvevevrrereemrrersrereamsmressssmssssssnsssessrsssssrsien 664,170 5,543 232 80 132 669,420
Conservation of natural resources .......coceveveeeeeervennns 291,326 14,823 457 184 99 305,777
Economic development and assistance.......coecveeveeeeeee. 386 49 29 Cie s 406
TraNSPOTIAHON e ciriet et e ereee et eeee e aeneee 373,838 37,017 1,088 323 4,139 405,951
' 3,605,677 97,890 18,790 21,101 21,101 3,684,777
CONSTUCHON iN PIOBIESS ...cererercreracranresasesenersrnsnes 88,645 167,920 25,308 e e 231,257
TOTALS .o ereertrcenasessssrasssssssresebassbosssetens $ 3,094,322 $ 265810 § 44,098 $ 2L101  $ 21,101 $ 3,916,034
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA TABLE 2
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

r-—u-——(ExprmedinThousands)——l 7

For The {

Fiscal Year -

Ended June 30 Net Bonded Debt Population Debt Per Capita

1985 $ 4,535,008 11,772 $ 385
1986 4,529,393 11,784 384
1987 4,558,839 11,812 386
1988 4,698,645 11,847 397
1989 4,705,202 11,866 397

1990 4,633,507 11,882 390 S

1991 4,787,512 11,958 400 L

1992 4,873,542 11,990 406 .
1993 5,040,938 12,030 419
1994 5,100,012 12,052 423

e

SOURCE: Population Information — U.S. Department of
Commerce, Bureau of the Census

[——,
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RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TABLE 3

FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT

TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
: For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

— (Expressed in Thousands) —

Debt Service :
For The Requirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
Ended June 30 General Fund Expenditures © %
1986 $ 350,195 $ 11,781,951 297
1987 371,702 12,395,674 3.00
1988 393,907 13,180,073 2.99
1989 381,617 13,949,111 2.74
1990 450,752 15,137,774 298
1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 521,875 19,540,459 2.67
1993 . 497,045 19,986,749 2.49
1994 512,094 21,060,058 243
1995 525,889 22,467,672 234

@ Excludes encumbrances included in “Total Expenditures” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN TABLE 4

As of August 31, 1995
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
Average annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five r
FISCAL YEATS ..ovveervrrsnsnssmrsescrscnsessmscssemsns e $ 17,664,551,936 B
Constitutional fACLOT ........cocovveurreereerccnerr et enenas X 1.75
!
Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the |
approval of the electors ....covveeveeveenrvencrrerererereeranerenas 30,912,965,888
Less outstanding net debt (non electorate approved) ........... 3,896,204,796
Legal debt MALZIn ...cc.coeceeeereeerciececrerene e saeseee e $ 27,016,761,092

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution, which provides: : 5

......

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the provisions of this .
section. .

(1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or natural disas-
ter, or to implement unissued anthority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

(2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes having a matu-
rity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the same fiscal year, and (ii) incur
debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures within the term of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if the question .
whether the debt shall be ircurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a majority of those voting on the L
question. ‘ o

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital budget L
if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-quarters times the average of :
the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified by the Auditor General. For the purposes
of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt incurred under clauses (1) and (2){i), or debt incurred under
clanse (2)(ii) if the original debt would not be so considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General
Assembly shall so provide in the law authorizing such debt.

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31, 1995, o
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE TABLE 5
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission®

(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiseal
Year Direct Net Revenure . .
Ended Gross Operating Available for — Debt Service Requirements |
May 31 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Totat Coverage
1986 $ 162,539 $ 93648 $ 68,891 $ 4662 $ 3,381 $ 8,043 8.57
1987 180,692 101,692 79,000 2,299 46,500 48,799 1.62
1988 221,807 100,875 120,932 3,225 56,514 59,739 2.02
1989 245,192 105,619 139,573 4,070 58,789 62,859 2.22
1990 252,373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73,051 196,991 10
1991 246,985 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 94
1992 312,079 . 113,217 198,862 7.450 76,628 84,078 2.37
1993 329,452 134,844 194,608 11,595 65,600 77,195 2.52
1994 344,617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2.51
1995 375,754 146,325 229,429 15,715 72,548 88,263 2.60

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority®

(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal .
o s oy heme Dbt Service Requiremects |
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1686 $ 23320 $ 1,897 $ 21,423 $ 7910 $ 13,359 $ 21,269 1.01
1987 23,370 1,574 21,796 8,620 12,433 21,053 1.04
1988 25,479 1,765 23,714 8,525 11,257 19,782 1.20
1989 29477 2,223 27,254 8,505 10,584 19,089 1.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 9,873 18,773 1.51
1991 28,963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11,015 19,455 1.38
1992 24,592 1,994 22,598 10,645 18,920 29,565 .76
1993 25,204 2,368 22,836 10,645 18,595 29,240 78
1994 29,802 2,138 27,664 23,085 19,116 42,201 .66
1995 30,806 2,864 27,942 4,335 - 20,123 24,458 1.14

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency®

(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
E‘{ge‘;i Gross O;f::itng 2:;5‘:;1?}::: | Debt Service Requirements !
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest™ Total Coverage
1986 $ 168,441 3 8,438 $ 160,003 3 13,386 $ 142332 $ 155,718 1.03
1987 159,034 8,088 150,946 14,987 136,625 151,612 1.00
1988 162,172 8,393 153,579 15,960 138,508 154,468 .99
1989 182,535 8,402 174,133 20,226 148,327 168,553 1.03
1990 199,101 9,133 189,968 21,568 157,104 178,672 1.06
1991 214,580 9,944 204,636 25,173 153,305 178,478 1.15
1992 206,991 8,496 198,495 28,118 172,146 200,264 99
1993 200,268 9,803 190,465 27410 166,480 193,890 .98
1994 194,025 13,325 180,700 29,426 143,904 173,330 1.05
1995 196,023 16,095 179,928 51,406 139,621 191,027 .94

@ Excludes interest on notes payable
® Discretely Presented Component Unit,
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION— TABLE 6
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA _ ¥

— (Expressed in Thousands) —

Calendar Year United States Pennsylvania %
1985 237,950 11,772 49
1986 240,162 11,784 49
1987 242,321 11,812 49
1988 244,534 11,847 48 X
1989 246,820 11,866 43 i
1990 248,710 11,882 48
1991 252,160 11,958 47 N
1992 255,028 11,990 47
1993 257,783 12,030 4.7 .
1994 260,341 12,052 4.6 L

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census
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STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS — TABLE 7
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

| EmaE— (Expressed in Thousands) —

Time and
Calendar Year Demand Deposits Savings Deposits
1985 $ 5,728,297 $ 42,322,007
1986 6,632,325 45,351,526
1987 6,443,804 47,556,165
1988 6,558,607 50,347,975
1989 6,481,900 53,565,427
1990 6,453,740 50,542,812
199] 6,308,495 52,112,591
1992 71,150,024 51,434,858
1993 7,620,397 54,334,637
1994 6,952,868 49,674,200

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking
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TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME— TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME
(Millions of Dollars) (Dollars)
Coentar | o] ]
Year United States Pennsylvania % United States Pennsylvania %
1985 3,317,545 160,820 4.9 14,159 13,888 98.1
1986 3,519,364 169,697 4.8 14,910 14,715 98.7
1987 3,754,577 180,559 4.8 15,641 15,449 98.8
1988 4,063,045 195,107 4.8 16,615 16,468 99.1
1989 4,366,135 211,739 4.8 17,690 17,844 100.9
1990 4,655,420 224,628 4.8 18,718 18,903 101.0
1991 4,831,697 233,676 48 19,163 19,556 102.1
1992 3,137,873 . 247,323 4.8 20,146 20,627 102.4
1993 5,364,300 256,408 4.8 20,800 21,314 102.4
1994 5,649,010 267,501 4.7 21,699 22,196 102.3

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10

For the Calendar Year 1994
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA L
EMPLOYER RANK
a
Pennsylvania State UDIVEISItY .....ccocecvrcinniniineinnccnriscneiiesesssencsnenas 1 1 4
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania ........c.cccceiccnicincinnnnnennee 2 - )
K Mart Corporation eevvees s se et ee et e es s e st es e e s e e s s s e taae 3 J
Bell AtIANLC ..eveeeeeerereirccemeesistis i ssis e stre et et ssesse e s seesesen e s meesenesine 4
US Air, Incorp_orated....................................; ......................................... 5
Mellon Bank, NA ........ieeicieeereinrneiiesncaeeresensesessensssssmssssessesnsssssssssssnsnn 6
United Parcel SerViCe INC .....cccceeeercvueeereressssessssnssesesessnesessessssssnereees 7 5
PNC BanK .....ocoeeesreerrseenes et 8
Wal-Mart Stores IC.....cerrerreerrereeureaceeeaenns retenes st s asteseas e tnanes 9 F
General Electric COmPany .....c.cccervrecircernmenonennmssnecsessnsensssessseessesenss 10 .
Westinghouse Electric COrp ... 11 =
Acme Markets InC ...t 12 L
Sears Roebuck and COmMPANY .......cccceevvererereeermriesnreseessescesaeerncensesaesseesas 13
Weis MArkets INC cvvvreeeereerioreenerereereseteteensnreeeseeassesseneserancasnsoneenenes 14
University of PIESbUrgh ... 15
The Prudential InSurance Co ......ccovveveverievinniinnmnseeinieisntsessnenesenn, 16 '
L0 (= 1 SO 17 -
Presbyterian University HOSpHal .......cccouieeiciiinincicsiiicnccnicsinenae 18 C
JC PEREY €0, TIC errersreeeeeeeeseeseessrecemeseeeseesessseemseseessessessseesssesssesneenee 19 L
Temple UBIVEISILY .ocvereriemiiemiimciscemisiinicness s ssssssss s sas s e snsans 20 | 3
Philadelphia EIECtic COMPANY ......voussemmessssressssessessersssssssssmsssessssnsnossen 21
Strawbridge & ClOthier ... 22 1
Thomas Jefferson University ......o.ccocevveeeereromnneneesineeseescs e seene 23
AMP Incorporated ...t 24
Hershey Foods Corporation....... et sse et mess e 25 1
AT&T coooooooeeeeerssssssssssssoss s ssssssssssssssssss s 26 .
Giant FOOQ SLOTES, INC .....c.ccvvererrerversrerererrsssnsssssssssessssssssesssssersssrasnesess 27 1
Southeastern PA TranSportation .......c..cccceceeercercesrnesrescesscescesesenesoanene 28 B
Pennsylvania Power & Light ......c..cocviiniiiiiininiintininiencnninennens 29 =
USX COTPOTAION errr e e e e eeresers e sereseesseeeseeesseeesseeee e 30 3
!
SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security
'é
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LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Advanta Corporation

Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Airgas _

Alco Standard Corporation
Allegheny Ludlum Corporation
Aluminum Company of America
Amerisource Distribution
Ametek

AMP Incorporated

ARCO Chemical

Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Arrow International

Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethlehem Steel Corporation
Betz Laboratories

Centocor

Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
CoreStates Financial Corporation
Crown Cork and Seal Company,
Dauphin Deposit Corporation
Dentsply International

DQE Corporation

Equitable Resources

General Nutrition

Glatfelter (P.H.) Company

Fore Systems

H.J. Heinz Company

Harsco Corporation

Hershey Foods Corporation
Integra Financial Corporation
Intelligent Electronics
Mellon Bank Corp.

Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Mylan Laboratories _
PNC Financial Corporation
PPG Industries, Inc.
Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.
Pep Boys

Philadelphia Electric Co.
Quaker State Corporation
QVC Network
Rhone—Poulenc Rorer

Rite Aid Corporation

Rohm and Haas Company
Scott Paper Company

Sun Company, Inc.

Sungard Data Systems

UGI Corporation

Union Pacific Corporation
UNISYS Corporation

U.S. Healthcare

USX Corporation

VF Corporation

Vishay Intertechnology

Weis Markets, Incorporated
Westinghouse Electric Corporation
York International

SOURCE: Fortune, May 5, 1995; The 1994 Business Week 1000, March 1995,
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

June 30, 1995

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution

December 12, 1787

Form of Government  Legislative-Executive-Judicial
Miles of State Highway 40,486 ' }
Land Area — in square miles 44,388
State Police Protection:
Number of Stations 107
Number of State Police 4,176 .1
Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and "
Community Colleges): :
Number of campuses in state 237 2
Number of educators 22,466
Number of students 622,152 N
Recreation:
Number of State Parks 116
Area of State Parks 282,500 Acres
Area of State Forests 2,095,267 Acres

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning

Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development .
Pennsylvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services 3 \
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources, Bureau of Forestry ;

—120—



	2548_001.pdf
	2549_001
	2550_001
	2551_001

